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I. Letter to Shareholders

1. Business Report for 2014
Changes in the Financial Environment

During Year 2014, global economy slowly recovered. The steady expansion of the US
economy ended the third round of Quantitative Easing in November 2014. Nevertheless,
central banks of Europe and Japan announced the strengthening of the easing policies during
the same period because of their low inflation and customer spending. Meanwhile,
overcapacity and the cooling real estate market in China slowed its economy growth. In
Taiwan, the domestic economy was impacted by the food safety crisis. However, Taiwan
economy grew modestly due to the stable growth in export, domestic consumption, investment
and continuous decreasing unemployment rate. According to the announcement made by
Directorate General of Budget Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan in February 2015,
the estimate for 2014 economy growth is raised to be 3.74%, outnumbering 2.23% of Year
2013.

Major institutes all predicted that the global economy will grow in 2015, because of the
steady growth of US economy will offset the slowing economic expansion of China. Benefited
by enlarged investment made by the semiconductor, telecom and airline sectors, private
investment may keep ascending with continuous growth of private consumption driven by
better employment, Taiwan economy is expect to grow in 2015. The recent plummeting
international oil prices will also boost the exports of Taiwan. DGBAS estimated 2015
economic growth to be 3.78%, hiking slightly from Year 2014.

The financial sector was benefited by financial deregulation, booming overseas business
and the stable asset quality, so the earnings before tax of total domestic banks for 2014
reached NT$ 320.1 billion, or a growth of 24% from 2013. However, global economy for
Year 2015 will still be impacted by the raise of interest rates in USA, fluctuation of oil prices
and the growth prospect of China economy. Therefore, the management of domestic banks
should correspond to international situations and economic changes, and the premise of
business expansion should lies in risk management. Because FSC strongly urges the banking
sector to expand overseas business channel in Asia and deregulated OBU businesses will
further drive the expansion of wealth management , and e-business development led to fruitful
business opportunities, the overall scale and profits of banking industry may keep hitting a

record high.



Organizational Change

1. In order to aggressively develop businesses of financial product, Treasury Marketing
Product Evaluation Committee, which was founded in January 2014, and Treasury
Marketing Department, added in March, are responsible for the R&D of financial products
and the planning, marketing and promotion of these products.

2. The competent authorities revised Implementation Rules of Internal Audit and Internal
Control System of Financial Holding Companies and Banking Industries and added the
clause requiring the chief compliance offices be the responsible units. The Bank initiated
the establishment of Compliance Affairs Department in June 2014 to be responsible for the
planning, management and execution of the regulatory compliance system in order to
ensure the effective operation of the compliance system. Meanwhile, for the consistence
inside the Yuanta Financial Holdings, Legal & Compliance Department was renamed
Legal Affairs Department.

3. In response to the business demand, official seals, document dispatch and secretarial affairs
were reassigned to President Office, which was renamed Business Management
Department in October 2014.

Actual Accomplishments in 2014

In 2014, the Bank embraced tremendous growth in business scale and profitability. As of
December 2014, the Bank’s consolidated asset achieved NT$ 698 billion, which grew by 17%
from NT$ 598.4 billion of year 2013. The annual net income after tax was NT$ 4.547 billion
with earnings per share of NT$ 1.21, which significantly increased by NT$ 1.495 billion, or
49%, compared to NT$ 3.052 billion in 2013. With the high profit growth of six consecutive
years, the NPL ratio as 0.19% and the NPL coverage ratio as 658.94% and the loan coverage
ratio as 1.27% fully manifested the Bank’s premium asset quality. The performance of main
businesses are as following:

(1) Deposits:
Through deepening customer analysis and mastering the trend of customer needs, the
Bank launched deposit promotion to actively expand the general demand and foreign
currency deposit, elevate the share of current demand deposits and sustain the Bank’s
advantaged low funding cost.
In 2014, the Bank embraced total deposits of NT$ 549.5 billion, an increase of NT$
66.4 billion from NT$ 483.1 billion in 2013. Meanwhile, demand deposits increased by
NTS$ 32.5 billion, and time deposits increased by NT$ 33.9 billion.
(2) Loans:
Respecting corporate banking business, the Bank founded regional centers to
escalate business dynamics of sales representatives. The bank also fortified the

cooperation between its corporate banking departments and the securities subsidiary of
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the Group to integrate resources of the Group and to fully meet customers’ demand on
comprehensive financing, cash flow and financial management.

In regards to consumer banking business, the bank targeted premium customers for
mortgage loans to sustain the growth in quantity and quality. Also, the Bank steadily
expanded its car loans and Stock-Secured loans to effectively maximize the market share.

In 2014, the loan volume of the bank totaled NT$ 419 billion or an increase of NT$
34.5 billion from NTS$ 384.5 billion in 2013. This included NT$ 261.7 billion of loans
through corporate banking, or 62% of total loan service, and NT$ 157.3 billion through
consumer banking, or 38% of total loan.

Foreign Exchange:

Driven by the deregulation of Renminbi business and the launch of Western Union
Quick Cash service, foreign exchange business of the Bank has been expanding these
years. The Bank aims to persistently solidify capability of personnel, and expand the
overseas correspondent banking relationships to provide professional and convenient
foreign exchange service.

In 2014, foreign exchange volume of the Bank reached USD 33.1 billion, an increase
of USD 6 billion from USD 27.1 billion in 2013. Meanwhile, remittance service weighted
91%, with the import service standing for 6% and the export service for 3%.

Trust Business:

In addition to furnishing a wide variety of trust products to meet client’s demands in
financial management, the Bank aggressively expanded its mutual fund custody and
foreign capital custody business to increase its fee income.

In 2014, the Bank added 1 trust fund, amounted to about NT$ 1.2 billion, 23 new
custody accounts of foreign inventors, amounted to about NT$ 12.8 billion.

In 2014, the total balance of trust assets reached NT$ 113.7 billion, an increase of
NTS$ 11.4 billion from NT$ 102.3 billion at the end of 2013.

Wealth Management:

The bank symbolized its wealth management brand concept with “Caring,
Considerate and Sincere” in Year 2014. Meanwhile, the Bank aggressively develop its
customer base, business scale and to increase fee income by expanding its wealth
management team, conducting professional training , integrating resources of the Group,
furnishing financial planning based on customer demand, providing real-time market and
product information, tax planning and financial seminars.

In 2014 net fee income on wealth management totaled NT$ 1.077 billion, or an
increase of NT$ 218 million from NT$ 859 million in 2013.



(6) Credit Card:

In order to broaden the customer base of credit cards, the Bank, during Year 2014,
launched the highly competetive “Diamond Cashrebate Card”, and also re-positioned
“Leisure Card”. Additionally, to maximize the number of active credit cards and
transaction amounts, the Bank provided variety of exclusive premium services according
to customers’ specific attributes and launched comprehensive discount events with quality
enterprises, including receipt redemption, free gifts for purchase and repayment
installation plans.

In 2014, total credit cards in circulation reached 310,000 cards, with the active cards
rate of 48% in 2014 from 36% in 2013.

Budget Implementation, Financial Status and Profitability

In 2014, the Bank’s net income achieved NT$ 11.339 billion, including net interest
income of NT$ 6.959 billion and non-interest income at NT$ 4.381 billion. Compared with
the net income in 2013 at NT$ 9.369 billion, net income increased by NT$ 1.970 billion.

Major differences between 2014 and 2013 are explicated as follows:

(1) Net interest income: increased by NT$ 843 million from Year 2013 as a result of the
increase in deposits and loans by NT$ 66.4 billion and NT$ 34.5 billion respectively,

spread and interest income on securities investment.

(2) Net non-interest income: grew by NT$ 1.127 billion from 2013 as a result of the increase

in net service fee and commission income, trading and foreign exchange.

(3) Bad debt expense in 2014 amounted to NT$ 759 million, an increase of NT$ 38 million
from Year 2013. Operating expenses in 2014 was NT$ 5.568 billion or an increase of
NT$ 328 million from 2013.

(4) In conclusion, the Bank’s net income before tax in 2014 was NT$ 5.013 billion. After
deducting income tax at NT$ 466 million, the net income was NT$ 4.547 billion with the
budget achieving rate as 113%, or an increase of NT$ 1.495 billion from NT$ 3.052
billion in 2013.

Research and Development

(1) In response to the deregulation of Third-Party Payment, the Bank launched ‘“Yuanta
e-Pay”, the cross-border online collection and payment service, to seize business
opportunities.

(2) Launched mobile payment service in cooperation with Chunghwa Telecom and Taiwan
Mobile Payment Corporation to boost consumption convenience for customers.

(3) Established Phone Banking Service for wealth management to provide customers with a

more diverse transaction channel.



(4) Launched long-term Structured Investment products in USD, RMB and ZAR to fully
satisfy the asset allocation needs of customers in wealth management area.

(5) Risk Management:

A. Credit risk: The Bank persistently develop the application on credit risk data mart and
the analysis platform to enhance the efficiency for the establishment of corporate
credit rating model and the integrity for credit risk analysis.

B. Market risk: Strengthened the disassembly of financial derivatives, the verification
and according documentation of the valuation model, also planned to calculate capital
requirement for the market risk of options in Delta-plus Approach.

C. Operational risk: We also integrated and applied comprehensive management tools
including Risk Indicator System, Risk and Control Self-Assessment and Loss Data
Collection to uplift the Bank’s capability in supervising and optimizing the Bank’s
operational risks.

(6) Information system R&D and upgrade: To elevate system operation efficiency and
security, important IT projects were established, including Credit Card Issue Accounts
and Authorization System ~ 3D Secure for online credit card transactions, New Consumer
Credit Checking System, new-generation Cross-Platform Teller System, New Data
Warehouse Project, New Corporation Internet Banking System, Cross-Border Online
Collection and Payment- e-Pay, Cross-Border Collection and Payment of Tuition and
Miscellaneous Expenses, New Historical Data Platform, PSP-TSM, Gold Passbook in

USD Currency, and upgrade of the core system storage equipment.
2. Impacts of External Competitive, Regulative and Overall Business

Environment

Financial Supervisory Commission, thereafter FSC, adopted active and open policies and
continuously deregulated various restrictions. These will lead to advantages favoring the

management of the Banking sector and have positive influences on the profitability.

Also, the effects of changes in related laws and regulations are as follows:
(1) Enforcement of U.S Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (thereafter FATCA) :

In response to FATCA execution, the Bank has registered itself as a FATCA foreign
financial institution in U.S. IRS in June 2014 and acquired GIIN issued by U.S. IRS. The
Bank commits to conduct auditing and investigation on related accounts, and will deduct
30% withholding tax from the U.S. income of the account fails to comply with this Act or
foreign financial institutions did not sign the agreement. The implementation of FATCA
impacts financial sector considerably. Take OBU, regard to be tax haven, as an example,
the corporations whose actual shareholders with U.S citizenship will be forced to reveal
themselves and the bank business will be influenced accordingly. Moreover, banks have
to input extra cost and efforts to verificae client’s identity and collect the documents in
comply with the FATCA requirements. Nevertheless, in avoidance of risks arising from

incompliance, the Bank has revised bylaws and developed the according system.
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(2) The Amendment of The Banking Act to raise the investment limit of bank :

To assist domestic banks for the development of overseas units in Asia area, FSC
planned to amend Article 74 of The Banking Act, which was approved through the third
reading by Legislative Yuan on January 22 2015. The upper limit for bank reinvestment
was changed from 40% of Paid-in Capital to 40% of net worth.

To boost its overseas business and respond to FSC’s policy, the Bank has obtained
approval from FSC to acquire TONG YANG Savings Bank of Philippine and actively
assess the investment targets in Asia. Upon formal enforcement of amendment of Article
74 of The Banking Act, the Bank can embrace an increase in its upper investment limit by
NTD 5 billion, which will significantly increase its overseas merger and acquisition
capability.

(3) FSC deregulated restrictions against OBU financial businesses and products:

The FSC issued a letter with Ref. No. Jin-Guan-Yin-Wai-Zi-10200293010 on Dec.
27, 2013 and another with Ref. No.: Jin-Guan-Yin-Wai-10300017351 on January 29,
2014 to deregulate financial businesses and the products of OBUs. In response to this
deregulation, the Bank developed Operation Procedures on Financial Service of Offshore
Business Units to regulate procedures on standards for acceptance of customers and
know-your-customer review, the types and scope of products that may be provided to
customers, product suitability rules, new product review mechanism, compliance matters
related to recommendations, advertising, business solicitations, and promotion and
money-laundry prevention. The according regulations are also amended in an effort to
introduce offshore products and develop wealth management services for OBU clients.

(4) Revised Regulations Governing the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate
Assets and Deal with Non-Performing/Non-accrual Loans and required the coverage
ratio of real estate loans be raised over 1.5% before the end of Year 2016:

As of January 28 2014, FSC enforced the amended stipulations on loan loss
provision and guarantee reserve in Regulations Governing the Procedures for Banking
Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans. The
minimum loan loss provision and guarantee reserve shall be the sum of 1% of the
outstanding balance of Category One credit asset's claim (excluding assets that represent
claims against the central and local government in Taiwan), 2% of the balance of
Category Two credit assets, 10% of the balance of Category Three credit assets, 50% of
the balance of Category Four credit assets, and the full balance of Category Five credit
assets. As of the end of December 2014, the Bank’s account balance of loan loss
provision and guarantee reserve amounted to NT$ 6.223 billion, and the provision ratio of
Category One Credit Asset reached 1.17%, which complied with the requirement of the
competent authorities’ policy.

In addition, according to promulgation of Jin-Guan-Yin-Kuo-Zi. No.10300329440
from FSC, the coverage ratio, when processing loans of purchasing houses with the

balance including renovation and construction and excluding policy-oriented loans added

6



after January 1 2011 (Policy-oriented loans refer to the those with the special
government-offered fund or self-owned fund in compliance with government policies),
should achieve the minimum standard of 1.5% before 2016, in order to solidify the banks’
risk-bearing capabilities. As of December 31 2014, coverage ratio of the Bank for loans of
purchasing houses with the balance including renovation and construction (excluding
policy-oriented loans added after January 1 2011) is 1.45%. It is expected that the Bank
can meet the requirement of the competent authority prior to the deadline.

(5) Amendment of Implementation Rules of Internal Audit and Internal Control System
of Financial Holding Companies and Banking Industries -

To maximize the attention from the banking sector to legal compliance and fortify
the professional training and functions of compliance offers, FSC, announced the
amendment of Implementation Rules of Internal Audit and Internal Control System of
Financial Holding Companies and Banking Industries on August 8 2014. The amendment
clearly stipulates that the chief compliance officer of bank shall be comparable to that of
vice president and adds the clause requiring the chief compliance officer and personnel of
the compliance unit of bank have to attend at least fifteen (15) hours of training a year.
Also, it is required that, before banks introduce a new product or service, or applies to the
competent authority for approval to offer a new business, the chief compliance officer
shall issue and sign an opinion statement undertaking that the new product, service or
business complies with applicable regulations and internal rules. Also, a compliance unit
shall assess the results of compliance self-evaluation of each bank unit.

In response to the amendment of Implementation Rules of Internal Audit and Internal
Control System of Financial Holding Companies and Banking Industries, the Bank not
only raised the post of the chief compliance officer and revised Implementation Rules of
Compliance System, but also founded Compliance Affairs Department to fortify the
effectiveness and independence of the Bank’s compliance system.

(6) FSC promotes Digitalize Financial Environment 3.0 :

The development of mobile communication, social media, megadata, cloud
technology forces financial service to echo this trend and advance its IT development in
order to elevate the convenience for consumers. FSC thereby promotes “Digitalize
Financial Environment 3.0”, which will be launched in 2015.

In respond to the said project, the bank plan to establish the procedures and security
mechanism for online service application to deliver a more convenient financial service

and utilize the business opportunities brought by this deregulation.



3. Latest Credit Ratings

Latest Credit Ratings
Type of rating Rating agency Date Long-term | Short-term
. . Outlook
rating rating
International S&P 02/03/2015 BBB+ A-2 Stable
rating Fitch 05/252014 | BBB+ F2 Stable
) ) Taiwan Ratings 02/03/2015 twAA twA-1+ Stable
Domestic rating

Fitch 05/25/2014 AA- (twn) | Fl1+ (twn) Stable

4. Business Plan in 2015 and Outlook

During 2015, the Bank will focus on business structure adjustment and aim to raise the
efficiency of capital utilization, the share of fee income and the income of financial
transaction business. Additionally, the bank will also grasp the business opportunity of mobile
payment and aggressively escalate its contribution to profit. The business plan of the Bank is
summarized as follows:

(1) Business Development:

A. For different target markets, the Bank will provide various products and marketing
activities, through physical and online channels, to satisfy customers’ diverse demand
for financial services. Meanwhile, the bank will deepen relations with existing
customers and acquire potential customers to expand the customer base and cement the
Bank’s base for future development.

B. Respecting corporate banking business, it is planned to further acquire
small-and-medium business customers, integrate resources from DBU, OBU and
subsidiary companies of the Group, and offer diverse cash flow services to maximize
profitability of credit products and fee income.

C. The Bank will further its consumer banking business through actively expanding car
loans, stock-secured loans and consumer unsecured loans, fortifying promotion of
credit cards and expeditious elevation of credit card issuance and transaction amounts.

D. Launch the new brand identity for wealth management through Caring, Considerate and
Sincere to satisfy customer’s demand for financial management and further impress
customers on the Bank’s wealth management brand. Additionally, the bank will, on the
foundation of professional team and diverse product, earn customer trust and
acknowledgement and expand its business scale gradually.

(2) Channel Development:
The domestic physical channels are deployed according to regional business
distribution and wealth status to realize localization strategies. Head Office will
periodically review its performance and practices to effectively advance performance of

channel management. Moreover, the establishment of offshore offices will be actively
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assessed by International Business Team to seize overseas business opportunities. The
electronic channels will be developed through promotion of online banking, mobile
banking, Third-Party Payment and mobile payment to make the Bank’s service available
everywhere.

Risk Management:

The Bank will enhance the control in the credit, market and operational risk by
building the risk model and risk data mart. The Bank will also scrutinize the trend of
industrial and national risk, the clients’ cash flow and their top-down transactions to
minimize the Bank’s credit risk.

Personnel Training:

The Bank will reinforce the pre-job and on-the-job training, nurture multi-talented

personnel through job rotation, and advance employees’ competence in foreign languages

to cultivate international professionals, to solidify the basis for sustainable development.



II. Bank Profile and Corporate Governance

1. Introduction

Yuanta Commercial Bank ( “the Bank” ), formerly Asia Pacific Commercial Bank, acquired
approval for establishment from the Ministry of Finance on January 14, 1992 and launched its
operation on February 12, 1992. Afterwards, in conformity with the development of the financial
market and Government’s financial reform, the Bank joined Fuhwa FHC on August 1, 2002 through
stock transfer and became a wholly-owned subsidiary. In September 2002, Asia Pacific commercial
Bank was approved to be renamed Fuhwa Commercial Bank. On April 2, 2007 Yuanta Core Pacific
Securities merged with Fuhwa FHC formally. On September 23, 2007 the Bank was renamed
Yuanta Commercial Bank.

In order to broaden the Bank’s operating foundation and strengthen its competency, the Bank
successively acquired Toulio Credit Cooperative, Taitung Credit Cooperative, Tainan 7th and 6th
Credit Cooperative and increased its branches as many as 70. After Purchase and Assumption 18
domestic branches of Chinfon Commercial Bank in April 2010, the Bank expanded service territory
to 88 branches. In the future, we will continue to deploy domestic locations according to the need of
business development and the group’s development strategy, with a focus on metropolitan areas in
Taiwan, including Taipei City, New Taipei City, Taichung City, Tainan City, and Kaohsiung City.
We will also aggressively plan and establish overseas locations, in order to cultivate business
opportunities in Taiwan, Hong Kong, and China.

The Bank set up Yuanta Property Insurance Agent Company through reinvestment on October
2, 1999 with the main business at property insurance agency services and Yuanta Life insurance
agency Co., Ltd. on November 20, 2001 with the main business at life insurance agency business.
In addition, Yuanta International Leasing Co., Ltd. was established on November 15, 2012 with the
main business at dealership, leasing and factoring management of immovable properly / real

property.
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) Purchase and Assumption “Chin-Fon Bank™ of 18 branches
April 2010 .
Total branches increased to 88
September 2007 Renamed “Yuanta Commercial Bank”
Acquired and merged “Tainan 6th Credit Cooperative” ;
December 2005 ]
Total branches increased to 70
Acquired and merged “Tainan 7th Credit Cooperative” ;
June 2005 ]
Total branches increased to 58
Acquired and merged “Taitung Credit Cooperative” ;
June 2004 .
Total branches increased to 50
Acquired and merged “Toulio Credit Cooperative” ;
July 2003 .
Total branches increased to 42
Joined Fuhwa FHC ; Renamed “Fuhwa Commercial Bank™
August 2002
Total Branches 37
February 1992 “Asia Pacific Commercial Bank” ; Total Branches 7

€ Overseas Office: Hong Kong Representative Office
¢ Affiliate:

Yuanta Property Insurance Agent Company

Yuanta Life Insurance Agent Company

Yuanta International Leasing Company

After joining Yuanta Financial Holdings, the Bank has been not only carrying out a variety of
important service and system reforms, but integrating the abundant resources of the Financial
Holdings in security clients, which steadily uplift the Bank’s asset quality and stably grow its
operation scale.

In prospect of the future, Yuanta Commercial Bank will persistently observes its philosophy-
Sincerity, Stability, Service, Innovation and Attentiveness- and provide more professional and
all-round financial services to customers through the quality management models with risk
emphasis, customer orientation and objective management in order to create maximum profit for
shareholders and full perform its social responsibility.
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2. Organization

(1) Organization Chart

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Base Date: January 31, 2015

— Business Management Dept.

Compliance Affairs Dept.

— Legal Affairs Dept.

— Information Technology Dept.

Shareholders’ Meeting

I Accounting Dept.
General | | Internal Audit
Auditor Dept. ] Human Resource Dept.
Administration &
Facilities Management Dept.
Board of Directors
President I Vice President T Risk Management Dept.
Chairman
- Credit Management Dept.
— Credit Evaluation Committee Operation Dept.
Human Resource Evaluation Deposit and Remittance
- C ) Banking Dept.
ommittee
- Collection Dept.
| | Asset & Liability Management
Commitice = Financial Trading Dept.
I Risk Management Committee | | Financial Tragieri)% Supporting
Non-Performing Loan B Treasury Dept.
Management Committee
= Fixed-Income Dept.
| | Financial Products Evaluation
Committee —  Treasury Marketing Dept.
New Product Evaluation —  Corporate Banking Dept.
Committee
—  Consumer Banking Dept.
L | Treasury Marketing
Product Evaluation Committee L Consumer Credit
Management Dept.
. . —| Trust Dept.
Chief Secretary Secretariat
I  Wealth Management Dept.
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(2) Major Departments

Base Date: January 31, 2015

Departments Function
Internal Audit Dept. Manage the Bank’s internal audits and supervise self auditing.
Manage and plan the organization and service locations; integrate
bank-wise operation performance, develop budgetary objectives,
Business appraise business performance and strategies, manage long-term
Management Dept. equity investment and M&A, and plan the corporate image,

marketing and advertising activities and process secretarial and
administrative affairs.

Compliance Affairs
Dept.

Plan, manage, appraise and execute the legal compliance system of
the Bank.

Proofread legal documentation and offer assistance and legal

Legal Affairs Dept. consultancy on non-lawsuit and lawsuit cases in the Bank.
. Develop the Bank’s IT policies. Construct and execute the IMS and

Information . . . ..

plan, establish and manage the information facility, system and
Technology Dept.

network.

In charge of the accounting system and procedures, accounting,
Accounting Dept. compilation of the budgets, periodic financial reporting and tax

affairs.

Human Resource
Dept.

promotion, transfer,

Manage human resource affairs, including recruitment, employment,
appraisal, compensation, bonus, training,
insurance and benefit.

Administration &
Facilities
Management Dept.

procurement, and real estate rental and purchase, and other

Conduct property management, including seal management,
documentation, safety maintenance, construction and maintenance,

administrative affairs.

Risk Management
Dept.

Construct credit risk, market risk and operation risk control
mechanism. Monitor and manage risk-related affairs in the Bank.

Credit Management
Dept.

Examine, approve and review credit accounts of corporate and
consumer banking. (excluding consumer loans under Consumer
Credit Management Dept.) Develop on credit management policies,
and real estate valuation policies and review the credit application of
financial products from Treasury Marketing Units.

Planning, management and implementation of back-office
Operation Dept. centralization of deposit services, loan services and lending
reexamination.
Deposit and Supervise the accomplishment of budgeting objects for deposit

Remittance Banking
Dept.

business, plan, promote, and manage the deposit service, develop
regulations, manage and train personnel.

Collection Dept.

Collect the Bank’s non-performing loans and other debts. Compile
and analyze assets with non-performing loans.

Financial Trading
Dept.

Manage the operation of trading books of the Bank, including
foreign exchange, and transactions in the capital market, such as
securities and derivatives.
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Departments

Function

Financial Trading
Supporting Dept.

Conduct confirmation, delivery, account management, internal audit
and other affairs for financial products.

Treasury Dept.

Manage the Bank’s asset and liability. Based on the Bank’s outlook,
manage funding and liquidity gap.

Fixed-Income Dept.

Manage transactions of fixed-income products and according
derivatives, including outright purchases, repo and reverse repo of
bonds, bills, beneficiary securities, and asset-backed securities.

Treasury Marketing
Dept.

Research and develop financial products and plan, market and
promote according businesses, including financial derivatives,
structured products and structured notes, such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, raw materials.

Corporate Banking
Dept.

Supervise operational objectives, budget objectives, business
development and product research and development for corporate
banking business and plan and integrate services featuring projects,
policies, large size, and complexity ; and administrative affairs
including personnel allocation and training.

Consumer Banking
Dept.

Supervise, for consumer banking business, operational policies,
budget objectives, business development, product research and
development, marketing activities, customer services, crediting
credit card users and plan and manage all of business regions.

Consumer Credit

Examine car loans, stock-secured loans, mortgages, consumer
unsecured loans and credit cards; manage credit card warning,
disputed payments, anti-fraudulence operations; review bill

Management Dept. collection authorized stores; develop procedures for consumer
banking products.
Plan, develop and manage trust business, execute annual budget
Trust Dept. objectives, and conduct R&D and integration of wealth management
products and process trust business.
Wealth Management Supervise the operatignal policies, budget objectives, business
Dept. development, marketlng plans and manage other wealth
management services.
International Planning, management, institutionalization, and processing of
Banking Dept. foreign exchange.

E-Commerce Dept.

Supervise the development of the E-Banking services, including the
planning of strategies, the integration of business operation, also the
related promotion and manage affairs.

Business Dept. /
Branches

Manage services of commercial banks approved by the competent
authority, execute budgetary objectives of branches, administers
accounting affairs and other tasks assigned by the headquarter.
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(2) Major Institutional Shareholders:

Base Date: August 26, 2014

Name of institutional shareholders

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders

Yuanta Financial Holdings Co., Ltd

Tsun Chueh Investment Co., Ltd. 3.88%)
Yuan Hung Investment Co., Ltd. 3.39%
Yuan Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. 2.86%
Yu Yang Investment Co., Ltd. 2.79%
Dedicated investment account managed by Mega International 277%
Commercial Bank on behalf of Mega Securities (HK)

Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd. 2.33%
Dedicated investment account managed by Citibank (Taiwan) 224%
on behalf of Singapore Government

Lian Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 2.18%)
Nan Shan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 2.01%
Cathay Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 1.92%

Note: Data for the company’s top 10 major shareholders are as of Yuanta Financial Holdings’ latest book closure date (2014.8.26).

(3) Key Shareholders of Major Institutional Shareholders:

Base Date: January 31, 2015

Name of institutional shareholders

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders

Lian Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 19.49%
Teng Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 19.30%
Lien Heng Investment Co., Ltd 18.92%
Chiu Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 18.36%
Tsun Chueh Investment Co., Ltd. Hsing Tsai Investment Co., Ltd 10.24%
Victor Ma 8.27%
Judy Tu 4.69%
Yung-Tsang Lin 0.39%
Er-Tai Ma 0.34%
Mei Jia Li Investment Company Limited 45.88%
Lien Heng Investment Co., Ltd 33.74%
Yuan Hung Investment Co., Ltd.
Teng Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 15.38%
Judy Tu 5.00%)
Lian Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 44.38%
Lien Heng Investment Co., Ltd 19.00%
Teng Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 18.69%
Yuan Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd.
Chiu Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 9.96%
Judy Tu 5.01%
Hsing Tsai Investment Co., Ltd 2.96%
Yu Yang Investment Co., Ltd. Tsun Chueh Investment Co., Ltd. 100.00%
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Name of institutional shareholders

Major shareholders of the institutional shareholders

Dedicated investment account managed
by Mega International Commercial Bank
on behalf of Mega Securities (HK)

N/A

Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd. Taiwan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd 100.00%

Dedicated investment account managed

by Citibank (Taiwan) on behalf of N/A

Singapore Government
Chiao Hua International Investment Co., Ltd 45.79%)
Lien Heng Investment Co., Ltd 37.14%)

Lian Ta Investment Co., Ltd. Chiu Ta Investment Co., Ltd. 14.02%
Hsing Tsai Investment Co., Ltd 2.58%
Judy Tu 0.47%
Dedicated investment account Ipanaged by First Bank on behalf 83.11%
of Ruen Chen Investment Holding Co., Ltd.
Ruen Chen Investment Holding Co., Ltd. 7.52%
Ying Tsung Tu 3.25%
Dedicatgd stock trust property account maqaged by Taishin 0.88%
International Bank on behalf of Nanshan Life Insurance
Ruen Hua Dyeing & Weaving Co., Ltd. 0.28%

Nan Shan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Ruen Tex Leasing Co., Ltd. 0.15%
Chi Pin Investment Co., Ltd. 0.11%
Wen Te Kuo 0.11%
Pao Chih Investment Co., Ltd. 0.05%
Pao Yi Investment Co., Ltd. 0.05%
Pao Hui Investment Co., Ltd. 0.05%
Pao Huang Investment Co., Ltd. 0.05%

Cathay Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Cathay Financial Holdings Co., Ltd 100.00%)

22



Kyis1oATUN

1oSuay)) [euoneN ‘Sununoody Jo I9ISEN e

1dog Uy Jo
Sunjueg souenrway pue ysoda(q pue ydoq e1ozio/ot o Buid-gunyd arqndoy
SurseaT [euoneuruy vjuenk jo Josiazedng| uonerodQ “1do Sunioddng Surpeiy [eroueury
¢ Juady 9oUBINSU] 917 BIUBNK JO J030II(] “1do Sunjueq [euoneurou] jo 10siaradng e
Kyjis1oAtun)
pajwr] (eowes) uonRULIO U] 1oSusy)) [BUONEN ‘UONENSIUIUPY Ssaulsng
AAS JO 1030211(] ¢ 9OUBUL] SONLINOAG BIUBNK JO JO [00Y0S 2IENPEID WEIS0I SPALNDIXY 6T ® o E%Wm\“ﬂ Mooh\m/_
osia1adng ¢ fende)) aInjuop | elueny jo Josiaredng AKyis1oAtun) 1yosuady)) [euoneN ‘VaN e €10T/L1/01 Suey) nx-resy, o:.n_:m@m ’
¢ Jenide) armyuop ejueng Jjo Josiazadng ¢ Juady 1do swoour-paxt,] pue do(q JuowdSeuey '
QouRINSUJ 9J1I] BIUBNA JO 1030211 ¢ SSUIP[OH npa1) “1do Amseai] “1dog Sunoyiey
[e1ouRUL] BJUBNA JO JUSPISAL] IOIA Jo1udg| Amsear] “jdoq Surpel] [eroueur] jo losiazadng @
VIN SToATIN V/N VIN
uonepuno ejueng jo 10)0a1(|  14oSusy)) [euoneN ‘@dueul] d1jqnd jo I9SeN @ ’UIY)) JO
Y10T/¥1/L0 Sueny) oq-nx
¢ 90UBUIL] SANLINOAS BJUBNA JO 10}0II(] ¢ SSUIP[OH 1de orqndoy
[eIoURUL] BIUBNL JO JUIPISAIJ OIA 2ANNXH | sirejyy douerdwo)) jo 193eue pue 10sia1edng @
uone1odio)) jusurure) U
[eN31d DINO [1PMOIBIA JO 1010211 Ays1oAtun) drjoyye) uef N ‘MeT Jo I0[aydeq @ C10T/Te/01 Suop uary) HM“MM 101Ny [eIaUa)
¢ SSUIp[OH [eIoURUL BIUBNK JO JOJIPNY [RIOUOD) 10JIpNYy [2IOUDN) @ '
Suiseo] KyIs19ATUN)
[eUOlBUIOIU] BJUBNA JO UBLLIIEYD) ¢ JUOWISeURI 1yoSudy)) [BUONEN ‘UONEISIUIWPY Ssoulsng
19SS/ BJUEBNA JO 1010a11(] ¢ UOLEPUNO,{ BJUENK [  JO [00UOS SJENPEID) WEIS0I] SPANNIIXY  CT @ 'uIY)) JO
Jo 1030211(] ¢ Judly doueinsu] A11odord ejueny Kys1oArun) ryoSusy) 010T/10710 HHD T orqndoy HopIsald
J0 1030211(] ¢ Juddy douerINSUJ AJI] BIUBNA JO| [BUONEN ‘UOHENSIUIWPY Ssaulsng Jo I0[dyoed @
uewLIIRy) ¢ Yueq [BIOISWIWO)) BJUBNA JO JOJOI(] JUAPISAIJ @
%%Mwmow n dweN S12Y10)
:WEB E% 10 sorueduwo)) JYIQ Ul SUONISOJ JUALINIUO) uoneonpy / sadusLdxg M%%MMM_MM mwm%%m Eoﬂ.%vﬂ&zx oweN KypeuoneN oL
S10T ‘1€ Arenue[ :9)e(] oseq
:SpeoH Judunaeddq pue SHUIPISAIJ IIA ‘SIUIPISAI] Y

:s193eueyy Jo uoneuriojuy ()

23



Kyis1aatun Suisy Suny)

BuIy)) JO
[RUONIEN ‘UOHBNSIUIUPY $SUISng JO I0[dyoeg @ €102/10/01 A\ INH-NS Q:M_NMM
1da(q JuowoSeur|y Yieap JO 195euBA @ ’
V/N
A3ojouyoa], pue Py 10
90UQIOS JO AJISIOAIU[) UBMIB], [RUOLIBN ‘YN @ T107/€1/40 Sudz uenkf-oerg 5 ) ndo JUIPISAIJ AIIA
1
1do( yuswaSeueA 1IpaI) JO 19TeUBIA @ qnesd
Kyis1aatun Suisy Suny)
'UIY)) JO
[euonjeN ‘Soruouody aAneIddoo)) Jo Jo0jyded e €102/10/11 Sunisy Sunx-1e], Q:MHMMM
SSUIP[OH [eIoURUL] BIUBNK JO JUIPISAIJ DIA JBLILRIDDS JO JOSRURA PUB AIBI2I0dS JAIy) @) ’
Kyis1oATUN
Suisy Suny) [eUOnEN ‘SOIIOU0d JO 10]yded @) P 102/10/60 WO 1-NOIS eury) Jjo
1do Qorowo)-q ’ 7| onigndoy
sSuIp[OH [e1oueUL] BIUBNK JO JUIPISAI] 0IA | pue do ASojouyda] uoneuLoju] jo Iosiaradng @
Kyis1oAtun)
Sueywe], ‘UoneNSIUIWPY SSAuIsng Jo I0]dyoed @) puryn Jo | uopisoig o1A
1do uonoso) 1102/10/S0 | Sueny SunyD-Sunx| ’ ’
V/N . 1 V/N V/N 1or A onqndoy Jomueg
pue 1do yuowdSeurA JIPaI) JOWNSU0D)
SuIsea ] [eUONBUIU] BJUBNA JO 1030I1(]| “1do Sunjueg 1ownsuo)) jo 10s1a1adng @)
Kyis10A1un) 1yosuay)
[eUONEN ‘UONBNSIUIPY J1[qN JO IISBIA @ 'uIy) Jo
Suey) n,
V/N o] Sunjueg €102/10/L0 LSRN onqnday
o1e10dio)) jo Josiaradng pue tosiaredng ssouisng @
payury
s1oNpoId paInonng DO Jo 1030211 ‘Auedwo)) A o 'UIY)) JO
003§ JUIO[ SANLINOAS ISI1] JO 103021 ¢ SSUIP[OH] VSN ‘Ansioarun) 9ers 1ddississin VN o v10eo1/01 A BRIy arqndoy
[eroueUl] BIUBNL JO JUOPISAIJ OIA JOTUSS 1do yuowaSeue] sseuisng Jo 10siazadng e
K)ISIaATUN) JUAPISAI] OJIA
1o Uy [euonEN ‘UONENSIUIUPY ssaulsng QATINOAXY
JO [00YdG djeNPEID WEIS0I] SIAINIIXT 8T @) €102/10/01 i 5 oug | enensny
BIjensny ‘pue[suang) Jo AJSIAIUN YL ‘VHIN @ : : ’
youerg Junjueq a10ysyQ pue 1doq
Suisea] [euoneUINU] BJUBNA JO 1030211([ Isni, “1do( juowaSeury yieap Jo Josialedng e
u:u%ohww w& PUEN S1W0 dd
UIYJIAM UTY] O saruedwoy) Iayj(Q) Ul SUONISOJ JUILINOUOL) uoneonpy / sadusrddxg M_ Mmmhmm_w\m ww%%m Eowww”wm v aweN, KyeuoneN ML
asnodg se Jjeig PIOH sareys

[eLIo3RUR\

24



KyIs1aATUN)

BuIy)) JO
Suedwg, ‘ssouIsng [BUONBUIANU JO J0[dYdeg @) Y10T/€1/01 DA YIYD-IeoIN o:%mwx
1do Sunaytejy Amsear] 1o5eueiy el ’
V/N <
Ays1oatun ery) Suo, Doudrog 1oinduwo) U 10
pue SuroouISuy UOIBWIOJU] JO I0[dYoRy @ +102/10/60 Sueny Junf-1y)H o .HWMM
1do ASojouryoa], uonewIOJU] Jo JoSeue @ 19
SSUIP[OH] VSN SHOA MAN “AISISATU( BNSJOH “VEHIN @ SI0T/PT/LO sy ung Y 'um) Jo
[eIOUBUL] BJUBN JO JUIPISAIJ OJIA JUBISISSY 1do( 921n0say uewny jo 1oSeueiy @ 7| oriqndoy
Kyis1oAtu) Sueywe] ‘Furunoddy Jo 10[dyoed @ nQ TN eury) Jo
1do Sununoooy jo 105eueiN e 1102/10/v0 § SWH0MA arqndoy
KyIs1aATUN) pury Jo
droye) udf N “9peL], [BUOHBUIdIU] JO 10]3Ydeg @) 1102/10/%0 Suep Sunp-nyg o:ws doy
1do Amseoi], jo 103eueiy @ ’ JuopISaIg S91A
VSN ‘AisidAtu) uoj3ulysepy 951090 VN @ Eﬁm_m.m< S_E.uw
‘Youe. ’ ’
M* e eury) jo
neseq Jo 20130 A1ojedaid jo 1oSeuey ‘99130 1102/+0/L0 Suey) Sudr-uap
VIN VIN VIN arqndoy
dAnRIuasaIdoy Fuoy] SuoH jo aanejuasaidoy
V/N Jory) ‘youerg Sunjueq o10ysjjO Jo 103euey @
Kyis1oATun eurs Jo
BIOYIO[Y* SUD{UBY PUE 9dURUL] JO I0[oYOEE @) €10¢/10/01 Uy ud[-SU0L o:ms doy
Jos1A1odng ssouisng e )
VSN ‘AISIOATUN 91e)S BUOZLIY ‘YN @ pury 1o
‘youerg arode3urg Jo 00O T10T/91/%0 ury ng-ug o__% doyy
K1oredaiq jo 103eue]y ‘10siazodng ssouisng e ’
Ayisioatun Suisy Suny)
'UIYD) JO
[euoneN ‘soruouodr aane1adoo)) jo 10[dyoed e 71027/91/#0 | SueyD SuersH-uop o:mﬁmwm
J0s1A10dng ssouisng e )
A30[0Uyd9], PUB 90ULIIS JO ANSIOAIUN)
'uIy)) JO
SSUIP[OY [eroueUL] UBMIE], [EUONEN ‘JUSWSEURIN JO ‘(U @) ¥102/10/01 ng Suery-1x o:mﬁw‘wm
BJUBNA JO JUIPISALJ OJIA JUBISISSY JOIUDS 1do( yuswaSeur A YSIY Jo JoSeueA @ ’ JUIPISAIJ AIIA
VN Ayisioatun Suisy Suny) [euoneN ‘VgNe P 102/10/01 ng Suoyg-ue eury) Jo
do awoour-paxi] Jo 13euez @ onqndoy
u:u%ouww w& PUEN S1W0 dd
UIYJIAM UTY] O sarueduwo)) JAY)Q Ul SUONISOJ JULINIUO)) uoneonpy / sadusrddxg WM %sﬂmm_w\mﬁ wwh%a EonM.Mwo v oweN AyeuoneN oL
asnodg se Jjeig PIOH sareys s Joord

[eLIo3RUR\

25



K)ISIOATUN) MOUO00S ‘SUNIUNOIIY JO I0[dyded e

0
1do yuowoSeuey 1102/10/40 | Sueny SurisH-3udysg m:EWw 103eURA JOTUSS
arqndo
SONI[108,] 29 UONBSIUIPY JO JoSeURA @) Aancad
Kyis10A1U) SuBWE] ‘9duRUI] JO IOJSBIN @) S 'ury) Jo
“doq 380, 3o FeuTN e ¥102/627/80 4D IA-YD onqndoy
Kyis1oATUN) et o
BRYIAY * SUBjueq puk 90UBUL] JO J0[dYdeg @) ¥107/10/4#0 | SudsL Sun-uary) o__%me
1do( Surpel] [eroueur] jo 103euey @ ’
V/N Kyis1oatu() uexwe], ‘Funjueg Jjo 10[ayded e P 102/01/20 ] uego-umn 'uIy) JO
1do Sunjueq [euoneudiu] Jo 195eUBA @ / ' ot arqndoy
Kyis1oAtun) 1o3uay)
[euonEN ‘Opel] [RUONRUINU] JO IO[dyded @ €102/10/01 Suenyy Surp-uom 'UIY)) JO
1doq ’ arqndoy
Sunjueg soueniwdy pue ysodo(q jo 1oFeue @
ssoursng Jo T
a39[[0)) 1edre[, [euoneN ‘uowaseuey jo Ido(re €102/10/01 Suey) ny[-1ON 2_@ doy
V/N 1deq uoneradQ jo 1oSeueye|  V/N VIN :
oSy JUIPISAIJ A
eury) jo JUR)SISSY
doueInsuj 9177 eluenk Jo Josiaredng ¢ s3urpjoy] K)ISIOATUN) O1[OYIR)) UD[ N ‘SMBT JO IJISEIN @ ¥102/02/90 uoyd ne-W| :
[eIOURUL] BJUBNA JO JUOPISAIL] OIA JURISISSY 1do( sirely 307 Jo 103eueiN @ fanded
KyIs19ATUN) eury) jo
SueyWe], ‘UONRNSIUIWPY SSAUISNY JO I0[oYdRg @) 110Z/10/70 | Buery) unsg-yiy)y o__w_zaum
1do Sunioddng Surpes] [eroueur] jo 1oSeuen @ ’
vsnourpleuiag eury) Jo
ueg “A)ISIOAIUN) B)S BIUWIOJIED) ‘VEN® €102/10/01 O®ISH Suer -1y o:w_s doy
VIN 1do Sunjueg 1ownsuo)) Jo 195eueN @ ’
KyIs1aATUN) P Jo
oroyie) udf nf ‘sonsnels parjddy jo 1asejn e €102/10/01 Suey) oH-Sunyy o:w”ﬂ mwx
1do( yuswaSeue A 1P IWNSUO)) JO JASeUuRA @ ’
K)ISIOATU[) UBMIB] [BUOLBN ‘SMET JO Io[oyded e
'UIYD Jo
1do( Sunjueq ajerodio) ¥102/72/01 udy) Surys-Sury srqndoy
pue 1do( JuowaSeury ssoursng Jo 193eueA @ ’
uuu%ohww w& PUEN S1W0 dd
UIYJIAM UTY] O sarueduwo)) JAY)Q Ul SUONISOJ JULINIUO)) uoneonpy / sadusrddxg M_ %sﬂmm_wm ww“%: EonM.Mwo v oweN AyeuoneN oL
asnodg se Jjeig PIOH sareys s Joared

[eLIo3RUR\

26



KyIs1aATUN) Py 10
dLOYR) US[ N “SOIIOUODY JO 10[dydre @ ¥102/10/%0 Uy ond-my o_?_z doy

1do uono9[[o) jo 1eSeuen @ ’

V/N V/N V/N V/N IoFRUBIN I0TUOS

K)IsI9ATUN) 2IM)ND) WA 10
9SAUIYD) ‘UONBNSIUIUPY $SAUISNY JO I0[dYoee @ ¥10T/%1/20 Suey) Sunp-1] o:.ﬁ_ﬁwwm

1do( 9o1owo)-4 Jo 1o3euein @ ’

T )
UIPIM Ury] 1o sarueduwo)) JAY)Q Ul SUONISOJ JULINIUO)) uoneonpy / sadusrddxg M_ Mmswmm_wm wwpﬁ%: EQ:M.MWO \% S R it
asnodg se Jjeig PIOH sareys s Joared

[eLIo3RUR\

27



VSN ‘Asioatun

'ury)) JO JUOPISAIJ OJTA
91B)S BIUIOJI[RD) DOUBUL] JO ISBIN @ <102/c/90 ued oM -usiyy anqndoy JuelSISSY
youerg nuuer ], Jo oSeue @
Ajis10A1u) SuIsy suny)) [eUOLIEN e g0 —
‘UONBISIUIWPY SSauIsng JO 10[9Ydeg @ €10T/10/01 oM uld-uaryy anqndoy JuelsIssy
youerg 3uei3uog jo 195eURA @
A)ISIOATU
3 3 oo Sueny 17-Sun, vu) JO 10SeuR
1osuayy) [euoneN “sulyued jo Io[aydey e €10¢/10/01 H VI-sunx onqnday
youelg 1Aulg jo 105euey @
K1s10ATUN) I[N ISAUIYD) -
‘SOIPMIS BUIY)) PUBUIRIA] UT WeIS0I] IS @ $102/92/60 OH noyD-3urx u:m_: doy IoSeue|
youelg NYION JO JoFeUL\ @
K)JISIOATU[) MOYJ00S ‘SOIIOUOIH JO I0[dyoed @ ’UIy)) JO JUOPISAI] AIIA
ORI MOR00S AJo-opn €£102/10/01 3uex Suey-uay) | %mwz JUBISISS
V/N V/N youerg Sunno) jo 193eUBIA @ V/N V/N 1 ISSY
JUSWIASRUR]A [BIOIQWIIO)) PUE [BLISNPU]
0 939[[0) Jowun( eISH eMH JuowoFeue 'UIYD JO
§097RIIE0 AL BRI B " P102/92/60 noy enp-niyy | 1N sofeuriy
UOTJBULIOJU] JO 90I39(] 9JBIO0SSY @ qndsy
youerg uryrys jo 1oSeueiy e
Ansioatun 1adie], [euoneN VA @ 'uIy) JO JUOPISAI JIA
’ N ) nT Juenyg-un :
youelg peoy jseq SuilueN jo 103euey e t10z/10/01 1 Ho orqnday JUBISISSY
AjIsIoATUN) 1OJUd rUONEN * ° eUT 0
HHIOMIN HISHOt ) [FHONEN VeI €102/10/01 Suey) 1x-5uey) o__%wwz IoSeuey I0TUog
youerg 1owduIy)) Jo 3euey e I
KISIOATUQ) OL[OYIB)) US[ N ‘QOUBUL] JO IISBIA @ 3 'UIy) JO JUOPISAIJ OIIA
’ ’ ’ ’ woy)) emy-3uor
youeld 12dre] jo 1o3eueiy @ £102/10/01 10 orqnday JUB)SISSY
ASIoATUN
Co 'uIy) JO JUSPISAIJ IIA
MOU000g ‘ssouIsng [eUONBUINU] JO J0[oYoed @ $102/60/S0 ury yiy)-suoy onqndsy —
juounredo( ssauisng Jo JoFeuey @
ODHWD@ puodss momﬁmﬂeou QWeN SIyI0 dd
QY UIYIM Uy RO ul Ul 10 SIOUTJA Juounuroddy s GO it
10 osnodg se SuonIsoq uoyeonpy / saouatiadxy 2 osnodg Aq PIoY saIeqs Jo oreq WEN HEUOnEN i
Jyels [eLaSeury JULINOUO)) PIoH saIeys

10T ‘1¢ Arenuef :0je( oseq

:SIdgeUR Youeaq g

28



KJSIOATU() OT[OYIR)) US[ N ‘SMET JO I0[oYoed @

Arsinn Bremaly €10¢/10/01 Tfes| OH-YYS m:Ew I Togeuey
‘uorjexe] pue ooueul] o1qnd Jo Io[jdyoeyg e dnqnday
youelg SpuUap Jo 10FeUBA @
K)ISI0ATUN) — I
Suoy) 3uny) [euoneN ‘@0UBUIl] JO ISEIN @ 1102/10/%0 qIys ayD-SuaN onqndsy 1o3eury
youerg Surduex jo 103euey @ ’
Aszoarun) weny) SuN VAN @ 2102/22/90 udy) rony-3udr PU) Jo 103eURI\ JOTUDS
youelg uee(] Jo J03eUB\ @ : ornqndoy
Kyis1oA1u() eIy) our
o jo g
3uo, ‘@oueinsu] pue Supjued Jo Io[oyded e $1027/82/€0 uay) Jueisy-oey) onqndoy Jo3euRy
youelg ueys3uog Jo I1o5eURIA @ ’
K)jIs10ATU Sueywe], ‘9oueul] JO Jo[joyded e — . — 'uIy)) JO P —
youelg Suoje( Jo 103eULA : S orqndoy
uadQ reuoneN ‘ssoursng b:\w HMMMMM ° €107/10/01 nx Sueyd-1y) eurD 3o Ja8euey
V/IN V/IN . bu 5 VIN V/IN . orqnday
youerg uerbuenn) jo 105eue @
ssouisng Jo 939[[0)) 1od1e], [eUOIEN S
‘9ourInsu] pue Sunjueq Jo 92139(] AILIOOSSY @ €102/61/60 g Suey)-1] o:&z doy 103eURIA JOTUDS
youelg Suoyl3uay) jo 1oFeueiy @ ’
Ansnpuj
puUE 9210WWO)) JO [00Y9S YSIH UeNIed] €10T/Z2/0 Sueyry Sung-Suny 'uIy) JO 108euey Jorusg
‘ud1so SUISIIOAPY JO 92139(] JRIVOSSY @ : orqndoy
youelg op3udy)) Jo IoFeuey e
UONBISIUIWPY SSaulsng JO 9MIIsu] Mswe], .
quoweSeuey Sunjueq Jo 90130 JRIOOSSY @ €102/10/01 Suer] enyg-nyg 23: doy IoSeueIN
youelg oerx3uoyy jo JoSeuey e ’
HOA MON “AUSIOAUN 5,UYOf IS "VEN @ ¥102/92/60 Fuepy Surx-19g PUD Jo 103eUeRI J0TUDS
youelg peoy YroN ueyssuoyyz jo 103euey e e orgndoy
CHEASIY eury) Jjo JUOPISAIJ AJTA
“AJISIOATU) PUB[SUS0N() WIOYINOS “VHIN @ ¥102/60/50 uenx SuelsH-g[, o:&:@o& JueIsISSy
youelg Judysuly Jo I05eURIA @ ' ’
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO ”
AY) UIYIM Ury[ YO uW U1 IO SIOUTJAl Juaunuroddy AN —
10 osnodg se SuonIsoq uogeonpy / saouspiadxy 2 osnodg Aq Pley sareys Jo oreq SUWIEN HPUONEN DL
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIOH saIeys

29



Ky1s10ATUN)

3 ‘ 3 'UmgH Jo 3
ueyWe], ‘ssouIsng [eUoleuIoN] Jo Io[oyoed e Z102/L1/20 ny) my-sury) onqndoy IoSeueI
youelrg oySuox Jo 10Seue @ '
Kyjis1oA1U() 493Uy [eUONEN ‘VHIN Bury)) Jo
R ) uay) ury-ue : Io3eue
youelg dysuenys Jo J03eUB\ e £10z/10/01 O WIue orqndoy W
A3ojouyoay, pue P o
20UQI0G JO AJISIOATU[) UBMIE] [RUONEN VA @ $1027/87/€0 Sueny Sunsy-ury) 23: doy IoSeue
youelq Suayz3uoyz uelpury jo I5euejy e ’
9391]0) ssauisng SunyoJuln)
ury) Jo
‘UONENSIUTWPY SSUISng JO 90130(] AJLIOOSSY @ €102/10/01 ur yoryD-sung om:%w Mm JoSeue|N
youelg UBIPUTY JO IoSeueA @ '
eIjensn
RSV 'ury) Jo
‘KISIOATUN) USBUOIA] ‘90UBUI] JO JOISEIA @ $102/€0/€0 Sueq ug-eny o:&s doy IoSeueIN
youerg nj3uens) jo I3eUBIA @ ’
V/N V/IN VSN ‘AsioAruf) V/N V/N eurs J0
9)e)g sesuey| ‘SunUNOIIY JO IOISBIA @ ¥10T/L1/20 Suos], Suey)-Sung o:%_ d Mm 103eurN
youelg usdwry Jo 105eue @ '
epeue)) ‘AJISIOAIU() SPeoy [BAOY VN @ 'ury)) JO
Suey) udr-m : IoSeue
youerg Jurdoy jo 103euBy @ £10z/10/01 40 Ue[H orqndoy W
KJISI0ATU
e eury) jo
Sueywe], ‘opel], [eUONBUINU] JO Jo[oyded @ 1102/€1/SO 01T Uaf-1oJN oqnday IoSeueIA J0TUSS
youerg uen33uon) Jo 193eURIA @ ’
JUQWASEURTA [BIOIOWIIO))
pue [eLIsnpu] Jo 232[[0)) Iowun[ BuIy) 'UIYD) JO
Uy udr-In JoSeue] Jo1Ud
‘Opel [EUOTBUISIU] JO 99IS9(] 9JBIO0SSY @ 0102/9¢/11 1O eI H orqndoy Ut
youerg ueuun(] jo 1o5euey @
K)1s10A1U
It 'uIy) JO
Sursy Suny) [euoneN ‘sonsnels Jo Jojpyoeg e €102/10/01 997 UBYS-UOL o:ﬂ: doy JoSeue|
youerg noyog Jo 103eutiy @ '
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO
AU UM UL gl ur UT IO SIOUTA! uﬁ@SﬁiOQ@{ £
10 osnods se suomIsoq uoneonpy / seoudradxyg 2 osnods Aq P1oy sareys J0 318y QueN JIRUOTIEN ANIL
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIoH saIeys

30



KISIOATU() TYOZUQY)) [RUOTIEN AU} JO

939105 Jo1un{ UOHENSIUTWPY PRIV YL 3 Buy)) JO JUSPISAIJ SJTA
o e ueny) ISH-sun
‘UONBNSIUIWPY J1[qNJ JO 2AITI( ABIOOSSY © ¥102/60/50 10 ISH-2UHO orqnday JUB)SISSY
youelg ueyueN Jo 105euB @
Ky1s10A1UN) Py o
Sueswe] ‘ooueut,] pue Sunjueg Jo Io[oyded e ¥1027/€1/20 nIy resy-ony 23: doy JoSeue
youerg urnyg jo 103eueiy @ '
Ais1oAtu) SulsH Sunyy) [euoneN VN e 110Z/10/60 oery Suoyy | PO | soiey somog
youelg noy(ng jo JoTeuey @ : orqndoy
VSN “Assoarun jsndeq sefe VAN o P 102/h1/20 uoyg Sursg-ony | FUQO Seuey
youerg Suayony, jo 105eUey @ : orqndoy
ANSIOAIU MOYD00S ‘SUIIUNOIIY JO Io[oydoey e 'uIy)) JO
oM Mot %o: E..m u m%:Mw o1 u_m MH e @ €10¢/6T/11 Suey) 14-0eIsH u:%&oﬁ ToSeuey
ANS19ATUN Ueny)) SUIfA ‘9ouBUI] JO IISBIA @ ) eury) Jo JUSPISAIJ AIIA
b 3 €102/61/60 Suep uny-Sury onqnday JuEIsISSY
V/N V/N Youeld oeibued JO I95BUBIN @ VIN V/IN !
IS
neAn 'UIYD) JO JUOPISAIJ AIIA
Sueyuwe], ‘SunjuNod0y  JO I0[dyoed e $102/60/S0 nry Surg-nzg, onqqndsy | mumsesy somog
youerg Sueny(urg jo 1o5eueiy @ ’
KJISIOATU[) MOYD00S ‘SOIIOUOIF JO I0[dyoey @ BuIy) JO
- wocﬁsm wcwzsa_mw:msm wo Ewwﬁwﬁz ° 110T/TT/p0. | Bueroued SuN-unys o:@ﬂmwm ToFEuE N f01aS
Ajis1oATun) eu Jo
uad(Q [euoneN ‘ssauisng jo Iojoyoed e ¥107/¥1/20 ny) 1X-ued 23: doy IoZeuRIN
youerg 3uoyouesiog Jo Io3eUBIA @ ’
KJISIOATU) MOYI00S A 10
‘UOTJBNSTUTWIPY SSAUISNE JO IO[oyded e 1102/60/60 n&g uoy-uif o:%_w Mm JoSeue]A J01USS
youelg Suoyoueg Jo 1oFeuejy e '
939[[0D) 29Iy ‘dpeI], Py o
[euoneUIO)U] SSAUISNY JO 90130 JRIOOSSY @ 1102/10/%0 997 uor-nz7 o:ﬂ: doy IoSeuRI
youelg dySuoyy jo Teue @ '
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO ”
AU UM UL gl ur UT IO SIOUTA! juaunuroday/ \mﬁ vuOnE ot
10 asnodg se SUONISOJ uoneonpy / s20uanadxg 2y osnodg Aq | PIPUSeUS Jo e FUEN HEuonEN DLL
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIOH saIeys

31



juounreda(q
uoneonpy Jo Aysioatun) eny3uey)

euIyy jo

Suig- 3
[euoneN ‘uoneonps ssouisng jo I9ISejN @ £10Z/10/01 A S9N orqnday 03BN
youelg udwury Jo 103eue @
IS
. St 'uIy) JO JUOPISAIJ AJIA
UeMmIB], [BUONEN "90I9UWIO]) JO I0[ayoed @ €102/10/01 M Yoryd-unys o:msmmm JuejsIssy
youelg Suopon Jo 193eUeA e ’ )
Ayis1oAtun) Sung orey)
[euoneN ‘0oudrog JuswoSeur|y Jo Jo[oyded e €102/22/20 nsy uaIy)-nx MMMM Mzo IoSeueIN
youelg Suoje( Jo 103euey ’
KJISIOATU() [B1UQ)) [BUONEN ‘VHIN @ 'UIYD) JO
. . . 3 _ b 3
youelg Ied 90USI0S NYDUISH JO JoSeue]A @ ¢1oe/co/eo fSH STTMA orqndey 1RGBURIN OIS
uoneNSIuIpy
ssauisng Jo 2JMIsu] MSWe] ‘Opel], 'UIYD) JO
3 -3 3
[eUOTJBUIIU] JO 9IT9(] 9JBIO0SSY @ £10¢/10/01 UHT SUMSH-OWN orqndoy 100BUEN
youelg 1oqnyy( Jjo IoSeuejy e
VN VN KIISIOATU() eI[ENSNY YINOS VN @ VIN VIN 'ury)) JO JUOPISAIJ OJTA
1107/v0/11 uayd Sung-3ury) ond
youelg NYOUISH Jo J9FeueA @ orqnday JUB)SISSY
A30[ouyd9], pue 9JUAIIS JO AJISIOATUN)
ueMIE], [BUOIIEN ‘90URUI,] JO JOJSEIA @ £102/61/60 ury urg)-oy) om”_ﬁw MM JoSeue|
youelg NOMUI] JO JOTeURIA @ '
VSN “AISIOAIUN BWeqe[y YHON “VHIA @ eury) jo juapIsald 93IA
i -
youerq udy(3uld jo 105euey @ £102/10/01 UENH UenA-teL arqndoy JURISISSY
KISIOATUN) 1TYO3UAY)) [BUONEN
‘UONENSIUIWPY SSAuIsng Jo Io[oyded e €102/10/01 nT Sunyg-yy) MMMWM MM IoSeue|\ JoTuog
youelg UIsoe], Jo IoSeuBiy @ ’
Ky1s10ATUN)
UBMIE ] [BUOIIBN ‘99I0WWO0)) JO Jo[oyded e 1102/22/%0 Sueny emH-3uoy MMMMM Mm IoSeue]A J01USS
youelg uenkoe] jo 103eUB\ @ ’
Ky1s10ATUN) U 10
rey3ung ‘opel], [eUOIBUION] JO IO[oyded e $102/60/S0 nx urg)-1] o:%_w MM IoSeue]\ JoTuog
youelg 113uoyy7 Jo 1o3eURIA @ '
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO
dd
uww MMMMMNWHMW MM%WWMM uoneonpy / s9ouaLIadxy Mq_ “MSMMM_MM p1oy sareys EQHHMMQ v SweN KyeuoneN pLL
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIOH saIeys

32



A3ojouyoa], jo 9391[0)) Jorunf

eury) Jo

unp, Sury Quowageue]y ssouisng Jo I0[oyded e 1102/60/60 Suey) usj-17 onqndoy 108euRy
youeq eife jo 103euejy o
A3ojouyog], pue 99ud10g JO AJISIOAIU) -
urung [euoneN ‘Sununoody Jo I9isejn e €102/22/20 097 yoryD-Junsy, 23: y ol IoSeuURIA JOTUDS
youelq Ije Jo 103euey @
Kyis1oAtun) P Jo ]
d1[0)B)) UL N, ‘SOIIOUODT JO Jo[oyded e 7102/22/€0 ny Suemy-Suig syqnday IoSeuey
youerg uenA3uo Jo JoFeue\ @
Kjis1aATun) reysuny ‘YN e Buy) JO JUSPISAIJ 9JTA
o ued Suays-yr
youelg njeys jo 103euejy @ T102/v0/11 d SURUS-UHD ornqndoy JURISISSY
3ununoddy Jo 939[10)) Jowuny unj Jul] -
‘UOIBNSIUIWPY SSAUISng JO 99139(] 9JBIO0SSY @ €102/22/20 oer] Suix-3ury 23: doy 103euRI
youelg Suen3uny)) Jo 1oFeUBIA @
VN VN ASojouyda], jo Aysioaru) Sueoey) VN e V/N V/N €102/10/01 worgD uop-Suous | SO0 | geuey sotuog
youelg op3uoy)) Jo 103eue|A e ’ onqndoy
VSN*ANSI0ATUN) BIONE( NOS VN @
3
JuoweSeue| S ]
[eUONBUIIU] JO [00YJS 2)JeNpRIn) UBDLIWY 7102/20/€0 ny) [-Sur, onqndoy IoSeuRI
uowdSeURA [BUOTJBUIOIU] JO IOISEIA @
youelg 3uisn, Jo 1oFeuBIA @
KyisIoA rey3un], ‘soruwouod Jo 1o[oyded e 'uIy)) Jo
HHOREN HEAEHAL 5 49 O €10¢/Te/c0 99T NT-UY3A aqndoy IoSeuey
youelg uIsuUnp Jo 1o5eueA @ !
KJISIOAIU() UDS-JBA UNG [RUOLEN ‘VHIN @ 'UIYD JO JUOPISAIJ AIIA
’ ’ oerT Suny)-3ueny|
youerg 3unyore], Jo 103eURIA @ TT0Z/v0/11 rreunty orqnday | JueISISSY JOIUSS
Kys1oATU() 1Y) SUQ,] ‘SOIUOUOIT JO IOISEIA @ 2102/20/50 e — mniw Jjo J—
youelg I[O.IA JO IoSeueiy @ orqndayy
Kjs1oA1u( eIy Sud,{ ‘@oueul] Jo Io[ydey @ C102/61/60 —— eurgy jo | Seuepy Jo1uoS
youelg udIfeny Jo I1o3eURIA @ : orqndoy
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO ”
AY) UIYIM Ury[ YO uW U1 IO SIOUTJAl Juaunuroddy s AN o
10 osnodg se SuonIsoq uogeonpy / saouspiadxy 2 osnodg Aq Pley sareys Jo oreq WEN HEUOnEN &
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIOH saIeys

33



A3ojouyoa], pue 20UAIdS JO

A)ISIOATU() UI[UNA [BUOLIBN ‘QOURUI] JO IOJSBIN @ 1102/10/40 Suep, Suoys-uary) M“M_ﬁwnww 103euR|N
youeld 1461y Jo Io3eURIN @ ‘
UONENSIUIUPY SSaulsng JO 9MIsu] Iswe], —
quowdSeur Junjueq Jo 99139(] 9JBIO0SSY @ Z10T/L1/20 YoISH eny-3uns], o:.n_: doy IoSeURIA I0TUDS
youelg ueuno(] jo Io3eueiy e ‘
9019WWO)) JO 239[[0)) FunyoIe], BuI 30
‘Opel], [eUOT)BUISIU] JO 99IS9(] 9JBIO0SSY @ 210T/L1/20 Tes] Oef| o:.@: doy IoSeue|n
youeld 19MnH Jo IoSeueiy @ ‘
ERIE )
Jo 289710 Jo1UN( PIIOMSURI], ‘SONISIIEIS €102/10/01 Suep UeS-UTYD m:Ew Jo JUOPISAI] OJTA
pue SUNuNodcdY JO 22139(J AJRIVOSSY @ orqndoy | JUBISISSY IOTUDS
youelg urgsno(J Jo IoFeue e
A3o[ouyod], Jo 9ymIsu] plIomsuel], eun Jo
‘UOTJBNSTUTWIPY SSAUISNE JO IO[oyded e ¥102/60/S0 Suny ony-uy o:m_s doyy IoSeue]A I0TUSS
VN VN youelg nopiog jo 1oSeue]y e VN VN ‘
Agojoural 'uIy) JO JUOPISIJ 9JTA
Jo Aysioatun) Suekoey)) ‘oourul,] JO IOISEIA @ 2102/20/€0 OST, USA\-IYD siqnday ——
youerg 3uedn Jo 103eURIA @ ’
Kyis1oatun) wury Jo
uensuy) ueng Juny) ¢ SUNUNOIIY JO IO)SBIN @ $102/60/S0 oA ury-Suny) o:.n_: doy JIoSeuRA I01UOS
youelg uijueng jo JoSeuejy e ‘
ssoursng yo 259[[0)) 1odre], [euoneN ey 3o JUAPISaIg
Onsne)S pue SUUNOOIY JO 9139 9ILIO0SSY @ 10¢/20/€0 YoISH ualyp-Imy onqndoy Q0IA JUBISISSY
youerg enysuey)) Jo IoSeUBIA @
A3o[ouyod], pue 2JUdI0S JO eun Jo
ANISIOATU() UITUNA [BUONEN] ‘Q0UBUL] JO JOISEIA @ Z10T/LT/¥0 uay) Sue-Suay) 23: doy IoSeueI
youelg unjoe)) Jo 13eURIA @ ’
A3ojouyoq], eun Jo
Jo Ansioatun) Suekoey) ‘ooueul, Jo Io[oyoeqg e €107/10/01 Sue uop N 23: doy 1o3euRN
youelg Jurdre], jo 1o3euey @ ’
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO
uww MMMMMNWHMW MM%WWMM uoneonpy / s9ouaLIadxy Mq_ “MSMMM_MM p1oy sareys EQHHMMMQ< SweN KyeuoneN pLL
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIOH saIeys

34



A3ojouyo9],

puE 90USI0G JO AJISIOATU() ISIT,] SunIsyoey] $102/92/60 - 'UIYD JO JUSPISAI] 9ITA
[euoneN ‘JuowoSeue|y [e1oueul, JO IS @ : : orqndoy JUB)SISSY
youerg Sunisyoey jo 105eUey @
A3ojouyoq],
PuE 20UDIIG JO ANSIDATU() ISII,] Funisyoey] €102/10/01 507 10f-BuIo 'uIy) JO Er—
[euoneN ‘Sunjueqg pue ASUOJA] JO JOISEIA @ orqndoy
youelg Jurkony jo 1oFeuey @
Kyis1oatun) Pur 0
ueMIe], [BUOIIEN] ‘SOIIOU0dH JO Jojoyoed @ Z102/L1/20 Suop Suryy-ony| o:m: doyy IoSeueIN
youelg oYUy Jo JoSeueiA e :
JUOWASBURA [BIOIOUWILIO))
pue [emnsnpuy Jo o59[[0)) uIdse e P102/60/50 Suep OPH-UTD 'UIY) JO e —
‘UONENSIUIPY Ssaulsng JO 22139 AJRIVOSSY @ : orqndoy
youelg uenArey Jo 03euey
VIN VIN 2010WWIO)) JO 939[[0)) Jotun( V/N V/N e 3o
Sun]e] ‘ooueInsu] yueq Jo 90130 9JRIOOSSY @ $102/60/S0 uay) Sudys-Surn o:ms doy IoSeURIN
youerg Suopny Jo 103eueiy e )
SOOUQING [B1D0S JOJ SAIPIS
Areurjdiosipioju] 9mnsuy Jo AJISIOATUN) L0Z/10/40 ap wr-Sungy eury) Jo e a—
UdS-1eA UNS [EUONEN ‘SOIOUO0IT JO IOISEIA @ : orqndoy
youelg uayon, jo 193eue @
Ausiaarun 'uIy) JO JUOPISAI] OJIA
1o3UdY ) [BUOTIEN] ‘SONISTIRIS JO Io[oyoey e ¢10T/LT/Y0 0 ueny{-sury o:.n_smom RISISSY
youelg ueure] Jo JoSeuey e : ’
Ays1oarun) Suny] uday) pur 0
[euoneN ‘JuswoSeurA [BLISNPU] JO IOISEIA @ €102/TT/€0 ony] SunisyH-uny) o:m: doy IoSeuel IOTUS
youelg Ifelf Jo IoFeUBIA @ ’
Ansioatun Suisy Suny) [euoneN pur 0
‘UOTJBNSTUTWIPY SSAUISNE JO I0[oyoed e €102/27/€0 yrys SunisH-uop 23: doyy IoSeue]A JOIUSS
youelg SueIuox Jo IoFeuey e ’
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO
uww MMMMMWHMW MM%WWMM uoneonpy / s9ouaLIadxy Mq_ MMSMMM_MM p1oy sareys EQWHMMMQ< SweN KyeuoneN pLL
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIoH saIeys

35



Kyis1oATUN)

BuIyy jo

a1y aseury)) ‘Sununosdy Jo I0[ayoed e €102/61/60 Sueny] reny[-ues siqndoy IoSeue|N
youelg umysguny, jo 105euey @ ’
Kyis1oatun)
Imn)) 9seury)) ‘sme Jo Io[oyoed e €102/22/20 Suay) oeyD-nx MM%WMM IoSeue|
youelrg SumSuld jo 1oSeue]y e '
K)Is19ATUN NIYS
Suoy) ‘UWONENSIUNWPY SsouIsng Jo Io[oyoed e ¥102/60/50 T uld-uspy msz,ﬁo ToeUEIN I01UdS
V/N V/N V/N V/N dlqnday
youelg unuueg jo 1o3eueiy @
Ky1s1oATUN)
U3G-1eA UNS [BUONEN] ‘SOIUOUOIT JO IOISEIA @ ¥102/60/S0 Tes] reyD-Sury Mwﬁwnw ° IoSeue]A I0TUSS
youelg ueyssuo] jo 103euejy e Haneed
A3o1ouyo9],
pue 22UdI0S JO AJISIQAIU ISIT] TUNISYOR| 'uIy)) Jo JUIPISAIJ 9JIA
Suen -3 : : :
[euoneN ‘Sunjueg pue ASUOJA JO IQJSBIN @ ¥102/92/60 UPRH HO-otH0 orqnday JUBISISSY
youelg reog jo IoJeUueN @
90130p puodas soruedwo)) QwieN SYO
dd
Jes [euadeueiy JULINOUO)) PIOH saIeys

36



4. Corporate Governance

(1) Disclosures made in accordance with Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles
for Banks and related regulations:
Disclosed in “Corporate Governance” on the Bank’s website

http://www.yuantabank.com.tw/en/

(2) State of Corporate Governance:

The Differences between the

Evaluation Committee, Asset & Liability
Management Committee and Treasury
Marketing Product Evaluation Committee

Implementation Corporate Governance
Item Practice f’f ;
the Bank and “Guidelines for
Yes | No Summary Bank Corporate
Governance” and Causes
1. Equity structure and
shareholders’ rights of the
Bank:
(1) Did the Bank set up v (1) The Bank is wholly-owned by Yuanta
methods to handle Financial Holding. It accords its
shareholder management of the Bank with Article 26 of
suggestions, questions, Financial Holding Company Act, and
complaints and legal maintains an unobstructed communication
actions from channels with the Bank.
shareholders, and
implemented the
procedure?
(2) Did the Bank maintain v (2) Yuanta Financial Holding is the sole
list of its major shareholder of the Bank. Therefore, Yuanta
shareholders and the Financial Holding is the major shareholder
ultimate controllers of actually controlling the Bank and the
these major ultimate controller of the shareholder. C -
onformity
shareholders?
(3) Did the Bank establish v (3) The Bank and its related party have been
and execute risk control processing their finance independently, and
and firewall the performance and division of
mechanism between responsibilities between both parties have
the Bank and its been defined clearly, and also audited by
affiliates? CPA periodically. Additionally, the Bank
has also established the stakeholder query
system and developed according operation
procedures and the controlling mechanism
all according to Article 44 and Article 45
of Financial Holding Company Act and
relevant policies of the parent company.
The Bank also handled the cross-selling
operation in accordance with Article 42
and 43 of Financial Holding Company Act
and the relevant regulations.
2. Composition and
responsibilities of the board
of directors:
(1) Did the Bank’s voluntary | v/ (1) In addition to Remuneration Committee and
establishment of other Audit Committee, the Bank also set up Risk
functional committees in Management Committee, Non-Performing
additional to Loan Management Committee, Financial -
Remuneration Products E\jgaluation Committee, New Conformity
Committee and Audit Product Evaluation Committee, Credit
Committee? Evaluation Committee, Human Resource

37




The Differences between the

Implementation Corporate Governance
Ticin Practice of
the Bank and “Guidelines for
Yes | No Summary Bank Corporate
Governance” and Causes
according to respective services.
(2) Did the Bank assess the 4 (2) The evaluation report on the independence
independence of the of certified accountants and their
CPA periodically? appointment are reported to the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors for
approval.
3. Did the Bank establish 4 The Bank has defined the “Regulations
communication channel Governing Stakeholder’s Suggestions and
with stakeholders? Disputes for Audit Committee” to establish the
unobstructed communication and constructed Conformity
“The Area for Employees and Stakeholder’s
Suggestions and Disputes for Audit Committee”
as a communication channel on the website.
4. Information Disclosure:
(1) Did the Bank establish 4 (1) The Bank has built the Chinese and
website to disclose English websites to disclose to the public
information concerning the important financial information and
financial affairs and corporate governance information,
corporate governance? including annual financial reports.
(2) Did the Bank have other | ¥/ (2) The Bank established the spokesperson
information-disclosing and deputy spokesperson system to unify
approaches (e.g. English and integrate financial and business Conformit
website, assignment of information and advance the timeliness of Y
specific personnel to public announcement.
collect and disclose the
Bank’s information,
implementation of a
spokesperson system,
broadcasting of investor
conferences via the bank
website and etc.)?
5. Did the Bank have other 4 Other important information enabling better
important information understanding of the Bank’s corporate
enabling better governance status:
understanding of the (1) Staff Right and Employee Care:
Bank’s corporate The Bank established Employees' Welfare
governance status Committee and, on the corporate website,
(including but not limited set up Employee’s Recommendation area as
to staff interests and a communicative medium between
employee care, investors employees and employers.
relations and stakeholder’s (2) Investors Relations and Stakeholder’s
rights, director’s and Rights:
supervisor’s further The Bank’s sole investor is Yuanta Financial
trainning, the Holding Co., Ltd., which is the only Conformity

implementation of risk
management policies and
risk evaluation criteria, the
implementation of
customers' policies, Bank’s
purchase of liabilities
insurance for directors and
supervisors and the
donation to political
parties, takeholders and
charities)

shareholder and has smooth relationship
with the Bank.

(3) Director’s and Supervisor’s Further
Education:
The Bank has developed “Director Further
Education Procedures” and implemented
director’s continuing education courses
according to the procedures.

(4) The Implementation of Risk Management
Policies and Risk Evaluation Criteria:
The Bank has developed superior risk
management policy approved by Board of
Director, and constituted a well-structured
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Item

Implementation

Yes

No

Summary

The Differences between the
Corporate Governance
Practice of
the Bank and “Guidelines for
Bank Corporate
Governance” and Causes

risk management system in order to ensure
various risk evaluation criteria. Meanwhile,
the Bank also set up Risk Management
Committee to integrate the deliberation,
supervision and coordination of the Bank’s
risk management.

(5) The Implementation of Customers' Policies :
To guard customer’s rights, the Bank has
developed Guidelines on Consumer
Protection and regulations of personal
information protection. Furthermore, the
bank acquired ISO 27001, a certificate of
the Information Security Management
Standard (ISMS), and BS10012, a certificate
of Personal Information Management
System to shield customers’ privacy and
advance the security of personal
information.

(6) Bank’s Purchase of Liabilities Insurance for
Directors and Supervisors:

The Bank has purchased liability insurance
from Union Insurance Company for
directors and supervisors.

(7) The donation to political parties,
stakeholders and charities:

A. NTS$ 4.6 million is donated to Polaris
Research Institute in January 2014 for the
research on the macro-economy, finance
and products of Taiwan and major
countries.

B. NTS$ 11 million is donated to Yuanta
Foundation in May 2014 for the
personnel training, arts and cultural and
public welfare activities.

C. NTS$ 2 million is donated to Social Affairs
Bureau, Kaohsiung City Government in
August 2014 to help the relief and
recovery of the disaster area after gas
explosion in Cianjhen District, Kaohsiung
City.

D. NTS$ 25 million is donated to National
Chengchi University in December 2014
to advance students’ ability of art
appreciation, expand students’ horizon
and creativity, further education of top
talents and realize holistic education.
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The Differences between the

Implementation Corporate Governance
T Practice of
the Bank and “Guidelines for
Yes | No Summary Bank Corporate
Governance” and Causes
6. Did the Bank conduct a v

corporate governance
self-assessment report or
commissions a professional
institution to compile a
corporate governance
assessment report? ( If yes,
the opinions of the Board,
the results of
self-assessment or
commissioned assessment,
major deficiencies or
suggestions, and its
improvements) ( Note)

In 2013, the Bank entered the assessment
of CG6008 Advanced Corporate Governance,
held by Taiwan Corporate Governance
Association (TCGA), and received the
certificate on January 3, 2014(valid for 2
years).

According to six facets , industry
indicators and advanced indicators of corporate
governance evaluation system, the Bank
elaborates its corporate governance as follows:
(1) Protection over Shareholder’s Equity: The

foremost principle of corporate governance
lies in protecting equity of all shareholders
and encouraging shareholders to involve
themselves in corporate governance. The
Bank complied with such standard
consistently. Nevertheless, TCGA advised
that, while the board meeting functions in
an acting capacity of shareholder’s meeting,
the minute of the director’s meeting shall
be disclosed on the corporate website to
further solidify information transparency
and safeguard the rights of all stakeholders.

(2) Fortify the Functions of Board of Directors:
The Bank has recruited three independent
directors to be members of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee.
They fully fulfilled their duties in
independent supervision. Additionally, the
Bank was advised to raise the weights of
independent directors or outside directors in
Board of Directors and, in reference to
self-evaluation procedures of Audit
Committee, to establish an objective
evaluation mechanism on comprehensive
performance of Remuneration Committee.

(3) Utilize the Supervisory Functions of Audit
Committee: The Bank’s three independent
directors in Audit Committee all possess
intensive expertise in their own fields.
Functions of Audit Committee are
considerably utilized. The overall
performance is exceptional.

(4) Discipline and Communication of
Executives: The Bank is not only
systematic and fully carries out the Bank’s
system. Further, while the Bank’s core
businesses are clear and specific, the
disciplines for executives are rather strict.
Advice was provided that some proportion
of assessment powered can be provided to
Audit Committee to assess the performance
of internal audit supervisors.

(5) Respect for Stakeholder’s Rights and Social
Responsibility: The Bank manifested
concrete practice in respecting
stakeholder’s rights and social

Conformity
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The Differences between the

Implementation Corporate Governance
T Practice of
the Bank and “Guidelines for
Yes | No Summary Bank Corporate

Governance” and Causes

responsibility.

(6) Financial Industry Risk Indicators: The
Bank performed well in Industry Risk
Related Indicators.

(7) Advanced Comprehensive Indicators: The
Bank’s functional committees showed
excellent performance in related indicators
but some progress still can be made. The
suggestions are as follows:

A.The Bank shall incorporate future risk
factors into the performance assessment
system of Board of Directors.

B. In response to the Bank’s future growth, it
is better to add hours of corporate
governance courses for members of Board
of Directors to more than six hours.

C. It is recommended to provide
questionnaires or other reviewing
mechanisms to directors for the regular
self-review on their observation of
Standards on Code of Ethics.

(8) Comprehensive Advantages:

A. Persistently conduct evaluation on the
corporate governance system. The Bank’s
positive and aggressive attitude deserves
recognition.

B. The Bank’s Chairman has been
endeavoring to realize corporate
governance culture in the Conglomerate
and independent directors has been
aggressively performing their duties,
which are highly respectable.

C. The Bank developed the communication
procedures between Audit Committee and
every functional department to effectively
utilize the function of Audit Committee.
Such practice provides an outstanding
example for the banking sector.

Note : The corporate governance self-assessment report referred to herein means the report stating the status of

operation and implementation of any policies within the scope of self-assessment and stated by the Company.
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(3) Implementation of social responsibility:

(1) Did the Bank endeavor to
utilize all resources more
efficiently and uses
recyclable materials which
have a low impact on the
environment?

M

Implementation
Item
Yes | No Summary
1. Implementation of Corporate
Governance:

(1) Did the Bank stipulate v (1) The parent company Yuanta Financial Holdings has stipulated its
corporate social “CSR Best Practice Principles” in accordance with the “Corporate
responsibility policy and Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for
examines the results of its TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies” and established CSR Promotion
implementation? Center as the exclusive dedicated unit in the Group. The Center

periodically convenes meetings to review the performance of CSR
implementation.

(2) Did the Bank host regular v (2) The Bank holds corporate social responsibility training ( including
social corporate business ethics, anti-bribery, anti-corruption propaganda) every
responsibility training? year; Also, it hosts courses regarding legal responsibility,

professional ethics and code of conduct for new recruits to advance
their concept of social responsibility and fully carry it out in their
work.

(3) Did the Bank establish v (3) The Bank conformed to the general rules and objectives developed
exclusively (or by the parent company Yuanta Financial Holdings. CSR Promotion
concurrently) dedicated Center of Yuanta Financial Holdings periodically reports its
units to be in charge of performance of CSR implementation to the Board of Directors.
proposing and enforcing the
corporate social
responsibility policies and
Board of Directors
authorizes top management
to address such issue and
report progress to the
Board?

(4) Did the Bank develop v (4) The Bank’s general compensation policies are
reasonable salary and performance-oriented andare structured for market competitiveness
compensation policies, to encourage our team to fully exercise its potential and achieve
integrate employee high performance. In addition, to carry out corporate social
performance appraisal responsibility, the Bank’s reward and penalty rules are linked to
system with CSR policies performance appraisal to encourage and urge employees to be
and set up the effective responsible and diligent and to ensure employees fully comply
reward and penalty system? with corresponding regulations and internal audit mechanism in

daily operation.

2. Fostering a Sustainable

Environment:
4

Fully executed by the policies and regulations of the parent

company Yuanta Financial Holding to raise resource utilization

efficiency and its use of recyclable materials are explained below:

A. We recycle and reuse energy-intensive articles. This includes
advocating and promoting the recycling and reuse of paper
products, the use of recycled paper and resource recycling as
well as execution status reporting.

B. We properly dispose of waste. This includes advocating and
promoting waste sorting and reduction, waste water treatment
and reporting on the outcome.

C. We use low energy, green energy office supplies and machines.
Yuanta Financial Holding is awarded Best Green Purchasing
Unit by Taipei City Government and Environmental Protection
Administration for four consecutive years from 2011 to 2014.

D. Fully utilize all office furniture to avoid waste. Meanwhile, all
discard equipments are handled by the according recycling
procedure.
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Implementation

Item
Yes | No Summary

(2) Did the Bank establish 4 (2) Regarding the establishment of environment management
proper environmental systems(including water conservation, energy conservation, carbon
management systems based and greenhouse gas reduction), we have taken the following
on the characteristics of measures:
their industries? A. Inresponse to the policy for the air-conditioning temperature of

office buildings in Taipei, the Bank developed the internal
managerial standards and the air-conditioning inspection
approach for all business sites to carry out temperature control.

B. In order to realize water conservation, energy conservation,
carbon and greenhouse gas reduction, we regularly report the
outcome of conservation measures for water, electricity and
other items of energy consumption.

C. Smoking is completely prohibited inside our offices. Smokers
must use designated outdoor places. In order to meet
regulations we regularly carry out disinfection, rodent and
insect control.

D. The use of company cars complied with energy saving and
avoid unnecessary carbon emission.

(3) Did the Bank monitor the v (3) The Bank engages in financial service and does not produce a
impact of climate change significant amount of greenhouse emission. The greenhouse
on its operations and emission from the Bank mostly results from electricity and water
establish company usage and transportation oil. During the past 3 years, a persistent
strategies for energy examination on greenhouse emission has been conducted along
conservation and carbon with the following eco-friendly strategies:
and greenhouse gas A. Newly established business offices shall adopt low
reduction? energy-saving lights, such as LED or Cold Cathode Fluorescent

Lamp, to minimize electricity expense and energy
consumption.

B. Used energy-saving electric fans to minimize the energy
consumption of air conditioning.

3. Preserving Public Welfare:

(1) Did the Bank develop 4 (1) The Bank has complied with labor regulations and codes of its
management policies and parent company Yuanta Financial Holdings and developed codes of
procedures according to work and according personnel management rules for job seekers or
regulations and employees, which specify no discrimination on ethnicity, thoughts,
International Bill of Human religions, political parties, household registry, birthplace registry,
Rights? sex, sexual orientation, age and marriage, in order to construct an

equal employment environment and shield employee’s legal rights.

In addition, the labor management meeting is convened

periodically to guard employee rights, expedite labor-management

harmony and construct a mutually-benefiting and win-win
prospect.

(2) Did the Bank establish the v (2) The Bank set up Employee Suggestion Mailbox as a platform of
employee complaint the conversation between labors and the employer and of employee
mechanism and channel and complaints. The internal website also details the complaint and
process according affairs reporting channels and responsible units and personnel. Employees
properly? can file complaints and report through multiple channels.

v

(3) Did the Bank offer
employees the safe and
healthy workplace and
conduct safety and health
education for employees
periodically?

3)

The Bank not only observes the Group’s policies and offers
employees secure and healthy workplace, but also periodically
executes security and security and health education. The Bank also
constructed “Operation Unit Security Maintenance Procedures” to
forge its security maintenance mechanism.

A. Strict entrance guard and security check measures to fully
protect the safety of our employees at work and in everyday
life.

B. Regular safety inspections of drinking water, carbon dioxide
and illumination brightness.

C. Regular report and inspected fire and public safety
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Item

Implementation

Yes

No

Summary

“)

®)

Did the Bank establish the
periodic communication
mechanism and, in a
reasonable approach, inform
employees of the operation
changes with possible
significant influence?

Did the Bank develop
training programs on
effective career and
capability development for
employees?

“4)

6]

equipments.

Regular maintained and inspect the generator, uninterruptable

power supply and the elevators.

E. Regular disinfection and sanitation of the environment.

F. Confirming that office surveillance systems at all business
locations function normally.

Realized non-smoking working environment and provided a
cozy, healthful and refreshing workplace. The Bank acquired
Healthy Workplace Certificate Cigarette Prevention Logo for
all of its branches.

Regular occupational safety and firefighting trainings and

drills as required by law.

Moreover, based on Article 16 of the “Regulations for Labor
Safety and Health Education and Training” by the Council of
Labor Affairs, Executive Yuan, the Bank’s parent company Yuanta
Financial Holding has established the following regulation: “The
employer shall have new recruits receive necessary safety and
health education and trainings applicable to their new posts.” In
order to protect the health and safety of all workers, we hired a
business supervisor holding a certificate of labor safety to hold
“educational trainings for new recruits on occupational health and
safety” in fiscal year 2014. The educational trainings cover the
following topics: An outline of laws and regulations relating to
occupational health and safety, occupational health and safety
concepts as well as safety and health work rules, emergency
response management, basic knowledge and drills about
firefighting and emergency rescue, as well as health and safety
knowhow related to work operations.

A.The Company, through the periodical convention of
labor-management meetings, establishes a communication
platform for labor and management, enhances employee’s
participation and assurance in company policies and develops
smooth interaction in order to achieve the goal that labor and
management share one mind and create a win-win situation.

B. All information on rules, systems and benefits of the Company
and employees are announced on the internal website so that
employees are aware of their rights. In addition, a fully
dedicated unit places daily important news of the Company on
the web pages for employees to look up anytime in order to
understand the latest industrial news and important news of the
Company.

C. The Bank also irregularly announces the Company major
changes in operation through email boxes so that employees can
receive instant information.

In response to the rapidly changing international financial

environment and in accordance with corporate business strategies,

the Bank is devoted to nurturing talents for business development
and fortifying comprehensive organization competency.

Considering employee’s career development, the Bank furnish

employees with diverse learning resources, including orientation

training, managerial competency training for supervisor, internal
instructor training, legally training, license consultancy, general
competency, healthy lifestyle workshops and seminars, and
trainings provided by external institutions. Additionally, through
development mechanism such as senior employees offering
consultancy, attending meetings and participating in projects and
job rotation to nurture multifaceted financial talents and elevate
their professional capabilities and legal compliance so that more
thorough and professional service can be offered to clients and
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Implementation

Disclosure:

Did the Bank disclose vital
and accountable CSR
information on its website and
Market Observation Post
System?

Item
Yes | No Summary
advancethe business expansion and performance growth.
2014 Education and Training
Avg. training Avg.
Type CTo'cal Total Hours |Total number| hours per | training per
ourse ( Notel) of persons erson erson
( Note 2) Note 3)
Internal 177 96,713.5 34,340 37 13.1
External 356 10,748 1,006 4.1 0.4
Total 533 107,461.5 35,346 41.1 13.5
Note 1:Total Hours = X (Total course hours*number of participants)
Note 2:Avg. training hours per person= Total Hours+ Total Employees
Note 3:Avg. training per person = Total number of persons +Total employees

(6) Did the Bank develop v (6) A. To fully serve the Bank duty in the confidentiality of customers’
policies and complaint personal information, the Bank developed Guidelines on
procedures for consumer Consumer Protection, Personal Information Protection Policies
rights protection on research and related Regulations. Meanwhile, the bank has not only
and development, disclosed Privacy Protection Statement and the measures for the
procurement, production, confidentiality of customer data on its website, but also executed
operation and service all the group’s confidentiality measures for the personal
processes? information to shield customers’ privacy and advance personal

information security.
B. The Bank uses the following avenues and procedures to handle
customer complaints:
a. Customer Feedback Forms are placed in the business hall of
business units.
b. The Bank’s Hotline: 0800-688-168.
c. E-mail: service@yuanta.com
d. As soon as any complaint is made by consumers, according
units will be instantly informed for response while case
status and responses will stay fully controlled.

(7) Did the Bank conform its v (7) The Bank’s marketing acyivities of all products and services are in
marketing, products and conformity with according regulations.
services to regulations and
international principles?

(8) Did the Bank evaluate the v | (8) The Bank, up to now, has not initiated the evaluation on suppliers’
suppliers’ past records for past records for influencing on the environment and the society
influencing environment prior to the Bank’s relationship establishment with them.
and society prior to the
relationship establishment?

(9) Did the agreement signed v | (9) Currently the Bank has not signed any agreement with the suppliers
between the bank and its stipulating that the Bank may suspend or terminate the contract in
suppliers stipulate that the case of the suppler’s violation of its corporate social
Bank may suspend or responsibilities.
terminate the contract
should the suppler be
involved any violation of its
corporate social
responsibilities?

4. Enhance Information v (1)The Bank has disclosed information through its parent company

Yuanta Financial Holdings website and Market Observation Post
System.
(2) Yuanta Financial Holdings, the Banks’ parent company, has
produced Corporate Social Responsibility Report to disclose its
performance on Corporate Social Responsibility.
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Implementation

Item
Yes

No

Summary

5. If the Bank has established corporate social responsibility principles based on “Corporate Social Responsibility
Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies”, please describe any discrepancy between the

principles and their implementation:
None.

6. Other important information to facilitate better understanding of the Company’s corporate social responsibility
practices (e.g., systems and measures that the company has adopted with respect to environmental protection,
community participation, contribution to society, service to society, social and public interests, consumer rights
and interests, human rights, safety and health, other corporate social responsibilities and activities, and the status

of implementation.):

For further details please view our corporate and parent company Yuanta Financial Holdings website.

7. If the Bank’s products or corporate social responsibility reports have met the assurance standards of relevant

certification institutions, they should state so below:

None.
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(4) The Bank’s Implementation of Ethical Corporate Management and Practices:

Implementation
Item
Yes | No Summary
1. Develop ethical
corporate management
policies and solutions:
(1) Did the Bank clearly v (1)
express its ethical A. In compliance with Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
corporate Principles for Yuanta Financial Holding and Operational Procedures
management policies of Ethical Corporate Management and Code of Conduct for Yuanta
in regulations and Financing Holding, the Bank has established good corporate
external documents governance, risk management mechanism and complete internal
and the promise made regulations to prevent unethical conduct and create an operational
by Board of Directors environment for sustainable development.
and Management to B. To fully carry out the commitment of the Board and the management
fully execute these to operation policies, the Bank designated a responsible unit for
policies? according affairs and periodically report its progress to the Board of
Directors.
(2) Did the Bank develop | 2)
programs against A. In addition to Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
unethical conduct, Principles for Yuanta Financial Holding and Operational Procedures
including the detailed of Ethical Corporate Management and Code of Conduct for Yuanta
operating procedures, Financing Holding, the Bank has developed Code of Work and
conduct guidance, Standards on Ethical Conduct in order that the employees and the
penalty against employer are both devoted to the establishment of business ethics
violation and the and business morality. Directors and managers are also required to
dispute system, and set good examples of fully compliance with ethical principles in
also fully execute order to nurture the ethical and sincere corporate culture.
these programs? B. The labor contract that the Bank and all of its staff signed include the
agreement of confidentiality, which stipulates that employees shall
shoulder full obligation for confidentiality of the authorized services,
tasks, documents and customers’ data. Unless stipulated or approved,
no disclosure is permitted. The same procedure shall be followed
after employees left jobs. No browse or summarization of reports and
documents unrelated to according duties are permitted.

C. The Bank developed reward and penalty policies stipulating that any
employee of material violation against ethical conduct shall be
discharged or dismissed.

D. The Bank set up Human Resource Evaluation Committee for
reviewing employee reward and penalty cases and disputes.

(3)Did the Bank take v (3)The Bank, in conformity with “Procedures for Ethical Management and

preventive measure
against operation
activities involving
highly risky unethical
conduct stipulated in
Section 2, Article 7,
Corporate
Management Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies and other
business scopes?

Guidelines for Conduct” of Yuanta Financial Holdings, adopt the
following preventive measures against business activities with relatively
high unethical risks, such as procurement:

A.

The Bank regulates that all employees shall not exploit their
authority to seek illegal interest and receive preferential treatment,
endowment, rebates, peculation of public money and any other
illegal interest.

. The Bank developed “External Donation Procedures” to be the

provision of political donations, charity donation or sponsorship. All
donation and sponsorship requires approval from the authorized
executives, which complies with the corresponding laws and the
internal procedure.
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Implementation

internal and external
training on ethical
management?

Item
Yes | No Summary
2. Fully execute ethical

corporate management:

(1) Did the Bank v (1) Before the Bank signs contracts of suppliers, the authorized divisions
evaluate ethics execute regulated evaluation and explain the Bank’s ethical strategies
records of its clients and according regulations. Proper examination procedures are
and sign any conducted according to The Inspection Sheet of Purchase Contract
agreement stipulating Signing Procedures. These procedures include signing Declaration
ethical conduct? Letter of Ethics Promise by suppliers, looking up any records of

unethical conduct on website of Judicial Yuan, and specifying clauses of
ethical conduct in the contract. In addition, transactions and
procurement requires the inquiry of the stakeholder database to confirm
if the supplier is a stakeholder of the company shall be confirmed
through Civil Service of Doc, MOEA to fully inspect the business ethics
of the trading partners and avoid transactions with any company with
unethical records.

(2) Did the Bank set up v (2)Yuanta Financial Holdings plans to establish Ethical Management
dedicated units for Committee in 2015. The Bank will comply with this plan and set up
business ethical designated units subordinate to Board of Directors. Currently the Bank
management designated Internal Audit Dept., Business Management Dept., Human
subordinate to Board Resource Dept., Administration & Facilities Management Dept., Legal
of Directors and Affairs Depts. and Compliance Affairs Dept. as responsible units for
report the said units’ procedures of corporate ethical management and have Business
performance Management Dept. summarily report to the Board the corporate
periodically? governance and the performance of ethical management for the previous

year.

(3) Did the Bank develop | v 3)
policies against A.Organizational Rules of Audit Committee, Principles on Ethical
conflicts of interest, Conduct and according regulations are fully complied regarding
provides proper avoidance of corporate personnel on conflict of interests, divulgence
declaration channels of commercial secrets, forbiddance of internal trading and the
and fully execute agreement of confidentiality.
these policies? B.It is regulated that critical financial transaction involving stakeholders

shall be approved by Board of Directors. The stakeholder query
system has also been established to fully ensure that transactions
involving stakeholders shall not be more preferable to counterparts.

(4) Has the Bank, to fully | v 4)
execute ethical A. In accordance with The Banking Act of The Republic of China,
management, Securities and Exchange Act, Company Act , Business Entity
established effective Account Act, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
accounting and Reports by Public Ban, International Financial Reporting Standards
internal audit systems (IFRS) endorsed by FSC, International Accounting Standards (IAS),
and conduct and Interpretations developed by the International Financial
periodical auditing by Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) or the former Standing
the internal audit unit Interpretations Committee (SIC) and in reference to Accounting
or appoint accountants System Models for the Banking Industry and Practical Banking and
to conduct such audit? Accounting Procedures made by ~Bankers' Association of R.O.C, the

Bank has developed the corresponding accounting system.

B. According to the audit report issued by internal audit Dept., there is
no violation against Operational Procedures of Ethical Corporate
Management and Code of Conduct for Yuanta Financial Holdings of
the Bank in 2014.

(5)Did the Bank v (5)To fulfill ethical management and carry it out through daily operation,
periodically host ethics principles and according internal and external regulations are

elaborated in the pre-job training of newcomers. For current employees,
training on corporate social responsibility (including corporate ethics,
anti-bribery, and anti-corruption propaganda) is held every year in hope
for deepen ethics into daily operation.
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Implementation

Item
Yes | No Summary
3. Operation of the

whistle-blowing

mechanism:

(1) Did the Bank developa| v (1) The Bank developed reward policies and set up multiple channels for
clear whistle-blowing employees to file complaints and report, The Employee Suggestion
and reward mechanism, Mailbox is a platform of the conversation between labors and the
establish convenient employer and of employee complaints. The internal website also details
channels for the the complaint and reporting channels and responsible units and personnel.
reporters and designate
appropriate dedicated
personnel for persons
being reported?

(2) Did the Bank develop | v 2)3)
standards of procedures A.According to Ethical management Guidelines of Yuanta Financial
and confidentiality Holdings, the Bank provides the legitimate whistle-blowing channel
mechanism on the and keeps the identity of the reporter and the content of the cases
investigation of confidential. The Bank stipulated the penalty and dispute system
reported cases? against violation of ethical management and instantly discloses the

(3) Did the Bank execute v information including position titles and names of violators, dates of
measures to protect violation, contents of violation, and responsive procedures on the
reporters from internal website.

improper treatment B.According to Yuanta Financial Holdings Procedures for Ethical

arising from Management and Guidelines for Conduct, the Bank integrated ethical
whistle-blowing? management with employee performance appraisal and human resources
policies to set up a clear and effective reward and dispute system. Any
employee of material violation against ethical conduct shall be discharged
or dismissed according to the external and internal regulations.

4. Enhance information

disclosure:
Did the Bank disclose v Information in respect of ethical management is disclosed in the Annual
the content of principles Report on the Bank’s website.

of ethical management
and its performance on
website and Market
Observation Post
System?

5. If the Bank has developed its practice principles of ethical management in accordance with Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies, please explicate its implementation
and any deviation from the principles:

The Bank fully complies with regulation and conducts management according to Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles and Operational Procedures and Code of Conduct for Yuanta Financial
Holding.

6. Other important information enabling better understanding to the Bank’s implementation of ethical corporate
management (such as the Bank reviews and amends its practice principles of ethical corporate management.):

The Bank has developed The Inspection Sheet of Purchase Contract Signing Procedures to require suppliers
present the Declaration Letter of Ethics Promise for the contract signing. In addition, the Bank inquires, on the
website of Judicial Yuan if there is any public record of unethical conduct in bribery or illegal political donation
for any involving supplier and incorporates clauses and matters on the compliance with ethical management are
embedded in the contract.
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III. Fund Raising and Operational Highlights

1. Capital and Shares

(1) Sources of Capital:
Unit:NT$1,000, thousand shares ; Base Date: January 31, 2015

Issue Authorized Capital Paid-in Capital Remarks
Date of Issue . .
price Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of Capital
December 2002 $10 1,211,514 12,115,136 1,211,514 12,115,136
Capital decrease to make up for
December 2003 $10 1,050,000 10,500,000 1,050,000 10,500,000
loss of 161,514 thousand shares
Private pl t of 300,000
February 2004 | $10 | 1,350,000 | 13,500,000 | 1,350,000 | 13,500,000 | orc Prcemento
thousand shares
Capitalizati f ings, 50,000
July 2004 $10 | 1,400,000 | 14,000,000 | 1,400,000 | 14,000,000 | P #atiom Of CAIngs
thousand shares
Capitalization of earnings,
100,000 thousand shares, and
July 2005 $10 1,800,000 18,000,000 1,800,000 18,000,000 .
private placement of 300,000
thousand shares.
Capital decrease to make up for
1 400,000 th d sh
October 2007 | $10 | 2,400,000 | 24,000,000 | 2,400,000 | 24,000,000 | > O *70 FAOUSANC SHALES,
and private placement of
1,000,000 thousand shares
March 2008 $10 | 2200000 | 22,000,000 | 2,200,000 | 22,000,000 |C2Pital decrease to make up for
T
are T U T T loss of 200,000 thousand shares
March 2009 S10 | 2,200,000 | 22,000,000 | 1874500 | 18,745,090 | 2Pal decrease to make up for
arc
T U Y T loss of 325,491 thousand shares
Private pl t of 275,491
March 2009 $15 | 2,200,000 | 22,000,000 | 2,150,000 | 21,500,000 | o PrACCMENLORSE,
thousand shares
Capitalization of earnings,
June 2010 $10 | 2,200,000 | 22,000,000 | 2,181,134 | 21,811,335
31,134 thousand shares
Capitalizati f i
June 2011 $10 | 2,500,000 | 25,000,000 | 2273313 | 22,733,131 | Pralization ofearnings,
92,179 thousand shares
Private pl t 0of 237,500
November 2011 | $16 | 2,700,000 | 27,000,000 | 2,510,813 | 25,108,131 | o Pracementorass,
thousand shares
Capitalizati f i
June 2012 $10 | 2,700,000 | 27,000,000 | 2,622,983 | 26,220,835 | U 1#allon Of CATIINES,
112,170 thousand shares
Private placement of 873,348
September 2012 | $13.74 | 3,500,000 | 35,000,000 3,496,331 34,963,314
thousand shares
Capitalization of earnings,
J 2013 10 3,650,000 | 36,500,000 3,649,693 36,496,931
une 3 T T T T 153,362 thousand shares
Capitalization of earnings,
June 2014 $10 | 3,800,000 | 38,000,000 | 3,769,049 | 37,690,490
119,356 thousand shares

Unit: thousand shares ; Base Date: January 31, 2015

Authorized Capital
Remark

Types of shares

Outstanding Shares

Unissued Shares

Total

Common Shares

3,769,049

30,951

3,800,000

Public offering
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(2) Shareholder structure:

Unit: thousand shares ; Base Date

: January 31, 2015

Shareholder . . Foreign
~~slructure Coeminsm .FI??nt(flal . ?311? Individuals | Institute and Total
Quantity agencies institutions institutions others
Persons 0 1 0 0 0 1
Shares held 0 3,769,049 0 0 0 3,769,049
(shares)
Shareholding ratio 0 100% 0 0 0 100%
(%)
(3) Distribution of equity:
Face value $10 per share
Unit: thousand shares ; Base Date: January 31, 2015
: Number of . N
Shareholding category shareholders Shares held Shareholding ratio (%)
1,000,001 and above 1 3,769,049 100%
Total 1 3,769,049 1009
(4) List of major shareholders:
Unit: thousand shares ; Base Date: January 31, 2015
Vi el G s Shares held Shareholding ratio (%)
Yuanta Financial Holdings 3,769,049 100%

(5) Market Price, Book Value, Earnings and Dividends Per Share, and the Relevant
Information Over the Most Recent two years:

Y J 31,2015
ear 2013 2014 B

Item (Note 2)

Highest Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
Market Price/Share |Lowest Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Average Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Before distribution NT$12.67 NT$13.55 NT$13.68
Book Value/Share — S 5 5

After distribution NT$12.67 NT$13.55 Not applicable

Weighted average shares

(thousand shares) 3,769,049 3,769,049 3,769,049
EPS b Before adjustment | NT$0.84 NTS1.21 NT$0.11
After adjustment NT$0.81 NT$1.21 Not applicable

Cash dividends — NTS$0.32 Not applicable
Dividend/Share .. By earnings NT$0.33 NTS$0.61 Not applicable

Stock dividends -
(NT$/Share) By capital surplus — — Not applicable

Accumulated unpaid dividends - - -

P/E ratio Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
Return on Dividend vield - - )
investment 1viaend yie Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Cash dividend yield Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Note 1: As of the annual report publishing date, earning distribution for 2014 has not been resolved by the shareholders’ meeting.
Note 2: The preliminary financial data ending January 31, 2015 were prepared by the bank.
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2. Financial Debentures and Capital Utilization Plan

(1) Issuance of Financial Debentures:

approval document No.

Dated April 29, 2010

Dated April 25,2011

Type of financial o . « . 2" term financial debentures
1** term financial debentures 2010(1* term financial debentures 2011
debentures 2011
Date of approval & Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-09900149260|Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10000110840|Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10000110840

Dated April 25,2011

Date of issuance June 10, 2010 June 27,2011 August 22,2011
Par value NT$10,000,000 NT$10,000,000 NT$10,000,000
Issue and trading venue Taipei City Taipei City Taipei City
Currency NTS$ NT$ NT$

Issuing price

Issued at par value

Issued at par value

Issued at par value

Total amount

NTS$5 billion

NT$2.45 billion

NT$2.35 billion

Interest rate

2.3%

1.75%

1.85%

Duration: 7 years

Duration: 7 years

Duration: 7 years

Duration Maturity: June 10, 2017 Maturity: June 27, 2018 Maturity: August 22, 2018

Priorit Unsecured subordinated Unsecured subordinated Unsecured subordinated
Y financial debentures financial debentures financial debentures

Guarantor None None None

Trustee None None None

Underwriter None None None

Certification attorney

Tsar & Tsai Law Firm
Janice Lin; YvonneLiu

Tsar & Tsai Law Firm
Janice Lin; YvonneLiu

Tsar & Tsai Law Firm
Janice Lin; YvonneLiu

Certification CPA

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
James Huang

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
James Huang

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
James Huang

Certification financial
Institution

None

None

None

Repayment

Repayment in a lump sum upon
maturity

Repayment in a lump sum upon
maturity

Repayment in a lump sum upon
maturity

Outstanding balance

NTS$5 billion

NT$2.45 billion

NT$2.35 billion

Paid-in capital for previous
year

NT$21,500,000 thousand

NT$21,811,335 thousand

NT$21,811,335 thousand

Net value upon final
account in the previous
year

NT$23,649,799 thousand

NT$24,812,541 thousand

NT$24,812,541 thousand

Performance None None None
Terms of redemption or
P None None None

early repayment
Terms and conditions of

. None None None
conversion and exchange
Restrictions None None None

Capital utilization plan

To increase capital adequacy ratio
and enrich working capital

To increase capital adequacy ratio
and enrich working capital

To increase capital adequacy ratio
and enrich working capital

Ratio of reported issuing
debt and balance of

type

outstanding debt to the net 62.58% 70.11% (Notel,2,3) 79.58% (Notel,2,3)
book value in the previous

fiscal year (%)

Eligible entity capital and Yes, Tier 11 Yes, Tier 11 Yes, Tier 11

Credit rating organization,
date of rating and rating
score

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twAA -
(Debentures rating)

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twAA -
(Debentures rating)

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twAA -
(Debentures rating)
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Type of financial debentures

3" term financial debentures A 2011

3" term financial debentures B 2011

Date of approval & approval document No.

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10000110840
dated April 25, 2011

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10000110840
dated April 25, 2011

Date of issuance

October 27, 2011

October 27,2011

Par value NT$10,000,000 NT$10,000,000
Issue and trading venue Taipei City Taipei City
Currency NT$ NT$

Issuing price

Issued at par value

Issued at par value

Total amount

NT$0.7 billion

NT$4.5 billion

Interest rate

1.80%

1.95%

Duration: 7 years

Duration: 10 years

Durati . .
uration Maturity: October 27, 2018 Maturity: October 27, 2021
Priori Unsecured subordinated Unsecured subordinated
riority financial debentures financial debentures
Guarantor None None
Trustee None None
Underwriter None None

Certification attorney

Tsar & Tsai Law Firm

Janice Lin; YvonneLiu

Tsar & Tsai Law Firm
Janice Lin; YvonneLiu

Certification CPA

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
James Huang

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
James Huang

Certification financial Institution

None

None

Repayment

Repayment in a lump sum upon maturity

Repayment in a lump sum upon maturity

Outstanding balance

NTS$0.7 billion

NT$4.5 billion

Paid-in capital for previous year

NT$21,811,335 thousand

NT$21,811,335 thousand

Net value upon final account in the previous

NT$24,812,541 thousand

NT$24,812,541 thousand

year
Performance None None
Terms of redemption or early repayment None None
Terms and conditions of conversion and

None None
exchange
Restrictions None None

Capital utilization plan

To increase capital adequacy ratio and
enrich working capital

To increase capital adequacy ratio and
enrich working capital

Ratio of reported issuing debt and balance of

outstanding debt to the net book value in the 80.39% (Note2,3) 80.39% (Note2,3)
previous fiscal year (%)
Eligible entity capital and type Yes, Tier II Yes, Tier 11

Credit rating organization, date of rating and
rating score

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twAA -
(Debentures rating)

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twAA-
(Debentures rating)

Notel :

debentures matured on August 24, 2011 and have been repaid in full.

Note?2 :

The debentures matured on December 22, 2011 and have been repaid in full.

Note3 :

debentures matured on December 27, 2011 and have been repaid in full.
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Before the issuance, the Bank had an unsecured subordinated financial debentures (95-1) outstanding at NT$5 billion. The
Before the issuance, the Bank had an unsecured subordinated financial debentures (95-2-1) outstanding at NT$1.8 billion.

Before the issuance, the Bank had an unsecured subordinated financial debentures (95-2-2) outstanding at NT$3 billion. The




Type of financial
debentures

1*" term financial debentures A
2014

1** term financial debentures B
2014

2" term financial debentures
2014

Date of approval &
approval document No.

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10300180640
Dated June 27, 2014

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10300180640
Dated June 27, 2014

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10300180640
Dated June 27, 2014

Date of issuance

September 4, 2014

September 4, 2014

October 29, 2014

Par value NT$10,000,000 NT$10,000,000 NT$10,000,000
Issue and trading venue Taipei City Taipei City Taipei City
Currency NTS$ NT$ NT$

Issuing price

Issued at par value

Issued at par value

Issued at par value

Total amount

NT$1.6 billion

NT$4.7 billion

NT$1.7 billion

Interest rate

1.80%

2.00%

1.85%

Duration: 7 years

Duration: 10 years

Duration: 7 years

Duration Maturity: September 4, 2021 Maturity: September 4, 2024 Maturity: October 29, 2021
Priorit Unsecured subordinated Unsecured subordinated Unsecured subordinated
Y financial debentures financial debentures financial debentures
Guarantor None None None
Trustee None None None
Underwriter None None None
Chien Yeh Law Offices Chien Yeh Law Offices Chien Yeh Law Offices

Certification attorney

Hermes Kung

Hermes Kung

Hermes Kung

Certification CPA

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
Ellen Kuo

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
Ellen Kuo

Pricewaterhouse Coopers
Ellen Kuo

Certification financial
Institution

None

None

None

Repayment

Repayment in a lump sum upon
maturity

Repayment in a lump sum upon
maturity

Repayment in a lump sum upon
maturity

Outstanding balance

NT$1.6 billion

NT$4.7 billion

NTS$1.7 billion

Paid-in capital for previous
year

NT$36,496,931 thousand

NT$36,496,931 thousand

NT$36,496,931 thousand

Net value upon final
account in the previous
year

NT$46,245,949 thousand

NT$46,245,949 thousand

NT$46,245,949 thousand

Performance None None None
Terms of redemption or
P None None None

early repayment
Terms and conditions of

. None None None
conversion and exchange
Restrictions None None None

Capital utilization plan

To increase capital adequacy ratio
and enrich working capital

To increase capital adequacy ratio
and enrich working capital

To increase capital adequacy ratio
and enrich working capital

Ratio of reported issuing
debt and balance of

outstanding debt to the net 46.06% 46.06% 49.73%
book value in the previous

fiscal year (%)

Eligible entity capital and Yes, Tier I Yes, Tier 1T Yes, Tier IT

type

Credit rating organization,
date of rating and rating
score

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twA +
(Debentures rating)

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twA +
(Debentures rating)

December 12, 2014
Taiwan Ratings: twA +
(Debentures rating)
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(2) Acquisitions or Assignment of Other Financial Institutes:

A. CPA’s opinions on share exchange ratio for mergers and acquisitions or assignment of

B.

other financial institutions for the most recent year: [ None])

Upon the resolution of the Board of Directors on any merger or acquisition of other
financial institution through new share issuance in the recent year and until the date of
publication of the financial statement , the enforcement thereof and basic information of
the merged or acquired financial institutions shall be disclosed: [ None])

(3) Implementation Capital Utilization Plan

A.

B.

With approval from the authority, the Bank issued subordinated debentures totaling NT$5
billion on April 29, 2010, issued subordinated debentures of NT$10 billion on April 25,
2011, issued subordinated debentures of NT$8 billion on June 27,2014 and issued foreign
currency financial debentures of NT$5 billion (equivalent to USD or CNY) on January 14,
2015. The Bank expect to issue subordinated debentures in order to enhance capital
adequacy ratio and fulfill capital demand for loans and financial operation, and reduce
liquidity risk.

As of January 31, 2015 the Bank issued debentures totaling NT$23 billion Applying
amount and the according execution are itemized as follows:

Date of approval & approval

Total amount Execution
document No.

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-09900149260
dated April 29, 2010 NTS$5 billion capital was executed completely before the

The 1* term financial debentures 2010 were
The subordinated

financial debentures for issued on June 10, 2010 and the applying

deadline.

+ The 2011 1% term financial debentures for
NT$2.45 billion were issued on June 27,
2011.

« The 2011 2™ term financial debentures for

The subordinated NT$2.35 billion were issued on August 22,

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10000110840 2011.
dated April 25,2011

financial debentures for

. rd B
NTS10 billion The 2011 3™ term financial debentures A for

NT$0.7 billion were issued on October 27,
2011.

« The 2011 3™ term financial debentures B
for NT$4.5 billion were issued on October
27,2011.

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10300180640
dated June 27, 2014

« The 2014 1™ term financial debentures A for
NT$1.6 billion were issued on September
4,2014.

The subordinated + The 2014 1* term financial debentures B for

financial debentures for NT$4.7 billion were issued on September

NT$8 billion 4,2014.

« The 2014 2™ term financial debentures for
NT$1.7 billion were issued on October 29,
2014.

Jin-Kuan-Yin-kong-10400000510 financial debentures of
dated January 14, 2015 NTS$S5 billion (equivalent

The foreign currency
Not yet been executed

to USD or CNY)
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3. Business Overview

(1) Business Performance for 2013~2014:

A. Deposit:
Unit: NT$ in million ; %
v 2014 2013 Comparison with 2013
ear
| PR | | Pogrtion | Ao | e

(decrease) | Proportion (%)

Checking deposits 4,830 0.83 3,938 0.79 892 22.65

Demand deposits 78,102 13.49 62,599 12.62 15,503 24.77

Demand saving deposits 207,098 35.77 185,470 37.38 21,628 11.66

Time deposits 184,213 31.81 148,432 29.92 35,781 24.11

Time savings deposits 104,821 18.10 95,685 19.29 9,136 9.55

Total 579,064 100.00 496,124 100.00 82,940 16.72

Note: The deposits include NTD and foreign currency deposits but not the deposits from the Central Bank and Other

Banks.
B. Loan:
Unit: NT$ in million ; %
2014 2013 Comparison with 2013
Year
[tem Amount ProE)(%r)non Amount PI'O‘E)(%I‘)UOII ﬁlrcrigg;let ((Iiréggzzz)
(decrease)  [Proportion (%)
Corporate Loans 286,073 63.45 256,787 63.82 29,286 11.40
General corporate loans 191,567 42.49 172,567 42.89 19,000 11.01
i)?ﬁll'and'medlum business 93,873 20.82 83,312 20.70 10,561 12.68
Government loans — — - - - —
Delinquent 633 0.14 908 0.23 (275) (30.29)
Consumer Loans 164,819 36.55 145,598 36.18 19,221 13.20
Mortgage 142,021 31.50 126,883 31.53 15,138 11.93
Car loans 18,513 4.11 14,877 3.70 3,636 24.44
Consumer unsecured loans 973 0.21 1,053 0.26 (80) (7.60)
Stock-Secured Loan 2,986 0.66 2,435 0.60 551 22.63
Delinquent 140 0.03 235 0.06 95) (40.43)
Other (Note) 186 0.04 115 0.03 71 (61.74)
Total 450,892 100.00 402,385 100.00 48,507 12.05
Note: Including certificate of deposit loan, composite overdraft.
C. Foreign Exchange:
Unit: USS$ 1,000 ; %
. 2014 2013 Comparison with 2013
ear
Item Amount Prol(ao/oor)tlon Amount PrO](i)%r)thIl gg}gg?é (Eir::%rrgz:g)
(decrease) |Proportion (%)
Import business 1,926,802 5.82 1,384,974 5.12 541,828 39.12
Export business 872,199 2.63 551,895 2.04 320,304 58.04
Outward Remittance 14,909,193 45.01 | 13,121,852 48.47 1,787,341 13.62
Inward Remittance 15,418,380 46.54 | 12,012,967 44.37 3,405,413 28.35
Total 33,126,574 100.00 | 27,071,688 100.00 6,054,886 22.37
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D. Trust Business:

Unit: NT$ 1,000 ; %

. Comparison with 2013
ear
Item 2014 2013 Amount increase | Increase (decrease)
(decrease) proportion (%)
Total balance of trust assets 113,761,789 (Note 1)| 102,345,751 (Note 2) 11,416,038 11.15
Other consigned items 4,086,570 4,094,310 (7,740) (0.19)
Total revenue of trust business
service fee 871,120 716,099 155,021 21.65
Scale of assets under custody of
investment insurance policy 1,229,363 1,645,510 (416,147) (25.29)
The custody asset in
discretionary investment account 4,724,376 2,100,341 2,624,035 124.93
Scale of assets under custody of
foreign investment 22,809,139 26,184,968 (3,375,829) (12.89)
Other property custody — — — —
Scale of assets under custody of
business guarantee bond 3,440,000 3,730,000 (290,000) (7.77)
Custodian service fee income 43,681 56,430 (12,749) (22.59)
Amount of
Certification certification 14,465,701 16,385,133 (1,919,432) (11.71)
of securities | Revenue of
certification 2,135 2,593 (458) (17.66)
service charges

Note 1: including OBU trust property in the amount of NT$1,786 million.
Note 2: including OBU trust property in the amount of NT$1,445 million.

E. Credit card:

Unit: NT$ in million ; %

Year Comparison with 2013
2014 2013 -
Item Amount increase |Increase (decrease)
(decrease) Proportion (%)
Number of cards issued (card) 1,007,442 920,875 86,567 9.40
Card in force (card) 308,050 251,968 56,082 22.26
Value of transactions (NT$ in million ) 11,535 9,622 1,913 19.88
Revolving balance (NT$ in million ) 474 521 47) (9.02)
F. Investment:
Unit: :NT$ in million ; %
Year Comparison with 2013
2014 2013 -
Item Amount increase |Increase (decrease)
(decrease) Proportion (%)
Bond trading volume 122,978 123,774 (796) (0.64)
Bill trading volume 212,025 182,903 29,122 15.92
Unit: US$ in million ; %
Year Comparison with 2013
Item 2014 2013 Amount increase |Increase (decrease)
(decrease) Proportion (%)
Spot transaction 26,202 27913 (1,711) (6.13)
Forward exchange transaction 5,283 4,289 994 23.18
Foreign exchange SWAP 27,828 26,057 1,771 6.80
Option transaction 57,034 61,065 (4,031) (6.60)

57



G. E-Banking: Unit: in thousands

Year Comparison with 2013
Item 2014 2013 Amount increase | Increase (decrease)
(decrease) proportion (%)
Analysis of Egiﬁfz:s‘et banking 3,171 2,878 293 10.18
E-banking Total mobile banki
transactions | -0tal mobile banking 1,468 818 650 79.46
transactions

(2) 2014 Operating Plan:

The Banks have to expand its business and market share with cautious risk control and

fortify their comprehensive competency through restructuring asset and profit.

The Bank’s business plan in 2014 is summarized as follows:

A.Business Development:

a. According to the trend of financial markets and customer demands, the Bank will

C

launch deposit products, services and agency service in New Taiwan Dollar and
foreign currencies in order to acquire potential customers and cement the Bank’s base

for future development.

. For corporate banking, the Bank will strengthen the development of small and

medium enterprises and syndicated loans to raise the profitability and advance the
ability of developing and offeringof various derivatives to elevate the scale of TMU.
To escalate the scale and profit of consumer loans, the Bank will focus on premium
mortgages with collateral in urban areas, car loans cooperated with automakers, and
further promoting stock-secured loans.

For wealth management business, the bank will establish comprehensive teams to
conduct services according to customer’s assets and attributes. Also, the Bank will
furnish exclusive and advice on optimal asset allocation through diverse products and
effectively utilize scale economies effect of the Bank’s branchs through full

marketing.

B. Risk Management: The Bank will enhance the control in the credit, market and

operational risk by building the risk model and risk data mart. The Bank will also

scrutinize the structure of industrial supply chains and the clients’ cash flow and their

top-down transactions in order to minimize the Bank’s credit risk.

C.Channel Management: The deployment of physical channels will focus on Taipei urban

areas. After established one new branch in Taipei City and another in New Taipei City in

the first quarter of 2014, the bank will complete the deployment of 88 branches.
E-Commerce Department will be established to dedicate the Bank’s full effort to the

development of electronic channels, expedite the integration, promotion and management

of online banking, mobile banking, Third-Party Payment and QR Code mobile payment

in order to maximize the efficiency of the business development and seize market

58



opportunities.

D.Personnel Training: The Bank will reinforce the pre-job and on-the-job training to

better the personnel competence and realize the compliance of internal control. The job

rotation system will be constructed to nurture multi-talented personnel and solidify the

basis for sustainable development.

(3) Research and Development

To cope with the globalization of financial market, we will make aggressive and

practical concerns and grasp the movements of the financial industry, in order to facilitate

business expansion, alert to risk, integrate marketing, enhance customer satisfaction, and

improve profit-making ability. The future research and development plans include:

A.Banking service research and development:

a. To utilize business opportunities arising from deregulation of electronic payment and

the change of domestic consumption habits, actively promote mobile credit cards,
mobile ATM cards, QR Code mobile payment, third party payment and value adding
businesses through market events, and elevate convenience and security of usage to

boost the utilization ratio.

b. Developing equity-linked structure notes to expand the product line of TMU service.

c. Establish mobile financial advisor system to enable financial advisors to serve more

clients dynamically and provide instant financial consultancy through mobile devices.

B. Risk Management:

a.

Fortify the development and application of Bank’s credit risk parameters and model,
including the establishment of the expected loss model of IFRS 9.

. Establish and fine-tune the personal loan application scorecard model, credit card

application scorecard model, the car loan application scorecard model.

. Build the automated risk control reporting and analysis platform through utilization of

the risk data mart to maximize the efficiency for establishment of the credit risk model

and the thoroughness of credit risk analysis.

. Persistently strengthen the risk pricing mechanism by developing rating models for

various businesses on the credit risk pricing framework (cost, expense, risk, and return)

for the quantitative assessment of risk cost.

. Refer to the competitors or external data and managerial techniques, and persistently

advance the quality and quantity of the Bank’s loss database to plan the research on
the quantitative model of Bank’s operational risk loss database.

Perfect the operational risk indicator platform to continuously expand information
collection channels through integrated definition and solidify the effectiveness on
systematic integration of the Bank’s risk indication management through introduction

of operational risk indicators.

. Strengthen the Bank’s response to and compliance with Basel I11.
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h. Fortify the managerial mechanism of capital liquidity risks through calculation of

liquidity coverage ratio.

C.IT research and development projects:

In response to the Bank’s business strategies and the future business goals, in

addition to persistently fortify IT infrastructure, system integration and optimization,

strengthen risk management and maximize operation efficiency, the Bank will start to

reconstruct the teller system, ATM, online banking, and mobile banking to further its

marketing orientation and build the service of comprehensive channels in order to

achieve the marketing and service of Any Time, Any Where, Any Device. Meanwhile, the

Bank plans to research and develop online identity verification technology, including

new-generation physical tokens (such as the password generator and certificates etc.) and

recognition of biological specificities (such as fingerprints, face, voice and signature).
(4) The Long-Term and Short-Term Business Plans

A.Short-Term Business Development Plans:

a. Adjust the asset structure and persistently elevate the core profitability.

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

Aggressively expand loan business with low risks but high profitability by targeting
in the market of small-to-mid enterprises, Offshore Business Units and general
consumers. The risks from small-to-mid enterprise can be mitigated through Small
and Medium Enterprise Credit Guarantee Fund of Taiwan. Products will mainly
focus on self-liquidating financing, syndicated loan host, international syndicated
loans, TMU, revolving mortgage loans and consumer unsecured loans.

To elevate fee income from wealth management business, the Bank plan to
effectively expand the number of clients and the scale of asset through establishing
sales teams, advancing professionalism and service quality.

Regarding credit cards to be one of critical payment methods in e-commerce, the
Bank aims to maximize customer satisfaction through issuing co-brander cards and
promoting card usage of different consumption segments in order to raise the
number of valid cards and the amount of transactions and create additional sources
of fee income other than wealth management.

Increase the business scale, profitability and stability of financial operations to

replenish non-interest income.

b. Development strategies for physical and electronic channels.

i.

ii.

Localization strategies will be carried out in physical channels. The Bank aims to
cultivate wealth management and consumer finance clients and plan to establish the
Branches Greeting System to maximize service quality and efficiency of the bank
counter.

The e-channels will be developed with main focuses on mobile banking and mobile
payment, complemented by online banking. Based on client needs, the Bank will

enhance functionality and security to maximize the number of clients and transitions.
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iii.Utilize business opportunities arising from the deregulation of third-party payment
and value-adding service, and the Bank will expand domestic and overseas
cooperative businesses to become the best financial platform for product-selling and
cash flow of clients.

iv.Establish the phone banking system to escalate convenience for client’s transactions.

c. Carry out regulation compliance and risk management and sustain excellent asset
quality.

i. Periodically collect information on the latest changes in financial regulations and
instantly revise bylaws. In addition, through periodically enforcing legal compliance
on self-assessment and appraisal, ensure the completeness of legal compliance.

ii. In response to internationalization strategies, further the collection on financial
regulations of the country where the Bank plans to establish overseas offices.

iii. Relentlessly fortify risk management, perfect every risk rating model and, under the
premise of sustaining asset quality, aggressively promote credit granting service.

iv. Enhance the function of the collection system, reinforce creditor’s right management
and escalate collection efficiency.

B. Long-Term Business Development Plans:

a. Enhance business performance and further ROE and profit contribution per employee.

i. Persistently expand wealth management service, and enhance credit card business
growth to build additional source of fee income.

ii. Adjust financial asset structure and engage in development of financial products to
raise their contribution to non-interest income.

iii. Better efficiency of capital utilization and submit earnings to Yuanta Financial
Holdings.

b. Advance product development and provide professional service to become customer’s
top choice of financial institutions.

i. Master market trend and improve the Bank’s ability to develop new financial
products to satisfy client’s financial needs during different phases.

ii. Establish the customer relation management system to, through cross-selling and
customized service, increase the number of customer-possessed products and
customer retention and raise customer’s general contribution.

c¢. Penetrate the domestic market and actively explore the overseas market.

i. In the domestic market, the Bank will integrate 88 business locations with multiple
e-channels, including ATM, online banking and mobile banking, to sustain customer
relations and found the basis for business development.

ii. Actively evaluate the establishment of overseas locations, and opportunities of equity
participation or M&A to expedite the bank’s internationalization.

iii. Further nurture international talent and encourage employees to strengthen their
foreign language ability and strive for opportunities of overseas visits and advanced

learning.
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(5) Employee Composition:

Year 2013 2014 January 31, 2015
Number of staff 2,299 2,614 2,644
Average age 38.53 38.13 38.15
Average seniority 7.71 7.36 7.37
PhD 0.08 % 0.03 % 0.03 %
Master degree 12.96 % 14.34 % 14.48 %
Education level |  University/ College 82.59 % 81.51 % 81.38 %
1aflo Senior high school 4.24 % 4.01 % 4.00 %
Lower than senior o o o
Mgl 0.13 % 0.11 % 0.11 %
Certificates/Licenses Number of staff | Certificates/Licenses Number of staff
Tt Claatevall 1,998 e 964
Salesperson
Certificates and Financial Knowledge
s A by Trust Salesperson 1,882 and Ethics 1,746
Yuanta : 5 - -
Commercial Llfe1 Insurance 1.825 Financial .Plfmnmg 578
Bank employees Salesperson Specialist
Property Insurance Other Financial
Salesperson 1,442 Certificates/Licenses 6,340
Life Insurance Salesperson to Sell Foreign Currency Receipts and 918
Disbursements Non-investment Insured Goods

(6) Corporate Social Responsibilities and Ethics:

The Bank has been making donations to Yuanta Foundation for social services in
cultural and education fields. Yuanta Foundation centers on Care For Public Welfare with
initiatives on education in four educational approaches: 1. social welfare and education; 2.
fostering of young talent through scholarships and other forms of academic sponsorship
and professional training; 3. promotion of the arts and cultural education.; 4. social security
and law education. A total of 385 events or 7 events per week in average were organized
and dedicated to various charity services in 2014, including 65 self-hosted events, 143
co-hosted events and 177 sponsored events

The Foundation also integrated the extensive network and ample human resources of
Yuanta Financial Holdings to promote volunteer service so that the Foundation can aim at
wide targets and scope and generate stronger power for its service. During 2014, the
Foundation even expanded the events, such as Yuanta Blissful Day and Volunteer Day, to
accompany hundreds of children from children’s shelters to attend exhibitions. Hundreds
of employees participated in hepatitis prevention as the volunteers to assist as many as
5,000 citizens in the remote areas with free testing.

The Foundation gathers the social service strength and hopes to set an example for
various sectors in the society and encourage them to participate the public welfare events,
so as to fulfill the corporate social responsibility insisted by the Company. In the future, the
Foundation will persistently help more minorities and families in need, as our promise “Let
dreams be not just dreams!”, and build a warmer future for Taiwan.

During 2014, the Bank, to fully perform its corporate social responsibility and
humanity, donated NT$ 2 million to Social Affairs Bureau, Kaohsiung City Government
for its overall plan to help the relief and recovery of the disaster area from gas explosion in
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Cianjeng District, Kaohsiung. In addition, the Bank donated NT$ 25 million to National
Chengchi University for its plans to advance students art-appreciation ability, expand
students’ horizon and creativity, further education of top talents and realize holistic
education.

The Bank also cooperated with charity groups to issue co-brander cards for charitable
donation. For example, for Buddha Card, 1% of the consumption amount will be
appropriated by the Bank to Tathagata Empirical Association, Tathagata School,
Buddhismas donation; for Changhua Fellow Townsmen Association Affinity Card, the
Bank appropriates 0.2% of the consumption amount to Changhua Fellow Townsmen
Association for charity use; for Sung Shan TsuHuei Temple Affinity Card, the Bank
appropriated 0.2% of the consumption amount to Sung Shan TsuHuei Temple for charity
use. It is hoped to feedback the society and fully carry out the Bank’s corporate social
responsibilities.

(7) Employee Welfare :

A. In addition to enrolling employees in labor insurance and national health insurance in
accordance with the government’s laws and regulations, the Bank also enrolled
employees in group insurance, including term life insurance, injury insurance, cancer
insurance, hospitalization insurance and occupational disaster insurance, etc...

B. Established Employees Welfare Committee and stipulated the relevant reimbursement
procedures, such as providing subsidies to events of employee clubs and to the
employee events etc...

C. Provided employees meal reimbursement and children scholarship.

D. Provided preferential interest rates for savings accounts of employees, mortgage loans,
property remodeling loans and consumer loans.

E. Provided employees with Employee Stock Ownership Trust.

(8) IT Development Projects:

A. Hardware and software configuration of major information systems:

The configuration of major information system, including NTD deposit and loan,

domestic remittance, cross-bank transactions, foreign exchange, trust, accounting and

data warehouse etc., are equipped with the hardwares and operation systems of IBM
p-Series, IBM AS/400 I-Series, SUN M5000 and EMC Greenplum.

B. The future development and procurement plans:

In response to the Bank’s business strategies and the future business goals, in addition
to continuously improving the bank’s information infrastructure, internal IT efficiency
and information security; we aggressively optimized the customer-orientation functions
for electronic transactions, in order to support business development, enhance operation
efficiency and improve customer satisfaction. The Bank’s future development plans are
as follows:

a. In conformity with the construction, integration and optimization of the Group’s IT
system, the Bank will develop and construct critical IT projects, including
development of CTI Customer Service Platform, Customer Greeting System, 24
Hour Service of Foreign Exchange System, Credit Card Acquiring System of the
Authorized Stores, Mobile Financial Advisor System, Cross-Border Online
Collection and Payment Platform, Added Value Payment Service, Mobile Banking
Push Service, WebATM Online Collector, ALM/FTP System Upgrade and Liquidity
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Risk Management establish Project, Upgrading Project for the operating system and
hardware of NTD core banking system, Replacement of Core Router Equipment,
Security Platform for Mobile Device management Mechanism, Upgrade of Backup
System, and Security Evaluation of IT System.

. We will improve the Bank’s information security management mechanism and

establish related personal information protection and security measures according to
the Personal Information Protection Act, in order to ensure management of personal
information, and protect the rights and interests of customers in the collection,
processing and use of personal information within the scope of our businesses; and
thereby provide customers with safe and reliable financial and banking services.

. Fortify the system functions of mobile banking, personal internet banking and

corporate internet banking and the transaction safety mechanism in order to perfect
the Bank’s electronic financial service.

. Emergency backup and security measures:

In order to safeguard the smoothness of major system operation, local backup and

remote backup mechanisms are devised for the host of each connectivity system

according to the service features and conduct corresponding fail-over maneuvers to the

system levels. It is not only the responding capability of the trainers, but also the

effectiveness of the backup recovery procedures reviewed. In order to safeguard the

equipment of the system and data storage, the Bank plans the following safety

preventive measures:

a.

Computer room security:

The computer facilities of the Bank are installed with equipment against earthquake,
fire, thunder and disasters. The access control system and the monitoring system are
also well executed to tightly control entry and exit. Vital computer and equipment are
maintained and tested periodically to safeguard the equipment operation.

. Network Security:

i. Firewall:
Critical gateways in the internal network are shielded with Back To Back dual
layer firewall to achieve double defense with different brands of hardware and
software firewalls. Major external websites are setup on the N-tier structure.
While the web server is placed in the DMZ area behind the layer 1 firewall, major
application servers and database servers are placed behind the layer 2 firewall.

ii. IP address protection:
The user terminal of the Bank adopted MAC and IP address blocking system to
protect the internal IP addresses of the Bank from being mistakenly or falsely
used.

iii. Weakness scanning and flaw repair:
Scanned the weakness of servers and automatically fix the system flaws of
personal computers to improve system security.

iv. External service website penetration testing:
Proactively conducted the penetration testing on external e-commerce websites, in
order to identify security issues proactively for protection.
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v. Anti-virus mechanism:
All of personal computers, servers and emails are devised with anti-virus and
anti-spam mail mechanism.

vi.The intrusion detection system:
Establish an intrusion detection system on critical gateways of external websites.
Actively detect hacker’s invasion and attack and have operators instantly
supervise and report such matter 24 hours a day.

vii.The Application Firewall:
Establish the application firewall on critical gateways of the external website.
Actively analyze and filter OSI L4-L7 Internet behavior. For illegal programming
or any penetration and attack against the flaws of the system or programs, the
application firewall will actively quarantine, block and report such matter to
fortify the Internet defense and system security.

viii.Source code security:
Established the inspection mechanism of source code security which automatically
excute the analysis to find hidden flaws and malicious programs during the
development phase of the electronic trading programs in order to avoid the poor
quality programs cause any security concern, such as the attach from hackers to
intensify the program quality and safety.

ix.Monitor the changes of files:
Launch the file changed monitoring system on the e-commerce website to avoid
malicious damages or false information implantation.

X. Mobile Device Management Mechanism:
Strengthen enterprise’ internal management of mobile devices to ensure the data
security through the establishment of Mobile Device Management Mechanism,
including managing mobile device components, enhancing content security for
mobile devices and establishing Internet security mechanisms for mobile devices.
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IV. Financial Information and Risk Management

1. Financial Review 2010~2014

(1) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet for 2012~2014

Unit: NT$1,000

Item

Financial Information (Note 1)

2014 2013 2012

giihfﬁggl(gitfglugﬁin;}l call loans to other banks 92,216,191 92,951,953 82,540,667
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — net 49,411,506 24,375,726 25,919,168
Available-for-sale financial assets — net 34,767,019 31,039,688 52,179,082
Receivables - net 19,085,191 12,332,649 9,393,972
Current income tax assets 3,110,066 3,058,196 2,878,060
Bills discounted and loans — net 445,096,204 397,268,743 375,712,974
Held-to-maturity financial assets 7,277,780 4,955,516 —
Other financial assets — net 38,841,612 26,175,376 7,641
Property and equipment— net 2,087,564 2,149,569 2,372,459
Investment Property — net 306,052 314,808 234,390
Intangible assets 2,067,369 2,058,637 2,184,964
Deferred income tax assets — net 582,573 194,094 194,178
Other assets— net 3,196,095 1,495,054 749,992
Total 698,045,222 598,370,009 554,367,547
Due to Central Bank and other banks 5,681,005 13,072,480 13,070,340
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss — net 5,679,085 2,336,752 1,977,281
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements 8,340,995 — —
Payables 15,824,899 10,326,621 7,994,445
Current income tax liabilities 986,876 325,264 332,460
Deposits and remittances 579,291,319 496,482,959 453,401,765
Financial debentures payable 23,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Other financial liabilities 6,237,906 12,902,996 16,747,503
Provision 1,028,258 736,243 670,381
Deferred income tax liabilities 171,751 209,163 119,218
Other liabilities 729,679 731,582 660,329
Total liabilities Before distribution 646,971,773 552,124,060 509,973,722
After distribution Note 2 552,124,060 509,973,722
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 51,073,449 46,245,949 44,393,825
. Before distribution 37,690,491 36,496,931 34,963,315

Share Capital —
After distribution Note 2 37,690,491 36,496,931
Additional paid-in capital 6,116,883 6,116,883 6,116,883
. . Before distribution 7,494,432 4,240,079 2,752,946

Retained earnings —
After distribution Note 2 3,046,519 1,219,330
Other equity interest (228,357) (607,944) 560,681
Before distribution 51,073,449 46,245,949 44,393,825

Total equity —

After distribution Note 2 46,245,949 44,393,825

Note 1: Starting January 1, 2013, the Company prepares the financial statements in accordance with “Taiwan-IFRSs”,
and to comply with IAS1, the comparative period has been restated. The financial information from 2013 to

2014 was audited by accountants.

Note 2: The distribution of earnings for 2014 has not been approved by the stockholders in 2015.
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(2) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for 2012~2014

Unit: NT$1,000

Financial Information (Note 1)

Year
Item 2014 2013 2012
Interest income 11,121,437 9,798,277 9,175,638
Less : Interest expense 4,162,584 3,682,850 3,414,446
Net interest income 6,958,853 6,115,427 5,761,192
Net non-interest income 4,380,587 3,253,166 2,218,438
Net revenue 11,339,440 9,368,593 7,979,630
Bad debts expense and guarantee liability provision 758,804 720,371 480,790
Operating expenses 5,567,738 5,239,500 5,109,778
Income from continuing operations before income tax 5,012,898 3,408,722 2,389,062
Income tax expense (465,748) (356,517) (329,637)
Net income from continuing operations 4,547,150 3,052,205 2,059,425
Net income 4,547,150 3,052,205 2,059,425
Other comprehensive income(net of tax) 280,350 (1,200,081) 386,334
Total comprehensive income 4,827,500 1,852,124 2,445,759
Net income attributable to parent company 4,547,150 3,052,205 2,059,425
Net income attributable to uncontrolled equity - - -
Comprehensive income attributable to parent company 4,827,500 1,852,124 2,445,759
Comprehensive income attributable to uncontrolled equity — — —
EPS(NTS$) 1.21 0.81 0.66

Note 1: Starting January 1, 2013, the Company prepares the financial statements in accordance with “Taiwan-IFRSs”,
and to comply with IAS1, the comparative period has been restated. The financial information from 2013 to

2014 was audited by accountants.
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(3) Condensed Separate Balance Sheet for 2012~2014

Unit: NT$1,000

Ve Financial Information (Note 1)

Item 2014 2013 2012
]C)iihfﬁgi(gsﬁtfglugﬁin;;}i call loans to other banks 92,216,081 92,951,873 82,540,611
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — net 49,411,506 24,375,726 25,919,168
Available-for-sale financial assets — net 34,764,718 31,037,413 52,177,668
Receivables - net 18,632,661 12,269,178 9,376,347
Current income tax assets 3,109,168 3,057,284 2,878,045
Bills discounted and loans — net 445,096,204 397,268,743 375,712,974
Held-to-maturity financial assets 7,277,780 4,955,516 —
E;mty investments accounted for under the equity method — 670,509 655.121 667,498
Other financial assets — net 38,841,612 25,849,605 7,641
Property and equipment— net 2,087,487 2,149,071 2,369,557
Investment Property — net 306,052 314,808 234,390
Intangible assets 2,067,369 2,058,637 2,184,964
Deferred income tax assets — net 582,403 193,924 193,964
Other assets— net 3,191,959 1,467,868 747,459
Total assets 698,255,509 598,604,767 555,010,286
Due to Central Bank and other banks 5,681,005 13,072,480 13,070,340
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss — net 5,679,085 2,336,752 1,977,281
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements 8,340,995 — -
Payables 15,777,844 10,313,523 7,971,693
Current income tax liabilities 981,147 323,253 324,970
Deposits and remittances 579,560,295 496,750,456 454,075,352
Financial debentures payable 23,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Other financial liabilities 6,237,906 12,902,996 16,747,503
Provision 1,028,258 736,243 670,381
Deferred income tax liabilities 171,751 209,163 119,218
Other liabilities 723,774 713,952 659,723

e, Before distribution 647,182,060 552,358,818 510,616,461

Total liabilities
After distribution Note 2 552,358,818 510,616,461
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 51,073,449 46,245,949 44,393,825
Share Capital Before .disFribl.ltion 37,690,491 36,496,931 34,963,315
After distribution Note 2 37,690,491 36,496,931
Additional paid-in capital 6,116,883 6,116,883 6,116,883
Retained earnings Before .diSFI'ibl'ltiOI‘l 7,494,432 4,240,079 2,752,946
After distribution Note 2 3,046,519 1,219,330
Other equity interest (228,357) (607,944) 560,681
Total equity Before flist}'ibu_tion 51,073,449 46,245,949 44,393,825
After distribution Note 2 46,245,949 44,393,825

Note 1: Starting January 1, 2013, the Company prepares the financial statements in accordance with “Taiwan-IFRSs”,
and to comply with IAS1, the comparative period has been restated. The financial information from 2013 to

2014 was audited by accountants.

Note 2: The distribution of earnings for 2014 has not been approved by the stockholders in 2015.
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(4) Condensed Separate Statements of Comprehensive Income for 2012~2014

Unit: NT$1,000

Ve Financial Information (Note 1)

Item 2014 2013 2012
Interest income 11,098,363 9,795,941 9,175,614
Less : Interest expense 4,164,271 3,687,102 3,415,015
Net interest income 6,934,092 6,108,839 5,760,599
Net non-interest income 4,336,470 3,218,495 2,120,604
Net revenue 11,270,562 9,327,334 7,881,203
Bad debts expense and guarantee liability provision 758,804 720,371 480,790
Operating expenses 5,509,500 5,205,430 5,021,427
Income from continuing operations before income tax 5,002,258 3,401,533 2,378,986
Income tax expense (455,108) (349,328) (319,561)
Net income from continuing operations 4,547,150 3,052,205 2,059,425
Net income 4,547,150 3,052,205 2,059,425
Other comprehensive income(net of tax) 280,350 (1,200,081) 386,334
Total comprehensive income 4,827,500 1,852,124 2,445,759
EPS(NTS$) 1.21 0.81 0.66

Note 1: Starting January 1, 2013, the Company prepares the financial statements in accordance with “Taiwan-IFRSs”,
and to comply with IAS1, the comparative period has been restated. The financial information from 2013 to

2014 was audited by accountants.
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(5) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet for 2010~2012 - R.O.C. GAAP

Unit: NT$1,000

Year Financial Information (Note)
Item 2012 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents,
Due from Centr:ill Bank and call loans to banks 82,436,828 110,417,531 124,650,076
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — net 26,023,007 14,569,643 10,248,106
Investments in notes and bonds under resale agreements — 1,546,544 1,691,578
Receivables - net 12,171,396 12,535,440 14,918,327
Bills discounted and loans — net 375,712,974 348,783,971 284,751,517
Available-for-sale financial assets — net 51,501,159 13,245,099 10,680,673
Held-to-maturity financial assets — 151,450 151,840
Equity investments accounted for under the equity method — net - — 349,051
Other financial assets — net 431,955 431,978 439,175
Property, plant and equipment 2,372,459 2,560,170 2,622,005
Intangible assets 2,184,964 2,326,540 2,456,470
Other assets 1,086,385 1,505,707 2,760,893
Total assets 553,921,127 508,074,073 455,719,711
Due to Central Bank and other banks 13,070,340 7,080,166 16,807,124
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss — net 1,977,281 2,734,648 3,924,425
Notes and bonds payable under repurchase agreements — — 100,170
Deposits and remittances 453,401,765 437,896,659 381,412,448
Financial debentures payable 15,000,000 15,147,060 15,094,120
Accrued pension liabilities 172,611 127,551 116,955
Other financial liabilities 16,747,503 5,826,442 3,119,273
Other liabilities 9,057,133 9,155,538 10,331,528
. Before distribution 509,426,633 477,968,064 430,906,043
Total liabilities
After distribution 509,426,633 477,968,064 430,906,021
Before distribution 34,963,315 25,108,131 21,811,335
Common stock —
After distribution 36,496,931 26,229,835 22,733,131
Additional paid-in capital 6,116,883 2,850,363 1,377,456
. . Before distribution 3,200,116 2,234,905 1,450,280
Retained earnings R
After distribution 1,666,500 1,113,201 528,506
Unrealized profit or loss on available-for-sale financial assets 242,180 (72,775) 217,213
Cumulative translation adjustment — — —
Other shareholders’ equity (28,000) ( 14,615) (- 43,743)
Minority equity - - 1,127
Before distribution 44,494,494 30,106,009 24,813,668
Total shareholders’ equity —
After distribution 44,494,494 30,106,009 24,813,690

Note: The financial information from 2010 to 2012 was audited by accountants.
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(6) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for 2010~2012 - R.0.C. GAAP

Unit: NT$1,000

Financial Information (Note)

Year
Item 2012 2011 2010

Net Interest income 6,011,203 5,035,237 4,273,629
Net Non-interest income 1,905,244 1,781,950 1,940,349
Bad debts losses ( Provision reversal gain) 480,790 (294,923) (174,808)
Operating expenses 5,064,025 5,061,640 4,648,344
Continuing operating income before tax 2,371,632 2,050,470 1,740,442
Continue operating income after tax 2,086,915 1,706,815 1,316,902
Discontinued operation income (net after tax) — — —
Extraordinary income (net after tax) — — —
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (net - - -
after tax)
Net Income 2,086,915 1,706,815 1,316,902

Before adjustment 0.72 0.74 0.60
EPS(NTS) -

After adjustment 0.67 0.66 0.51

Note: The financial information from 2010 to 2012 was audited by accountants.
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(7) Condensed Separate Balance Sheet for 2010~2012 - R.O.C. GAAP

Unit: NT$1,000

Financial Information (Note)

Year
Item 2012 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents,
Due from Centr:ill Bank and call loans to banks 82,436,772 110,417,491 124,650,036
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — net 26,023,007 14,569,643 10,248,106
Investments in notes and bonds under resale agreements — 1,546,544 1,691,578
Receivables - net 12,153,756 12,533,591 14,895,036
Bills discounted and loans — net 375,712,974 348,783,971 284,751,517
Available-for-sale financial assets — net 51,499,745 13,243,700 10,680,673
Held-to-maturity financial assets — 151,450 151,840
Il;igtuity investments accounted for under the equity method — 667.498 41,774 399.896
Other financial assets — net 431,955 431,978 439,175
Property, plant and equipment 2,369,557 2,555,956 2,615,472
Intangible assets 2,184,964 2,326,540 2,456,470
Other assets 1,083,638 1,501,513 2,757,682
Total assets 554,563,866 508,104,151 455,737,481
Due to Central Bank and other banks 13,070,340 7,080,166 16,807,124
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss — net 1,977,281 2,734,648 3,924,425
Notes and bonds payable under repurchase agreements - - 100,170
Deposits and remittances 454,075,352 437,944,350 381,466,045
Financial debentures payable 15,000,000 15,147,060 15,094,120
Accrued pension liabilities 172,091 125,404 114,780
Other financial liabilities 16,747,503 5,826,442 3,119,273
Other liabilities 9,026,805 9,140,072 10,299,003
N Before distribution 510,069,372 477,998,142 430,924,940
Total liabilities
After distribution 510,069,372 477,998,142 430,924,918
Before distribution 34,963,315 25,108,131 21,811,335
Common stock —
After distribution 36,496,931 26,229,835 22,733,131
Additional paid-in capital 6,116,883 2,850,363 1,377,456
. . Before distribution 3,200,116 2,234,905 1,450,280
Retained earnings —
After distribution 1,666,500 1,113,201 528,506
Unrealized profit or loss on available-for-sale financial assets 242,180 ( 72,775) 217,213
Cumulative translation adjustment — - -
Other shareholders’ equity (28,000) ( 14,615) ( 43,743)
Total shareholders’ Before distribution 44,494,494 30,106,009 24,812,541
equity After distribution 44,494,494 30,106,009 24,812,563

Note: The financial information from 2010 to 2012 was audited by accountants.
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(8) Condensed Separate Statements of Income for 2010~2012 - R.O.C. GAAP

Unit: NT$1,000

Ve Financial Information (Note)
Item 2012 2011 2010

Net Interest income 6,010,610 5,034,939 4,273,444
Net Non-interest income 1,807,410 1,735,769 1,867,598
Bad debts losses ( Provision reversal gain) 480,790 (294,923) (174,808)
Operating expenses 4,975,674 5,020,267 4,582,261
Continuing operating income before tax 2,361,556 2,045,364 1,733,589
Continue operating income after tax 2,086,915 1,706,399 1,316,851
Discontinued operation income (net after tax) — — —
Extraordinary income (net after tax) — — —
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles _ o o
(net after tax)
Net Income 2,086,915 1,706,399 1,316,851

Before adjustment 0.72 0.74 0.60
EPS(NTS) -

After adjustment 0.67 0.66 0.51

Note: The financial information from 2010 to 2012 was audited by accountants.

(9) Independent Auditors Over the Past Five Years and their Audit Opinions

Year Independent auditing firm CPA Auditor’s opinion

2010  |PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan| James Huang & Joseph Chou Standard unqualified opinion
2011  |PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan| James Huang & Joseph Chou Standard unqualified opinion
2012  |PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan James Huang & Ellen Kuo Standard unqualified opinion
2013  [PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan James Huang & Ellen Kuo Standard unqualified opinion
2014  |PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan Ellen Kuo& Maria Chen Standard unqualified opinion
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(10) Consolidated Financial Analysis

Year Financial Analysis (Note 1)
Item 2014 2013 2012
Ratio of deposits to loans (%) 77.18 80.25 83.00
NPL ratio (%) 0.19 0.31 0.19
Ratio of interest cost to annual average deposits (%) 0.68 0.68 0.66
Operating Ratio of .interj:st income to annual average loans 217 )14 217
performance outstanding (%) .
Total assets turnover (times) 0.02 0.02 0.02
é}\;:;ii é)];\?;e}sgon revenue per employee 4310 4,047 3.117
Average profit per employee (thousand NT$) 1,728 1,318 804
Return on tier I capital (%) 10.98 7.99 6.88
Return on assets (%) 0.70 0.53 0.39
Profitability |Return on equity (96) 9.34 6.73 5.54
Net income ratio (%4) 40.10 32.58 25.81
EPS (NTS) 1.21 0.81 0.66
Financial Ratio of liabilities to assets (%) 92.63 92.23 91.96
Structure Ratio of property and equipment to equity (%) 4.09 4.65 5.34
Rate of assets growth (%) 16.66 7.94 9.02

Growth rate -

Rate of earnings growth (%) 47.06 42.68 | 16.51(Note 2)

Cash flow ratio (%) Note 3 44.66 Note 3
Cash flow  |Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 955.37 2,188.06 1,260.64

Cash flow coverage ratio (%) Note 3 (1.117.80) Note 3

Ratio of liquidity reserve (%) 29.00 31.90 29.60

Total balance of secured loans of related parties (thousand NT$) 6,632,636 6,649,493 4,793,300

Ratio of total balance of secured loans of related parties to total balance

of credit extension (%) 1.36 151 115

Asset market share (94) 1.42 1.33 1.35

Scale of Net-worth market share (%) 1.62 1.63 1.70

operations Deposits market share (95) 1.64 1.50 1.46

Loans market share (%) 1.65 1.56 1.56

The specify reasons of changes in financial ratios for the latest two years: ( If the variation does not reach 20%, the

analysis can be omitted)

A. On the premise of asset quality sustenance, the consolidated company, during Year 2014, continued to boost its|
businesses and enjoyed a constant grow of net income, and has higher growth in profitability of various business|
scopes than Year 2013.

B. Net cash outflow from operation activities of the consolidated company for Year 2014 and the latest five years
increased greatly from Year 2013 and the latest five years so cash flow adequacy ratio dropped.

Note 1: The financial information from 2013 to 2014 was audited by accountants. In addition, the comparative information of 2012
was produced according to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Note 2: Starting January 1, 2013, the Company prepares the financial statements in accordance with “Taiwan-IFRSs”, and to comply
with IAS1, the comparative period has been restated. Regarding the profit growth ratios between 2012 and 2011, earnings
before tax for 2011 were produced according to R.0.C. GAAP.

Note 3: Because cash flows from operating activities in statement of cash flows are cash outflow in 2012 and 2014, it is not included
for the calculation of according cash flow ratio.

Note 4: Because of inaccessibility to information, market share of operating scale is calculated according to individual financial
statements.
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Note 5: The formulas of various ratios are as follows:
1. Operating performance
(1) Ratio of deposits to loans = Annual average loans outstanding,/ Annual average deposit (Including postal savings
re-deposits)
(2) NPL ratio=Total NPL Total loans outstanding
(3) Ratio of interest cost to annual average deposits= Total interest cost from deposits,/Annual average deposits
(4) Ratio of interest income to annual average loans outstanding = Total interest income from loans / Annual average amount
of loans outstanding
(5) Total assets turnover (times) = Operating income / Average total assets
(6) Average operation revenue per employee (Note 8)=Operating Revenues,/ Annual average total number of employees
(7) Average profit per employee=Net income after tax total employees
. Profitability
(1) Return on tier I capital =Before-tax profit or loss / Total amount of tier I capital
(2) Return on assets =Net income /" Average total assets
(3) Return on Equity =Net income / Average total equity
(4) Net income ratio=Net income /Total operating revenues
(5) EPS=(Net profit attributable to parent company-preferred stock dividend),”Weighted average number of shares issued
(Note 7)
. Financial structure
(1) Ratio of Liabilities to Assets = Liabilities / Total assets
(2) Ratio of Property and Equipment to Equity = Property and equipment assets / Total equity
4. Growth rate
(1) Rate of Assets growth=(Total assets for current year— Total assets for previous year) /Total assets for previous year
(2) Rate of earnings growth = (Before-tax profit or loss for current year — Before-tax profit or loss for previous year),”
Before-tax profit for previous year
. Cash flow (Note 9)
(1) Cash flow ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities /(interbank lending and overdraft+ payable commercial paper
+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss +RP + Payable accounts-current portion)
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities for the latest five years /(Capital expenditure +
cash dividends for the latest five years)
(3) Cash flow coverage ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities /' net cash flow from investing activities
6. Ratio of liquidity reserve=Liquidity assets defined by Central Bank /" Accrual liquidty reserve liabilities
7. Scale of operations:
(1) Asset market share = total assets/total assets of all financial institutions able to engage in deposit and loan business
(2) Net-worth market share = net worth/total net worth of all financial institutions able to engage in deposit and loan business
(3) Deposit market share = total value of deposits/total value of deposits at all financial institutions able to engage in deposit
and loan business
(4) Loan market share = total value of loans/total value of loans at all financial institutions able to engage in deposits and loan
business
Note 6: The total liabilities have deduct allowance for gurantee liability and allowance for accidental loss
Note 7: The following shall be noted in the equations of EPS of the preceding paragraph:

1. It is based on weighted average common stock shares instead of the issued stock shares at the end of year.

2. For cash capitalization or Treasury stock trade, the circulation period is to be considered for the calculation of weighted
average stock shares.

3. For capitalized retained earnings or additional paid-in, for the calculation of earnings per share of previous years and
semi-annual, it is to be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the ratio of capitalization but not the issuance period of the
capitalization.

4. If the preferred stock is non-convertible cumulative preferred stock, the dividend (distributed or not distributed) is to be
deducted from Net Income or is to be added to Net Loss.

5. If the preferred stock is non-cumulative preferred stock; also, if there is Net income generated, preferred stock dividend is to
be deducted from Net income; however, if there is net loss resulted, no adjustment is required.

Note 8: The income means the total interest income and non-interest income.
Note 9: The following shall be considered in measuring of cash flow analysis:

1. Net cash flow from operating activities means the net cash inflow from operating activities in the cash flow statement.

2. Capital expenditure means the cash outflow from capital investment per year.

3. Cash dividends include of common and preferred stocks.

4. Gross for fixed assets means the total fixed assets before deduction of accumulated depreciation.

N

W

W
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an

Separate Financial Analysis

i Financial Analysis (Note 1)
Item 2014 2013 2012
Ratio of deposits to loans (%) 77.15 80.21 82.88
NPL ratio (%) 0.19 0.31 0.19
Ratio of int t tt 1 d it
0a io of interest cost to annual average deposits 0.68 0.68 0.66
(%)
Operating Ratio of }nterfst income to annual average loans 217 )14 217
performance | outstanding (%)
Total assets turnover (times) 0.02 0.02 0.01
Average operation revenue per employee
(thousand NTS) 4,312 4,057 3,092
Average profit per employee (thousand NT$) 1,740 1,328 808
Return on tier I capital (%) 11.03 8.04 6.89
Return on assets (%) 0.70 0.53 0.39
Profitability | Return on equity (%) 9.34 6.73 5.54
Net income ratio (%) 40.35 32.72 26.13
EPS (NTS) 1.21 0.81 0.66
Financial Ratio of liabilities to assets (%) 92.63 92.24 91.96
Structure Ratio of property and equipment to equity (%) 4.09 4.65 5.34
Rate of assets growth (%) 16.65 7.85 9.14
Growth rate -
Rate of earnings growth (%) 47.06 42.98 16.31(Note 2)
Cash flow ratio (%) Nots 3 44.57 Nots 3
Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 954.66 2,191.23 1,263.63
Cash flow coverage ratio (%) Nots 3 (1,146.17) Nots 3
Ratio of liquidity reserve (%) 29.00 31.90 29.60
Total balance of secured loans of related parties (thousand NT$) 6,632,636 6,649,493 4,793,300
Ratio of total balance of secured loans of related parties to total 136 151 115
balance of credit extension (%) ) ) )
Asset market share (%) 1.42 1.33 1.35
Scale of Net-worth market share (%) 1.62 1.63 1.70
operations Deposits market share (%9) 1.64 1.50 1.46
Loans market share (%) 1.65 1.56 1.56
The specify reasons of changes in financial ratios for the latest two years: ( If the variation does not reach 20%, the
analysis can be omitted)
A.  On the premise of asset quality sustenance, the Company, during Year 2014, continued to boost its businesses
and enjoyed a constant grow of net income, and has higher growth in profitability of various business scopes
than Year 2013.
B.  Net cash outflow from operation activities of the company for Year 2014 and the latest five years increased
greatly from Year 2013 and the latest five years so cash flow adequacy ratio dropped.

Note 1: The financial information from 2013 to 2014 was audited by accountants. In addition, the comparative information of 2012
was produced according to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Note 2: Starting January 1, 2013, the Company prepares the financial statements in accordance with “Taiwan-IFRSs”, and to comply
with TAS1, the comparative period has been restated. Regarding the profit growth ratios between 2012 and 2011, earnings
before tax for 2011 were produced according to R.O.C. GAAP.

Note 3: Because cash flows from operating activities in statement of cash flows are cash outflow in 2012 and 2014, it is not included
for the calculation of according cash flow ratio.

Note 4: The formulas of various ratios are as page 75
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(12) Financial Analysis - R.0.C. GAAP

g Financial Analysis (Note 1)
Item 2012 2011 2010
Ratio of deposits to loans (%) 82.88 79.76 74.24
NPL ratio (%) 0.19 0.19 0.49
gzt)lo of interest cost to annual average deposits 0.67 0.60 041
Operatin Ratio of interest income to annual average loans
pfiformaice outstanding (%) - 213 209 194
Total assets turnover (times) 0.01 0.01 0.01
élxlfzilasii g;}f?;;on revenue per employee 3.067 2,640 2433
Average profit per employee (thousand NTS) 819 665 522
Return on tier I capital (%) 6.84 8.24 7.66
Return on assets (%) 0.39 0.35 0.32
Profitability | Return on shareholders' equity (%) 5.59 6.21 5.43
Net income ratio (%) 26.69 25.20 21.44
EPS (NT$) 0.67 0.66 0.51
Financial Ratio of liabilities to assets (%) 91.94 94.07 94.56
Structure Ratio of fixed assets to equity (%) 5.33 8.49 10.54
Rate of assets growth (%) 9.14 11.49 24.83
Growth rate -
Rate of earnings growth (%) 15.46 17.98 102.26
Cash flow ratio (%) 13.75 2.55 492
Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 1,367.83 1,451.84 1,311.50
Cash flow coverage ratio (%) (8.03) (0.78) (2.01)
Ratio of liquidity reserve (%) 29.60 31.30 29.20
Total balance of secured loans of related parties (thousand NT$) 4,793,300 5,378,015 3,551,953
Ratio of total bglance ot" secured loans of related parties to total 115 136 12
balance of credit extension (%)
Asset market share (%) 1.35 1.28 1.22
Operating Net-worth market share (94) 1.70 1.25 1.08
scale Deposits market share (94) 1.46 1.46 1.33
Loans market share (%) 1.56 1.50 1.34

Note 1: The financial information from 2010 t02012 was audited by accountants.

Note 2: The formulas of various ratios are as follows:
1. Operating performance
(1) Ratio of deposits to loans= Annual average loans outstanding / Annual average deposit (Including postal savings
re-deposits)
(2) NPL ratio=Total NPL Total loans outstanding
(3) Ratio of interest cost to annual average deposits= Total interest cost,” Annual average deposits
(4) Ratio of interest income to annual average loans outstanding = Total interest income / Annual average amount of loans
outstanding
(5) Total assets turnover (times) = Operating income / Average total assets
(6) Average operation revenue per employee (Note 5)=Operating Revenues / Annual average total number of employees
(7) Average profit per employee=Net income after tax total employees
2. Profitability
(1) Return on tier I capital =Before-tax profit or loss,/ Total amount of tier I capital
(2) Return on assets =Net income /Average total assets
(3) Return on shareholders' Equity = Net income /" Average net shareholders’ equity
(4) Net income ratio=Net income / Total operating revenues
(5) EPS=Income after income tax-preferred stock dividend /" Weighted average number of shares issued (Note 4)
3. Financial structure

(1) Ratio of Liabilities to Assets = Liabilities / Total assets (Note 3)
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(2) Ratio of Fixed Assets to Equity=Fixed assets /Shareholders' equity

4. Growth rate
(1) Rate of Assets growth=(Total assets for current year— Total assets for previous year) /Total assets for previous year
(2) Rate of earnings growth = (Before-tax profit or loss for current year) — (Before-tax profit or loss for previous year)

/Before-tax profit for previous year
5. Cash flow (Note 6)
(1) Cash flow ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities/ (interbank lending and overdraft+ Financial liabilities at
fair value of payable commercial paper through income statement-+ RP + Payable accounts-current portion)
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities for the latest five years,”(Capital expenditure
for the latest five years + cash dividends)
(3) Cash flow coverage ratio=Net cash flow from operating activities /net cash flow from investing activities
6. Ratio of liquidity reserve = Liquidity assets defined by Central Bank ~Accrual liquidty reserve liabilities
7. Scale of operations:
(1) Asset market share = total assets/total assets of all financial institutions able to engage in deposit and loan business
(2) Net-worth market share = net value/total net worth of all financial holding institutions able to engage in deposit and
loan business
(3) Deposit market share = total value of deposits/total value of deposits at all financial institutions able to engage in
deposit and loan business
(4) Loan market share = total value of loans/total value of loans at all financial institutions able to engage in deposits and
loan business
Note 3: The total liabilities have deduct allowance for gurantee liability, allowance for breach of traded secrutities and allowance for
accidental loss
Note 4: The following shall be noted in the equations of EPS of the preceding paragraph:

1. Tt is based on weighted average common stock shares instead of the issued stock shares at the end of year.

2. For cash capitalization or Treasury stock trade, the circulation period is to be considered for the calculation of weighted
average stock shares.

3. For capitalized retained earnings or additional paid-in, for the calculation of earnings per share of previous years and
semi-annual, it is to be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the ratio of capitalization but not the issuance period of
the capitalization.

4. If the preferred stock is non-convertible cumulative preferred stock, the dividend (distributed or not distributed) is to be
deducted from Net Income or is to be added to Net Loss.

5. If the preferred stock is non-cumulative preferred stock; also, if there is Net income generated, preferred stock dividend is
to be deducted from Net income; however, if there is net loss resulted, no adjustment is required.

Note 5: The income means the total interest income and non-interest income.
Note 6: The following shall be considered in measuring of cash flow analysis:

1. Net cash flow from operating activities means the net cash inflow from operating activities in the cash flow statement.

2. Capital expenditure means the cash outflow from capital investment per year.

3. Cash dividends include of common and preferred stocks.

4. Gross for fixed assets means the total fixed assets before deduction of accumulated depreciation.
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(13) Consolidated Capital Adequacy

Unit: NT$1,000

ear Consolidated capital adequacy ratio
Item 2014 2013

Common Equity Tier [ 47,972,473 43,367,166
Eligible Additional Tier [ Capital — —
Capital Tier I1 Capital 19,003,750 11,649,461
Eligible Capital 66,976,223 55,016,627
Standardized Approach 471,176,159 396,135,491
Credit risk Internal Ratings- Based Approach — -
Securitization — —
Basic Indicator Approach — —

Tot_al risk- . . Standardized Approach / Alternative
Welgt?ted Operational risk Standardized Approach 17,517,763 15,150,838
e Advanced Measurement Approaches — —
. Standardized Approach 33,517,888 14,523,300

Market risk

Internal Models Approach — —
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 522,211,810 425,809,629
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 12.83 12.92
Tier I Risk-based Capital Ratio (%) 9.19 10.18
Common Equity Tier I Ratio (%) 9.19 10.18
Leverage Ratio (%) 4.68 5.13

Please specify the reasons for the changes of capital adequacy ratios for the past two years:
The changes of capital adequacy ratios for the past two years is less than 20% and is waived from explanation.

Note 1: The eligible capital, risk-weighted assets and Exposure Measurement in the table above should be filled in
accordance with “Regulations Governing the Capital Adequacy and Capital Category of Banks” and*“calculation
method and table of self-owned capital and risk-weighted assets”.

Note 2: The relevant formulas are as follows:

1. Eligible capital = Common Equity + Additional Tier I Capital + Tier II Capital
Total risk-weighted assets = credit risk-weighted assets + (operational risk + market risk) * 12.5

2.
3. Capital adequacy ratio = Eligible capital / Total risk-weighted assets
4.

Tier I Risk-based Capital Ratio =(Common Equity Tier I + additional Tier I Capital)/Total risk-weighted

assets

W

6. Leverage Ratio= Tier I Capital / Exposure Measurement
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Unit: NT$1,000

Item

Year

Consolidated capital adequacy ratio

2012

2011

2010

Eligible
Capital

Tier I
capital

Common stock

34,963,315

25,108,131

21,811,335

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred
stock

Nonsol non-cumulative subordinated
debts without maturity dates

Capital collected in advance

Capital surplus (exclusive of reserve
for revaluation of fixed assets)

6,116,883

2,850,363

1,377,456

Legal reserve

1,040,404

528,484

133,429

Special reserve

72,797

22

Retained earnings

2,086,915

1,706,399

1,316,851

Minority equity

1,127

Other shareholders’ equity

(81,589)

(178,462)

(55,572)

Less: Goodwill

1,924,395

1,924,395

1,924,395

Less: Unamortized loss on sale of NPL

Less: Capital deductions

314,567

634,164

403,861

Total Tier I capital

41,959,763

27,456,378

22,256,370

Tier IT
capital

Cumulative perpetual preferred stock

Cumulative subordinated debts without
maturity dates

3,000,000

Reserve for revaluation of fixed assets

45% of Unrealized gain on financial
assets in available-for-sale

133,096

103,068

Convertible bonds

Operating reserve and allowance for
bad debt

644,685

815,098

Long-term subordinated bonds

14,000,000

13,728,189

5,418,264

Non- perpetual preferred stock

Total of non-cumulative perpetual
preferred stock and non-cumulative
subordinated debts without maturity
dates exceeding 15% of total Tier I
capital

Less: Capital deductions

314,567

212,018

403,861

Total Tier II capital

14,463,214

13,557,153

8,932,569

Tier 111
capital

Short-term subordinated debts

Non- perpetual preferred stock

Total Tier III capital

Eligible Capital

56,422,977

41,013,531

31,188,939
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Consolidated capital adequacy ratio

Year
Item 2012 2011 2010

Standardized approach 357,324,695 332,276,102 267,354,070

Credit risk |Internal ratings-based approach — - -
Securitization — 45,591 122,537

Basic indicator approach — - 12,448,688

i%gil?:; _ Operational Stfr?g::(ii;:; :;’g;’:cc}}l‘/ Alternative 12,724,888 11,877,200 —
Advanced measurement approach - — —

Market Standardized approach 16,003,613 7,140,763 10,456,938

risk Internal models approach - — -

Total risk-weighted assets 386,053,196 351,339,656 290,382,233

Capital adequacy ratio (%) 14.62 11.67 10.74
Ratio of Tier I capital in risk-based assets (%) 10.87 7.81 7.66
Ratio of Tier II capital in risk-based assets (%) 3.75 3.86 3.08
Ratio of Tier III capital in risk-based assets (%) — — —
Ratio of common capital stock in total assets (%) 6.31 4.94 4.79

Note 1: Eligible capital=Tier I capital + Tier II capital+ Tier III capital
Note 2: Total risk- weighted assets = Credit risk weighted risk-based assets -+ capital charge of (operational
risk +market risk)x12.5

Note 3: Capital adequacy ratio=Eligible capital /Total weighted risk-based assets

Note 4: Ratio of Tier I capital in risk-based assets = Tier I capital / Total weighted risk-based assets

Note 5: Ratio of Tier II capital in risk-based assets = Tier II capital / Total weighted risk-based assets
Note 6: Ratio of Tier III capital in risk-based assets = Tier III capital / Total weighted risk-based assets

Note 7: Ratio of common capital stock in total assets=Common capital stock /Total assets
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(14) Capital Adequacy
Unit: NT$1,000

Year Capital adequacy ratio
Item 2014 2013

Common Equity Tier [ 47,637,217 43,040,229

Eligible Additional Tier | Capital — —
Capital Tier 11 Capital 18,668,496 11,321,900
Eligible Capital 66,305,713 54,362,129

Standardized Approach 470,706,649 395,721,923

Credit risk Internal Ratings- Based Approach - -

Securitization

Basic Indicator Approach

Total risk- - -
weighted  |Operational risk | Standardized Approach / Alternative 17,262,188 14,950,575
assets Standardized Approach
Advanced Measurement Approaches - -
Standardized Approach 33,517,888 14,523,300
Market risk
Internal Models Approach — —
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 521,486,725 425,195,798
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 12.71 12.79
Tier I Risk-based Capital Ratio (%) 9.13 10.12
Common Equity Tier I Ratio (%) 9.13 10.12
Leverage Ratio (%) 4.66 5.09

Note 1: The eligible capital, risk-weighted assets and Exposure Measurement in the table above should be filled in
accordance with “Regulations Governing the Capital Adequacy and Capital Category of Banks”
and‘“calculation method and table of self-owned capital and risk-weighted assets”.

Note 2: The relevant formulas are as follows:

1. Eligible capital = Common Equity + Additional Tier I Capital + Tier II Capital

2. Total risk-weighted assets = credit risk-weighted assets + (operational risk + market risk) * 12.5

3. Capital adequacy ratio = Eligible capital / Total risk-weighted assets

4. Tier I Risk-based Capital Ratio=(Common Equity Tier I + additional Tier I Capital)/Total risk-weighted
assets

. Common Equity Tier I Ratio=Common Equity Tier 1/Total risk-weighted assets

6. Leverage Ratio= Tier I Capital / Exposure Measurement

W
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Unit: NT$1,000

Item

Year

Capital adequacy ratio

2012

2011

2010

Eligible
capital

Tier I
capital

Common stock

34,963,315

25,108,131

21,811,335

Non-cumulative preferred stock

Non-cumulative subordinated debts without
maturity dates

Capital collected in advance

Capital surplus (exclusive of reserve for
revaluation of fixed assets)

6,116,883

2,850,363

1,377,456

Legal reserve

1,040,404

528,484

133,429

Special reserve

72,797

22

Retained earnings

2,086,915

1,706,399

1,316,851

Minority equity

Other shareholders’ equity

(81,589)

(178,462)

(55,572)

Less: Goodwill

1,924,395

1,924,395

1,924,395

Less: Unamortized loss on sale of NPL

Less: Capital deductions

648,316

655,051

429,283

Total Tier I capital

41,626,014

27,435,491

22,229,821

Tier II
capital

Cumulative perpetual preferred stock

Cumulative subordinated debts without
maturity dates

3,000,000

Reserve for revaluation of fixed assets

45% of Unrealized gain on financial assets
in available-for-sale

133,096

103,068

Convertible bonds

Operating reserve and allowance for bad
debt

644,685

815,098

Long-term subordinated bonds

14,000,000

13,717,745

5,418,264

Non- perpetual preferred stock

Total of non-cumulative perpetual stock and
non-cumulative subordinated debts without
maturity dates exceeding 15% of total Tier |
capital

Less: Capital deductions

648,316

232,905

429,283

Total Tier II capital

14,129,465

13,525,822

8,907,147

Tier 11T
capital

Short-term subordinated debts

Non-perpetual preferred stock

Total Tier III capital

Eligible Capital

55,755,479

40,961,313

31,136,968

Total
risk-
weighted
assets

Credit risk

Standardized approach

357,301,405

332,266,318

267,322,507

Internal ratings-based approach

Securitization

45,591

122,537

Operational
risk

Basic indicator approach

12,306,100

Standardized approach/ Alternative
standardized approach

12,561,150

11,744,813

Advanced measurement approach

Market risk

Standardized approach

16,003,613

7,140,763

10,456,938

Internal models approach

Total weighted risk-based assets

385,866,168

351,197,485

290,208,082

Capital adequacy ratio (%)

14.45

11.66

10.73
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Year Capital adequacy ratio
Item 2012 2011 2010
Ratio of Tier I capital in risk-based assets (%) 10.79 7.81 7.66
Ratio of Tier II capital in risk-based assets (%) 3.66 3.85 3.07
Ratio of Tier III capital in risk-based assets (%) - - -
Ratio of common capital stock in total assets (%) 6.30 4.94 4.79

Note 1:
Note 2:

Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:

Eligible capital=Tier I capital + Tier II capital + Tier III capital

Total risk- weighted assets = Credit risk weighted risk-based assets + capital charge of (operational risk +

market risk)x12.5

Capital adequacy ratio=Eligible capital / Total weighted risk-based assets
Ratio of Tier I capital in risk-based assets=Tier I capital / Total weighted risk-based assets
Ratio of Tier II capital in risk-based assets = Tier II capital / Total weighted risk-based assets

Ratio of Tier I1I capital in risk-based assets = Tier III capital / Total weighted risk-based assets
Ratio of common capital stock in total assets=Common capital stock total assets
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2. Consolidated Financial Report for 2014

pwe  #i
PWCR14000309

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Yuanta Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Yuanta Commercial Bank Co.,
Ltd. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Audit of Financial
Statements of Financial Institutions by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing
standards in the Republic of China. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Yuanta Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and their financial performance and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 in conformity with the “Regulations Governing the Preparations of
Financial Reports by Public Banks” and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission.

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of Yuanta Commercial Bank
Co., Ltd. as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, and have expressed an
unqualified opinion on such financial statements.

/%/f WMLWW/ ZVWW’L

March 17, 2015

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of operations and cash flows in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards,
procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and report
of independent accountants are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice.
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11000

11500

12000

13000

13200

13500

14000

14500

15500

18500

18700

19000

19300

19500

YUANTA COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

ASSETS NOTES AMOUNT

Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 13,120,575
Due from Central Bank and call loans 6(2) 79,095,616
to other banks

Financial assets at fair value through 6(3) 49,411,506
profit or loss — net

Receivables — net 6(4) 19,085,191
Current income tax assets 3,110,066
Bills discounted and loans — net 6(5) 445,096,204
Available-for-sale financial assets — net 6(6) 34,767,019
Held-to-maturity financial assets 6(6)and(7) 7,277,780
Other financial assets — net 6(6)and(8) 38,841,612
Property and equipment — net 6(9) 2,087,564
Investment property- net 6(10) 306,052
Intangible assets — net 6(11) 2,067,369
Deferred income tax assets 6(36) 582,573
Other assets — net 6(12) 3,196,095

TOTAL ASSETS N

698,045,222

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)
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%

AMOUNT

7,332,688

85,619,265

24,375,726

12,332,649
3,058,196
397,268,743
31,039,688
4,955,516
26,175,376
2,149,569
314,808
2,058,637
194,094

1,495,054

598,370,009

%

100



21000

22000

22500

23000

23200

23500

24000

25500

25600

29300

29500

31000

31100

31101

31500

32000

32001

32003

32011

32500

YUANTA COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31,2014

December 31, 2013

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY NOTES AMOUNT %
LIABILITIES
Due to Central Bank and other banks 6(13) 5,681,005 1
Financial liabilities at fair value through 6(14) 5,679,085 1
profit or loss - net
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase 6(15) 8,340,995 1
agreements
Payables 6(16) 15,824,899 2
Current income tax liabilities 986,876 -
Deposits and remittances 6(17) 579,291,319 83
Financial debentures payable 6(18) 23,000,000 4
Other financial liabilities 6(19) 6,237,906 1
Provisions 6(20)and(21) 1,028,258 -
Deferred income tax liabilities 6(36) 171,751 -
Other liabilities 6(22) 729,679 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 646,971,773 ﬁ
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the
parent company
Share capital
Common stock 6(23) 37,690,491 5
Additional paid-in capital 6(24) 6,116,883 1
Retained earnings 6(25)
Legal reserve 2,438,552 -
Special reserve 607,967 -
Unappropriated earnings 4,447,913 1
Other equity interest 6(26) 228,357)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

51,073,449 7

698,045,222 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMOUNT %

13,072,480 2

2,336,752 .

10,326,621 2
325,264 -
496,482,959 83
15,000,000 3
12,902,996 2
736,243 -
209,163 -

731,582 -

552,124,060 92

36,496,931 6
6,116,883 1
1,666,478 -

2 -
2,573,579 1
607,944) -

46,245,949 8

598,370,009 100



YUANTA COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Change
2014 2013 Percentage
NOTES AMOUNT % AMOUNT % %
41000 Interest income $ 11,121,437 98 § 9,798,277 104 14
51000 Less: Interest expense ( 4,162,584) ( 37)( 3,682,850) ( 39) 13
Net interest income 6(27) 6,958,853 61 6,115,427 65 14
Net non-interest income
49100 Net service fee and commission income 6(28) 2,057,487 18 1,689,385 18 22
49200  Gain (loss) on financial assets and financial 6(3)and(29) 836,693 7 ( 785,643) ( 8)( 206)
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
49300  Realized gain on available-for-sale financial 6(30) 306,817 3 369,513 4 ( 17)
assets
49600  Foreign exchange gain 617,046 5 1,770,087 19 ( 65)
49700  Reversal of impairment loss on assets 6(11)and(31) 3,447 - 34,819 - ( 90)
49800 Other non-interest income 6(11)and(32) 165,026 2 135,921 2 21
49821 Net gain on sale of non-performing loans 13(1) 394,071 4 39,084 - 908
Net revenue 11,339,440 100 9,368,593 100 21
58200 Bad debts expense and guarantee liability provision ( 758,804 ) ( 7)( 720,371) ( 7) 5
Operating expenses
58500 Employee benefit expense 6(33) ( 3,195,388) ( 28) ( 3,073,713) ( 33) 4
59000 Depreciation and amortization expense 6(34) ( 333,100) ( 3)( 460,428) ( S5)( 28)
59500 Other general and administrative expense 6(35) ( 2,039,250) ( 18) ( 1,705,359) ( 18) 20
61001 Income from continuing operations before 5,012,898 44 3,408,722 37 47
income tax
61003 Income tax expense 6(36) ( 465,748) ( 4)( 356,517) ( 4) 31
64000 Net income 4,547,150 40 3,052,205 33 49
65000 Other comprehensive income
65001 Translation gain and loss on the financial 6(26) 87,217 1 943 - 9149
statements of foreign operating entities
65011 Unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale 6(26) 296,156 3 ( 1,163,989) ( 13)( 125)
financial assets
65031 Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plan 6(21) ( 119,563) ( 1)( 37,899) - 215
65091 Income tax relating to components of other 6(26)and(36)
comprehensive income 16,540 - 864 - 1814
65000 Other comprehensive income (loss) (net of tax) 280,350 3 ( 1,200,081) ( 13)( 123)
66000 Total comprehensive income $ 4,827,500 43 1,852,124 20 161
Net income attributable to:
Parent company $ 4,547,150 40 § 3,052,205 33 49
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Parent company $ 280,350 2 8 1,852,124 20 ( 85)
Earnings per share (in New Taiwan Dollars) 6(37)
Basic and Diluted $ 121 § 0.81

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YUANTA COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31. 2014 and 2013
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated profit from continuing operations before tax for the $ 5,012,898 $ 3,408,722
period
Adjustments to reconcile income before income tax to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Income and expenses having no effect on cash flows
Depreciation 205,592 263,999
Amortization 127,508 196,429
Provision for bad debt expense 1,312,654 1,313,775
Realized gain on available-for-sale financial assets ( 89,443 ) -
Interest expense 4,162,584 3,682,850
Interest income ( 11,121,437) ( 9,798,277 )
Dividend income ( 159,596 ) ( 68,761 )
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment ( 471) 3,170
Property and equipment transferred to expense - 190
Loss on disposal of investment property 352 24,490
Loss from sale or retirement of other assets 52 -
Reversal of impairment loss on non-financial assets ( 3,447) ( 34,819)
Changes in assets/liabilities relating to operating activities
Net changes in assets relating to operating activities
Increase in due from Central Bank and call loans to other  ( 2,042,346 ) ( 942,360 )
banks
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through  ( 25,035,780 ) 1,543,442
profit or loss
Increase in receivables ( 6,366,839 ) ( 2,978,613)
Increase in bills discounted and loans ( 48,934,964 ) ( 22,804,828 )
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets ( 3,470,865 ) ( 8,676,125 )
Increase in held-to-maturity financial assets ( 2,322,264) ( 5,218)
Increase in other financial assets ( 12,744,932 ) ( 2,550,267 )
Net changes in liabilities relating to operating activities
(Decrease) increase in due to Central Bank and other banks ( 7,391,475) 2,140
Increase in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 3,342,333 359471
loss
Increase in payables 5,431,153 2,348,347
Increase in deposits and remittances 82,808,360 43,081,194
Decrease in other financial liabilities ( 6,663,911 ) ( 3,842,408 )
Increase in provisions for employee benefits 19,466 12,822
(Decrease) Increase in other liabilities ( 1,903 ) 71,253
Cash (used in) provided by operations ( 23,926,721) 4,610,618
Interest received 10,733,258 9,864,725
Interest paid ( 4,095,459) ( 3,699,021)
Dividend received 159,596 69,053
Income tax paid ( 265,357 ) ( 452,956 )
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities ( 17,394,683 ) 10,392,419

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)
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YUANTA COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of investment property
Increase in other assets
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of financial bonds

Increase in bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Decrease in lease payables
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated balance sheet
Due from Central Bank and call loans to other banks qualified as
cash and cash equivalents as defined by IAS 7

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2014 2013
$( 248,520) $( 169,298 )
959 1,973
( 4,618)  ( 4,563 )
8,999 7,200
( 1,725418)  ( 765,034 )
129,133 -
( 1,839,465)  ( 929,722 )
8,000,000 -
8,340,995 -
( 1,179)  ( 2,099 )
16,339,816 ( 2,099 )
116,224 8,328
( 2,778,108 ) 9,468,926
79,823,129 70,354,203
77045021  $ 79,823,129
$ 13,120,575 $ 7,332,688
63,924,446 72,490,441
$ 77.045.021  $ 79,823,129

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YUANTA COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Indicated)

1. History and organization

(1) Yuanta Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (the “Bank”) was incorporated as a public company limited by
shares under the provisions of the Company Law of the Republic of China (R.O.C.). The Bank
formerly Asia Pacific Commercial Bank, acquired approval for establishment from the Ministry of
Finance on January 14, 1992 and launched its operation on February 12, 1992. The Bank is
principally engaged in commercial banking activities allowed by the Banking Laws of the
Republic of China (R.O.C.) and in business activities authorized by the supervising authority of
the central government. In accordance with the Financial Holding Company Act, the Bank
joined Fuhwa Financial Holdings on August 1, 2002 through stock transfer and became a
wholly-owned subsidiary. In September 2002, Asia Pacific commercial Bank was approved to be
renamed Fuhwa Commercial Bank.

(2) On April 2, 2007, Yuanta Core Pacific Securities merged with Fuhwa Financial Holdings through
stock transfer and became a wholly-owned subsidiary. Under the approval of shareholders’
meeting in June 2007, Fuhwa Financial Holdings was renamed Yuanta Financial Holdings and the
Bank was also renamed Yuanta Commercial Bank on September 23, 2007.

(3) The head office directs company-wide operations and opened domestic branches to promote
business. As of December 31, 2014, the Bank has a trust department, an international banking
department, an offshore banking unit, and 88 branches including the business department and 1
overseas representative office.

(4) The subsidiary Yuanta International Life Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. (“the Yuanta Life Insurance
Agent”) was incorporated under the Company Law of the Republic of China on November 20,
2001. The main business is engaged in life insurance products agency. In October, 2002 Asia
Pacific Life Insurance Agent Co., Ltd. was approved to be renamed Fuhwa Life Insurance Agent
Co., Ltd. and further renamed Yuanta Life Insurance Agent in September 2007.

(5) The subsidiary Yuanta Property Insurance Agent Ltd. (the “Yuanta Property Insurance Agent”)
was incorporated under the provisions of the Company Law of the Republic of China on October
2, 1999. The main business is engaged in property insurance products agency. In November, 2002
Fu An Property Insurance Agent Ltd. was approved to be renamed Fuhwa Property Insurance
Agent Company and further renamed Yuanta Property Insurance Agent in September 2007.

(6) The subsidiary Yuanta International Leasing Co., Ltd. (the “Yuanta International Leasing”) was
incorporated under the provisions of the Company Law of the Republic of China on November 15,
2012. The main business is engaged in a leasing business.

(7) As of December 31, 2014, the number of the Bank and subsidiaries (collectively referred herein as
the Consolidated Company) employees was 2,631.

(8) Yuanta Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Yuanta Financial Holdings”) is the parent company and
ultimate parent company which holds 100% equity interest in the Consolidated Company.

2. The date of authorization for issuance of the consolidated financial statements and procedures for
authorization
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These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on
March 17, 2015.

. Application of new standards, amendments and interpretations

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS‘) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)

None.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC, but not yet adopted
by the Consolidated Company

According to Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Auditing No.1030010325 issued on April 3, 2014,
commencing 2015, companies with shares listed on the TWSE or traded on the Taiwan GreTai
Securities Market or Emerging Stock Market shall adopt the 2013 version of IFRS (not including
IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’) as endorsed by the FSC and the " Regulations Governing
the Preparations of Financial Reports by Public Banks " effective January 1, 2015
(collectively referred herein as the “2013 version of IFRSs”) in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. The related new standards, interpretations and amendments are listed below:

Effective Date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board

Improvements to IFRSs 2010

Improvements to IFRSs 2009 —2011

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income (amendment
to IAS 1)

Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets (amendment to IAS 12)

IAS 19 (revised), ‘Employee benefits’

IAS 27 (revised), Separate financial statements’

IAS 28,‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’(as amended

January 1, 2011
January 1, 2013

July 1,2012

January 1, 2012
January 1, 2013
January 1, 2013
January 1, 2013

in2011)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (amendment to  January 1, 2014
IAS 32)

Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for July 1,2010
first-time adopters(amendment to IFRS 1)

Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-time July 1, 2011

adopters (amendment to IFRS 1)
Government loans (amendment to IFRS 1)
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets (amendment to IFRS 7)
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(amendment to IFRS 7)
IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’

January 1, 2013
July 1, 2011
January 1, 2013

January 1, 2013
(Investment entities:
January 1,2014)

IFRS 11,°Joint arrangements’

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities’

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’

IFRIC 20, ‘Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface
mine’
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Based on the Consolidated Company’s assessment, the adoption of the 2013 version of IFRS has
no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Company,
except the following:

A. TIAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’

The amendment requires entities to separate items presented in OCI classified by nature into
two groups on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently when specific conditions are met. If the items are presented before tax then the
tax related to each of the two groups of OCI items (those that might be reclassified and those
that will not be reclassified) must be shown separately. Accordingly, the Consolidated
Company will adjust its presentation of the statement of comprehensive income.

B. IAS 19 (revised), ‘Employee benefits’

Past service cost will be recognized immediately in the period incurred. Net interest expense
or income, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit asset or liability,
replace the finance charge and expected return on plan assets. The return of plan assets,
excluding net interest expenses, is recognized in other comprehensive income. An entity is
required to recognize termination benefits at the earlier of when the entity can no longer
withdraw an offer of those benefits and when it recognizes any related restructuring costs.
Additional disclosures are required to present how defined benefit plans may affect the amount,
timing and uncertainty of the entity’s future cash flows.

The Consolidated Company expected to recognize previously unrecognized past service cost
by decreasing accrued pension liabilities by $1,121 and $862, increasing deferred income tax
liabilities by $191 and $147, increasing retained earnings by $930 and $715 at January 1, 2014
and December 31, 2014, respectively. Employee benefit expense would be decreased by $259
and tax expense would be increased by $44 for the year ended December 31, 2014.

C. Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets (amendment to IFRS 7)

The amendment enhances qualitative and quantitative disclosures for all transferred financial
assets that are not derecognized and for any continuing involvement in transferred assets,
existing at the reporting date. Based on the Consolidated Company’s assessment, the adoption
of the amendment will require the Consolidated Company to include qualitative and
quantitative disclosures for all transferred financial assets.

D. IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’

The standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. Based on the Group’s assessment, the adoption of
the standard has no significant impact on its consolidated financial statements, and the Group
will disclose additional information about fair value measurements accordingly.

(3) IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

A. New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the
2013 version of IFRS as endorsed by the FSC:

Effective Date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 July 1, 2014
Improvements to [FRSs 2011-2013 July 1, 2014
Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 January 1, 2016
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Effective Date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Disclosure initiative (amendments to IAS 1) January 1, 2016 January 1, 2016
Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and January 1, 2016
amortization (amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38)

Agriculture: bearer plants (amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41) January 1, 2016

Services related contributions from employees or third parties July 1, 2014
(amendments to IAS 19)

Equity method in separate financial statements (amendments to January 1, 2016
IAS 27)

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets January 1, 2014
(amendments to IAS 36)

Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting January 1, 2014
(amendments to TAS 39)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ January 1, 2018

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate ~ January 1, 2016
or joint venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

Investment entities: applying the consolidation exception January 1, 2016

(amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

Accounting for acquisition of interests in joint operations January 1, 2016
(amendments to IFRS 11)

IFRIC 14, ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ January 1, 2016

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ January 1, 2017

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’ January 1, 2014

B. The Consolidated Company is assessing the potential impact of the new standards,
interpretations and amendments above and has not yet been able to reliably estimate their
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement

The consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Company have been prepared in
accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparations of Financial Reports by Public
Banks” and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards,
IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred
herein as the “IFRS”).

(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention:

(A)Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
(B) Available-for-sale financial assets.
(C) Employee benefit liabilities reserve.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
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process of applying the Consolidated Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

C. The Consolidated Company’s analysis of expense is classified based on the nature of
expenses.

D. The Consolidated Company classifies the economic activities as operating activities,
investment activities and financing activities based on the judgment of the management.
Consolidated statements of cash flows report the changes in cash and cash equivalents in the
period based on operating, investing and financing activities. Cash and cash equivalents
include highly liquid investments. Components of cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in
Note 4(5).

(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(A) In accordance with the IAS 27 as endorsed by the FSC, the Consolidated Company
prepares the consolidated financial statements by aggregating the Consolidated
Company’s assets, liabilities, equities, revenues and expenses, which have been
eliminated during the consolidation. In addition, the financial statements of Consolidated
Company are made in the same reporting period.

(B) All subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Company’s consolidated financial
statements. Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the
Consolidated Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies. In
general, control is presumed to exist when the parent owns, directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power of an entity. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible have been considered
when assessing whether the Consolidated Company controls another entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Consolidated
Company. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

(C) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains or losses on transactions
between companies within the Consolidated Company are eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Consolidated Company.

(D) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(E) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent
losing control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted
for as equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity.

(F) When the Consolidated Company loses control of a subsidiary, the Consolidated
Company remeasure any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value.
Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss. All
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the
related assets or liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Consolidated Company
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loses control of a subsidiary, all gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary should be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be reclassified to profit or loss when the
related assets or liabilities are disposed of.

B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:
Ownership (%)

Name of December 31, December 31,
Investor Name of Subsidiary Main Business Activities 2014 2013
The Bank  Yuanta Life Insurance Agency Co.,  Life insurance agency 100.00 100.00
Ltd.(“Yuanta Life Insurance
Agency”)
The Bank  Yuanta Property Insurance Agency ~ Property insurance agency 100.00 100.00

Co., Ltd.(“"Yuanta Property

Insurance Agency”)
The Bank  Yuanta International Leasing Co., Leasing business 100.00 100.00
Ltd.(“Yuanta International Leasing”)

C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements:
None.

D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates:
None.

E. Nature of the restrictions on fund remittance from subsidiaries to the parent company:
None.

(4) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Consolidated Company’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The functional currency for the components of Consolidated
Company is New Taiwan dollars, and the only exception is Offshore Banking Unit for which the
functional currency is US dollars. However, the consolidated financial statements are presented in
New Taiwan dollars.

A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(A) Foreign currency transactions dominated in a foreign currency or required to settle in a
foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(B) Assets dominated in foreign currency are translated by the closing exchange rate at the
date of balance sheet that is consolidated. When several exchange rates are available, the
rate used is that at which the future cash flows represented by the transaction or balance
could have been settled if those cash flows had occurred at the measurement date. Any
translation difference is recognized as gain and loss in the period.

(C) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies:
a. Assets and liabilities carried at cost are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at
the original transaction date.

b. Assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are re-translated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date at which the fair value is determined.

When the gains and losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in other comprehensive income, any translation difference

97



included in the gains and losses are also recognized in other comprehensive income. When
the gains and losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized as gains and losses, any translation difference included in the
gains and losses are also recognized as gains and losses.
B. Translation of foreign operations

If an entity has a functional currency (not in an economy with high inflation) that is different

from presentation currency in the consolidated statements, its operation result and financial

position is translated into presentation currency by the following procedures:

(A) All presented assets and liabilities are re-translated by the closing exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the consolidated balance sheet.

(B) The presented gains and losses are re-translated by the exchange rate of the trading date.

(C) All gains and losses arising from translation are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

(5) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, due from
banks and short-term highly liquid investments that is readily convertible to known amount of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash and cash equivalents, due from central bank
and call loans to other banks, Investments in notes and bonds under resale agreements qualified as
cash and cash equivalents as defined by IAS 7.

(6) Bills and bonds under repurchase or resale agreements

In relation to transactions of bills and securities with a condition of repurchase agreement or resell
agreement, the interest expense and interest income are recognized as incurred at the date of sale
and purchase and the agreed period of sale and purchase. The repo trade liabilities, bond liabilities,
reverse repo trade bills and bond investments are recognized at the date of sale or purchase.

(7) Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities of the Consolidated Company including derivatives are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet and are properly classified in accordance with IFRSs
as endorsed by the FSC.

A. Financial assets

All financial assets held by the Consolidated Company are classified into the following four
categories: “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “receivables”,
“available-for-sale financial assets” and “held-to-maturity financial assets”.

(A)Regular way purchase or sale

Financial assets held by the Consolidated Company are all accounted for using trade date
accounting.

(B) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

a. When the financial assets of the Consolidated Company are held to repurchase or resell
or when the portfolio belongs to derivative instruments, or are held in a short-term
profit seeking model, then they should be classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and measured by fair value at initial recognition.

b. Criteria to designate financial assets and financial liabilities as at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition are as follows:
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(a) The designation can eliminate or significantly mitigate a measurement or
recognition inconsistency as a result of different measuring basis of assets or
liabilities; or

(b) The performance of financial instruments is assessed by fair value; or

(c) Hybrid (combined) instruments include embedded derivatives.

c. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss and financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition are recognized under “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”. Any changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit are recognized under “gain and loss of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”.

(C) Loans and receivables

a. Receivables include loans and receivables that are originally generated, which refer to
the receivables that are originated directly from money, product or service that the
Consolidated Company provides to the debtors, while the latter refers to all the other
loans and receivables.

b. Loans and receivables are measured at initial fair value as the transaction price, and are
recognized on the basis of fair value plus significant transaction cost, expense,
significant service fee charged, discount or premium factor. Subsequently, the loans and
receivables shall be measured using effective interest rate method. However, according
to “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks” (7)
and (10) of Article 10 stipulates that loans and receivables could be measured at initial
amount if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

c. Bond investments without active market are initially recognized at fair value on the
trade date plus transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Amortization of a premium or
a discount on such assets is recognized in profit or loss.

(D) Available-for-sale financial assets

a. Available-for-sale financial assets are measured by fair value plus the trading cost of
acquisition upon initial recognition.

b. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured by fair value with
changes in fair value recognized as other comprehensive income. The cumulative

valuation gain or loss is recognized as gain and loss in the period when it is
derecognized from the financial assets.

c. Because the Consolidated Company had intention and was able to hold the following
assets to maturity or foreseeable future, financial assets that were initially classified as
available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to held-to-maturity financial assets
and bond investments without active market in accordance with IAS 39.

(E) Held-to-maturity financial assets

a. Held-to-maturity financial assets are measured by the fair value plus the trading cost of
acquisition upon initial recognition.

b. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at
amortized cost and interest income using the effective interest rate.

B. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held by the Consolidated Company include financial liabilities at fair
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value through profit or loss (including financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss) and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost.

(A)Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

a. Including financial liabilities held for trading or financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

b. Such as financial liabilities incurred with a purpose of repurchasing or resale in a short
period of time, identifiable portion of financial instruments in the portfolio belonging to
the consolidated management upon initial recognition with evidence indicating that its
latest operating is in a short-term profit seeking model, are classified as held for trading
purpose. Derivative instruments are also classified as held for trading, including the
obligation of the financial assets borrowed from short seller.

c. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and those designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are recognized
under financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and any change in fair
value is recognized as “gain and loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss”.

(B) Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost include liabilities not classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial guarantee contracts, loan
commitment with a lower-than-market interest rate and the financial liabilities incurred
due to continuing engagement or that the transferring of a financial asset does not meet the
requirement of derecognition.

C. Derecognition of financial assets

The Consolidated Company derecognizes a financial asset when one of the following
conditions is met:

(A) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset expire.

(B) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have been transferred
and the Consolidated Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset.

(C) The Consolidated Company does not transfer and retain substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; however, it retains control of the asset.

D. Derecognition of financial liabilities

(A) A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(B) The Consolidated Company derecognizes an original financial liability and recognizes a
new financial liability if the terms of an existing financial liability have substantial
modifications and such modifications make significant differences to the original terms.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.

(8) Financial instruments offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset in the net amount in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(9) Impairment of financial assets

A. The Consolidated Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

B. The criteria that the Consolidated Company uses to determine whether there is objective
evidence of an impairment loss are as follows:

(A) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
(B) A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(C) The Consolidated Company, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty granted the borrower a concession that a lender would not otherwise
consider;

(D)It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

(E) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties;

(F) Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial asset in the group,
including adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group or national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group;

(G) Information about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the
technology, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates, and
indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered;

(H)A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost; or

(D Other indicators determined by the Consolidated Company’s internal policies.

C. When the Consolidated Company assesses that there has been objective evidence of
impairment and an impairment loss has occurred, accounting for impairment is made as
follows according to the category of financial assets:

(A)Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Consolidated Company assesses whether objective evidence exists which indicates
impairment losses of material individual financial assets and impairment losses generated
individually or as a group from immaterial individual financial assets. If the Consolidated
Company decides that there is no objective evidence exist for the financial asset
individually assessed (no matter it is material or not), the asset should be included in the
financial asset portfolios sharing similar credit risk characteristics before the group
assessment. Financial assets that are assessed individually with impairment recognized or
continually recognized need not be included in the group assessment.

If there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the impairment
amount is the difference between the financial assets’ book value and the estimated future
cash flow (exclusive of future credit loss) discounted using the original effective interest
rate. The asset’s book value is decreased by adjusting the account of allowance for bad

101



debt, and loss amount is recognized under “bad debt expense and reserve for guarantee
liabilities” or “asset impairment losses” depending on the nature of financial asset. If a
financial asset uses floating rate, then the discounting rate used to assess impairment loss
shall adopt the current effective interest rate as decided by the contract.

No matter the collateral is provided or not, by calculating the pledged financial assets to
estimate the present value of future cash flow, the cash flow that may occur from the
collateral can be reflected. However, the acquisition or selling cost regarding the collateral
should be deducted.

Financial assets are categorized on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics in relation
to collective assessment for impairment. The credit risk characteristics refer to the
capability of a debtor to pay all the amounts at maturities according to the contract term
(for example, asset type, overdue status, assessing procedure or rating process of the
relevant credit risk may all be put into consideration). The debtor with specific
representative characteristics chosen, of whom the capacity to pay amounts due as
required by the contract, is closely correlated to the future cash flow estimate of each asset
portfolio.

For financial assets assessed collectively, the estimate made on future cash flow is made
on the basis of historical losses of the assets sharing similar credit risk characteristics
within the assessment group. Historical loss experience is adjusted by the current
observable information to reflect the effect on the current situation of the period in which
the historical loss experience has not been reflected. Also, non-existing historical effects
should be excluded.

The estimate of future cash flow movement reflects the movement in observable
information of each period (such as change in real estate price, commodity price, payment
status or the change in other factors giving rise to losses and loss amounts attributable to
one or more events) , and the two move in the same direction. The Consolidated Company
regularly reviews the methods and assumptions used to estimate future cash flow to
mitigate difference between the losses estimate and actual losses experience.

When a loan to other banks or clients is confirmed to be not recoverable, the book value
and related allowance for bad debt should be written off. Once the Consolidated Company
completes all the necessary legal procedures and the impairment amount is confirmed, the
unrecoverable loans can be written off.

In the subsequent period, if the amount of the impairment loss decreases due to an event
occurring after the impairment was originally recognized (for example, the upgraded
credit rating of the debtor), the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
the allowance for bad debt to the extent that the carrying amounts do not exceed the
amortized cost that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
in prior years. The reversal is recognized as current profit and loss.

In addition, above-mentioned assessments for provisions are made in accordance with
“Regulations Governing the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and
Deal with Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans” issued by FSC.

(B) Available-for-sale financial assets

When the reduction of fair value of available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized
in other comprehensive income and at the same time with objective evidence indicating
that the impairment has incurred, even if the financial asset has not been derecognized,
accumulative evaluation losses recognized in other comprehensive income shall be
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reclassified into gain and loss.

Equity instruments classified as available-for-sale assets, the impairment loss cannot be
reversed through gain and loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value should all be
recognized in other comprehensive income. Debt instruments that are classified as
available-for-sale assets, if the fair value increases in the subsequent periods which can be
objectively related to the incidence after the impairment loss has been recognized in gain
and loss, can be reversed and recognized as gain and loss in the period.

(10) Derivative financial instruments

A.

Derivative instruments are initially recognized at fair value at the contract date and
subsequently measured by fair value. The fair value includes the public quotation in an
active market or the latest trade price, and evaluation techniques such as cash flow
discounting model or option pricing model. All derivatives are recognized as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives and the economic
characteristics of the main contract should be examined for the embedded derivatives. If the
two are not closely correlated and the main contract is not a financial asset or liability at fair
value through profit and loss, the main contract and embedded derivatives should be
respectively recognized unless the overall hybrid contract is designated as assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. The embedded derivatives are the financial
assets or liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

(11) Property and equipment

A.

The property and equipment of the Consolidated Company are recognized on the basis of
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. Cost includes any cost
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

If the future economic benefit generated from subsequent expenses of the asset can be
measured reliably and is very likely to flow into the Consolidated Company, the subsequent
expenses of property and equipment may be individually recognized as an asset or included
in the carrying amount of the asset. Significant renewals and improvements incurred to
increase the future economic benefits of the assets are capitalized. Routine maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

The property and equipment of the Consolidated Company were initially recognized at the
original cost and subsequently measured by cost model.

. Land is not affected by depreciation. Depreciation for other assets is provided on a

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets till salvage value. Useful life
is as follows:

Buildings 3 ~ 55 years
Office equipment 3~ 6years
Transportation equipment 3~ Syears
Leased improvements 3 ~ 10 years
Other equipment 3 ~20 years

On each consolidated balance sheet date, the Consolidated Company appropriately adjusts
the salvage value and useful life of the assets.

Any gain or loss on disposal is calculated by the difference between the carrying amounts
and proceeds on disposal, which is recognized in “Other non-interest income” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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(12) Lease

A. In accordance with the TAS 17 and SIC 4 as endorsed by the FSC, the lease contracts are
classified as operating lease and financing lease.

B. The lease contract of the Consolidated Company includes operating lease and finance lease.
(A)Operating lease

Payments that the Consolidated Company receives or charges under the operating lease
are recognized as gain and loss on a straight-line basis during the contract term, which are
recognized under “other business and administrative expenses” and “other net non-interest
income”, respectively.

(B) Finance lease

a. When the Consolidated Company is the lessee, the lower of fair value of lease assets
or the lowest present value of the lease payment is capitalized. Rental payment is
amortized to finance leasing liabilities and the interest expense is recognized. Interest
expense is calculated based on the beginning balance of finance leasing liabilities of
each period using the leasing embedded interest rate or incremental borrowing interest
rate and recognized as gains and losses. Finance leasing liabilities are recognized
under “other financial liabilities”. Property and equipment acquired through finance
leasing contract are measured by cost model.

b. When the Consolidated Company is the lessor, the asset is derecognized when the
financing contract is signed and the lessor should record a finance lease as lease
receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease (including initial
direct costs). The difference between gross lease receivable and the present value of
the receivable is recognized as unrealized interest income, which is calculated based
on remaining lease payment receivable using the embedded interest rate or incremental
borrowing interest rate and recognized as current gain and loss at period end.

(13) Investment property

A. The properties held by the Consolidated Company, with an intention to obtain long-term
rental profit or capital increase or both and not being used by any other enterprises of the
consolidated entities, are classified as investment property. Investment property includes the
office building and land rented in a form of operating lease.

B. Part of the property may be held by the Consolidated Company for self-use purpose and the
remaining are used to generate rental income or capital appreciation. If the property held by
the Consolidated Company can be sold individually, then the accounting treatment should
be made respectively.

C. When the future economic benefit related to the investment property is highly likely to flow
into the Consolidated Company and the costs can be reliably measured, the investment
property shall be recognized as assets. When the future economic benefit generated from
subsequent costs is highly likely to flow into the entity and the costs can be reliably
measured, the subsequent expenses of the assets shall be capitalized. All maintenance cost
are recognized as incurred in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

D. When there is certain replacement occurring onto the investment property, the replacement
cost should be recognized in the carrying amount of the investment property given that the
criteria of recognition can be met. The carrying amount of the replaced account should be
derecognized.
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(14

E. Investment property is subsequently measured using the cost model. Depreciated cost is
used to calculate amortization expense after initial measurement. The depreciation method,
remaining useful life and residual value should apply the same rules as applicable for
property and equipment.

F. The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the financial statements at each
consolidated balance sheet date. Each year, the appraisal of fair value is conducted by
external appraisal contractor, and managing segments of the Consolidated Company review
the characteristics, location and status of the investment property to determine its fair value
accordingly. However, the fair value of investment property does not reflect that the future
capital expense can be improved or benefited from, nor the future benefit related to future
expense is reflected.

Intangible assets
A. Goodwill

Pursuant to IFRS 3, ‘Business Combinations’ as endorsed by the FSC, the excess of the
consideration transferred in business combination over the net identifiable assets acquired
and the net fair value of liabilities assumed shall be recognized as goodwill.

The company is entitled to perform impairment testing on its goodwill on a timely basis.
Furthermore, any impairment loss is required to be recognized when occurs and the carry
amount is also needed to be accounted. Impairment loss of goodwill that has been
recognized shall not be reversed.

B. Computer software
Acquired computer software are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire

and bring to use the specific software. The cost is amortized over its estimated useful life.
The computer software’s estimated useful life is five to ten years.

(15) Impairment of non-financial assets

(16)

The Consolidated Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of
those assets where there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use.
Except for goodwill, when the circumstances or reasons for recognizing impairment loss for an
asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish, the impairment loss is reversed. The increased
carrying amount due to reversal should not be more than what the depreciated or amortized
historical cost would have been if the impairment had not been recognized.

Financial bonds payable

Financial bonds payable issued by the Consolidated Company is carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

(17) Liabilities reserve, contingent liabilities and assets

A. The Consolidated Company recognizes liabilities when all of the following three conditions
are met :

(A)present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of past event;
(B) the outflow of economic benefits is highly probable upon settlement; and
(C) the amount is reliably measurable.

B. The Consolidated Company does not recognize liability reserve for the future operating
losses. If there are several similar obligations, the outflow of economic benefit as a result of
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settlement is determined based on the overall obligation. Liability reserve should be
recognized when the outflow of economic benefits is probable in order to settle the
obligation as a whole even if the outflow of economic benefits from any one of the
obligation is remote.

. When the time value may have a significant impact on a currency, the reserve is measured

by the present value of expense which is required for settling the anticipated obligation. The
pre-tax discount rate is used with timely adjustment that reflects the current market
assessments on the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabilities.

. Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past event, whose existence will

be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Consolidated Company. Or it could be a present
obligation as a result of past event but the payment is not probable or the amount cannot be
measured reliably. The Consolidated Company did not recognize any contingent liabilities
but made appropriate disclosure in compliance with relevant regulations.

Contingent asset is a possible obligation that arises from past event, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Consolidated Company. The Consolidated Company
did not recognize any contingent assets and made appropriate disclosure in compliance with
relevant regulations when the economic inflow is probable.

(18) Financial guarantee contracts

A.

The Consolidated Company initially recognizes financial guarantee contracts at fair value
on the date of issuance. The Consolidated Company charges a service fee when the contract
is signed and therefore the service fee income charged is the fair value at the date that the
financial guarantee contract is signed. Service fee received in advance is recognized in
deferred accounts and amortized through straight-line method during the contract term.

Subsequently, the Consolidated Company should measure the financial guarantee contract
issued at the higher of:
(A)the amount determined in accordance with IAS 37; and

(B) the amount initially recognized less, if appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized
in accordance with IAS 18, “Revenue”.

. The best estimate of the liability amount of a financial guarantee contract requires

management to exercise their judgment combined with historical loss data based on the
similar transaction experiences.

. The increase in liabilities due to financial guarantee contract is recognized in “bad debt

expenses and reserve for guarantee liabilities”.

Assessment for above guarantee reserve is assessed and set aside according to “Regulation
Governing the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with
Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans”.

(19) Employee benefits

A.

B.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be
recognized as expenses in that period when the employees render service.

Pensions
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(A) Defined contribution plans

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognized as pension expenses
when they are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an
asset to the extent of a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.

Defined benefit plans

a. In adefined benefit plan, the pension paid is determined based on the amount that
an employee shall receive upon retirement, which could vary with age, work
seniority and salary compensations.

b. The Consolidated Company recognizes the net amount of actuarial present value
of defined benefit obligation less the fair value of fund, which is adjusted with the
net unrecognized gain and loss on pension and the net of prior service cost
recognized as liabilities, and recognizes the pension assets or liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet. Defined benefit obligation is assessed annually using
projected unit credit method by the actuary. The actuarial present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined using the market yield of government
bonds or high-quality corporate bonds of which the currency and maturity are the
same with the defined benefit obligation to discount the future cash flow.

c. Actuarial gain and loss as a result of actual experience or change in actuarial
assumption should be recognized in other comprehensive income immediately.
Prior service costs, except that the continuing service should be amortized
through the vesting period on a straight-line basis due to changing the pension
plan in a specified period (vesting period), should all be recognized as gain and
loss in the period.

Deposits

The Consolidated Company provides preferential interest rate for its employees,

including flat preferential savings for current employees. The gap difference

compared to market interest rate is deemed as employee benefits.

Termination benefits

Termination benefit is paid the employees who are eligible for retirement and
terminated or voluntarily dismissed in exchange for termination benefit. The
Consolidated Company has made commitments in the formal detailed employment
termination plan which is irrevocable, and shall recognize liabilities when providing
termination benefit to employees who voluntarily resign as a result of encouragement.
Termination benefit paid 12 months after the financial reporting date should be
discounted.

Employees’ bonus and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration

Employees’ bonus and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are recognized as
expenses and liabilities, provided that such recognition is required under legal
obligation or constructive obligation and those amounts can be reliably estimated.
However, if the accrued amounts for employees’ bonus and directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration are different from the actual distributed amounts as resolved by the
stockholders at their stockholders’ meeting subsequently, the differences should be
recognized based on the accounting for changes in estimates.
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(20) Income tax
A. Current income tax

Income tax payable (refundable) is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted in the
countries where a company operates and generates taxable income. Except that the
transactions or other matters are directly recognized in other comprehensive income or
equity, and that related income taxes in the period are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly derecognized from equity, all the others should be recognized as income
or expense and recorded as gain and loss in the period. An additional 10% tax is levied on
the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in the year the
stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

B. Deferred income tax

(A) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rate of the
anticipated period that the future assets realization or the liabilities settlement requires,
which is based on the effective or existing tax rate at the consolidated balance sheet
date. The carrying amounts and temporary differences of assets and liabilities
included in the consolidated balance sheet are calculated using the balance sheet
liability method and recognized as deferred income tax. The temporary difference of
the Consolidated Company mainly occurs due to the setting aside and transferring of
valuation and pension reserve of certain financial instruments (including derivatives).

(B) The land revaluation appraisal due to the revaluation assessment in compliance with
relevant regulations, deemed as taxable temporary difference, is recognized as
deferred income tax liabilities.

(C) If the future taxable income is probable to provide unused loss carryforwards or
deferred income tax credit which can be realized in the future, the proportion of
realization is deemed as deferred income tax asset.

C. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet
when the entity has the legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and they are levied by the same taxation authority on either the same entity or
different entities that intend to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Consolidated Company does not offset deferred income tax assets
against liabilities taxed by different tax authorities.

(21) Interest income and expense

Other than those classified as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss,
all the interest income and interest expense generated from interest-bearing financial assets are
calculated by effective interest rate according to relevant regulations and recognized as “interest
income” and “interest expense” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(22) Net service fee and commission income

Handling fees and expenses are recognized when cash is received, or the earning process is
substantially completed; service fee earned from performing significant items shall be recognized
upon the completion of the service, such as syndication loan service fee received from sponsor,
handling fees and expenses of subsequent services of loans are amortized or included in the
calculation of effective interest rate of loans and receivables during the service period.
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(23) Operating segment report

A. The Consolidated Company’s operation segment reports are consistent with the internal
reports provided to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”).

B. Inter-segmental transactions are arm’s length transactions, and gain and loss arising from
such transactions are eliminated by the Consolidated Company upon the preparation of
consolidated financial statements. Profit and loss directly attributable to various segments
have been considered when segment performance is being evaluated.

Critical accounting judgment, estimates and key sources of assumption uncertainty

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 4,
management has made some professional judgements that have significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statement. These also include key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimates and assumptions of the Consolidated Company are the best estimates made in compliance
with IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC. Estimates and assumptions are made based on the past
experience and other factors, including the anticipation to the future, and evaluation will be
continuously carried on.

Certain accounting policies and judgments of management could have significantly affected the
recognized amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

(1) Impairment losses of loans

The Consolidated Company assesses impairment on loans quarterly and decides to recognize
impairment loss mainly depending if there is any observable evidence indicating that potential
impairment may occur. This evidence may include observable information that indicates worsening
of the debtor’s payment status. In the analysis of estimated cash flows, management makes its
estimate based on the loss experience of assets with similar credit risk characteristics in the past. The
Consolidated Company regularly reviews methods and assumptions used on the cash flow amount
and the timing to mitigate the difference between the estimated and actual loss amount.

(2) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments with no active market or quoted price use valuation technique to determine
the fair value. Under such condition, fair value is assessed through the observable information or
models of similar financial instruments. If there is no observable input available in a market, the
fair value of financial instrument is assessed through appropriate assumptions. When valuation
models are adopted to determine the fair value, all the models should be calibrated to ensure that
the output can actually reflect actual information and market price. Models should try to take only
observable information as much as possible while management needs to estimate the fluctuation.
Please refer to Note 12(2) for sensitivity analysis for financial instruments.

The fair value of unlisted stocks held by the Consolidated Company that are not traded in an
active market is determined considering those companies’ recent funding raising activities and
technical development status, fair value assessment of other companies of the same type, market
conditions and other economic indicators existing on balance sheet date. Any changes in these
judgments and estimates will impact the fair value measurement of these unlisted stocks. Please
refer to Note 12(1) for the financial instruments’ fair value information.

As of December 31, 2014, the carrying amounts of unlisted stocks with no active market classified
as available-for-sale financial assets by the Consolidated Company amounted to $900,040.
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(3) Impairment assessment of goodwill

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of goodwill to determine
whether there is any indication that it has suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculation. Furthermore, refer to Note 6(12), this calculation requires the estimates
of expectated future cash flows of cash-generating units with appropriated discount rate.

(4) Post-employment benefit

The present value of post-employment benefit obligation is based on actuarial result of various
assumptions, through which any change could affect the carrying amount of post-employment
benefit obligations.

Discount rate is included when determining the net pension cost (income), and the Consolidated
Company decides an appropriate discount rate at the end of each year, which is used to calculate
the estimated present value of future cash outflow of post-employment benefit obligation needed.
The Consolidated Company should consider interest rate of high quality corporate bonds of the
same currency and maturity in order to determine appropriate discount rate. Other significant
assumptions of post-employment benefit are made based on the current market conditions.

(5) Income tax

The Consolidated Company recognizes additional income tax liabilities arising from tax issues
based on the subsequent development of stringent evaluation and assessment on tax issues. The
difference between the ultimate tax amount and the initial recognition, if any, will affect the
recognition for income tax in the period and deferred income tax account.

6. Details of significant accounts

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2014 December 31,2013

Cash on hand $ 2,884,758 $ 2,967,399
Foreign currency on hand 318,492 284,996
Checks for clearing 1,248,129 544,989
Due from other banks 8,520,875 3,478,171
Futures trading guarantees 106,021 57,133
Cash in transit 42,300 -
Total $ 13,120,575 § 7,332,688

For the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes as follows :

Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,120,575 $ 7,332,688

Due from Central Bank and call 63,924,446 72,490,441
loans to other banks

Total $ 77,045,021 $ 79,823,129
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(2) Due from Central Bank and call loans to other banks

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Reserve for deposits - account A $ 8,402,599 § 6,440,564

Reserve for deposits - account B 15,171,170 13,128,824

Reserve for deposits - foreign 190,308 74,875
currency account

Reserve for deposits - inter-bank 1,200,330 805,755
clearing fund

Time deposits 46,100,000 58,600,000

Call loans to banks 8,031,209 6.569.247

Total $ 79,095,616 $ 85.619.265

Reserves due from Central Bank are calculated monthly at prescribed rates on the average daily
balances of various deposit accounts and structured accounts and then lodged into reserve for
deposits account of Central Bank. The reserve for deposits - account A is non-interest bearing and
call on demand. Reserve for deposits - account B is interest bearing and its use is restricted to
monthly adjustment in the reserve for deposits only according to relevant regulations.

(3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — net
December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Financial assets held for trading :

Corporate bonds $ 23,746,138 §$ 10,695,171
Commercial paper 5,925,116 6,944,690
Time deposits 4,179,205 -
Financial bonds 4,093,444 219,698
Convertible corporate bonds 3,669,996 1,511,875
Government bonds 473,735 2,122,383
Beneficiary certificates 300,000 300,000
Stocks of companies listed on 2,725 -
TSE or OTC
Derivative financial instruments 5,733,872 2,607,335
Valuation adjustment of financial 37,141 ( 25,426)

assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition
Subtotal 48.161.372 24.375.726

Financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition :
Structured interest rate products 1,250,180 -
Valuation adjustment of financial ( 46) -
assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition
Subtotal 1,250,134 -
Total $ 49.411,506 $ 24,375,726
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For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the net gain (loss) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and liabilities held
for trading $ 829,190 $( 785,419)
Net gain (loss) on financial assets and liabilities 7,503 ( 224)
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Total $ 836,693 $( 785,643)

A. Financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition is
for hybrid instruments.

B. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Consolidated Company has no financial assets held
for trading undertaken for repurchase agreements or pledged as collaterals.

(4) Receivables- net

Spot exchange receivables $ 10,336,957 $ 5,220,818
Factoring receivables 3,832,525 3,342,224
Credit card receivables 2,029,005 1,397,481
Interest receivables 1,389,572 1,001,393
Acceptances receivables 831,113 1,083,765
Account receivables 270,175 262,359
Other receivables 475,568 105,266
Subtotal 19,164,915 12,413,306
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ( 79.724)( 80,657)
Total $ 19,085,191 $ 12,332,649

(5) Bills discounted and loans- net

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Bills discounted $ 412,269 $ 152,075
Overdrafts 231,891 290,628
Short-term loans 65,205,802 53,621,047
Short-term loans secured 43,078,675 38,911,926
Medium-term loans 94,766,621 95,028,169
Medium-term loans secured 95,774,531 78,020,114
Long-term loans 6,872,722 7,483,372
Long-term loans secured 143,135,817 127,398,331
Import- export negotiations 127,766 64,487
Accounts receivable financing 513,194 272,140
Loans transferred to non-performing loans 772,784 1,143,123
Subtotal 450,892,072 402,385,412
Less: allowance for credit losses ( 5,719,233)( 5,052,374)
Less: Adjustments of discount ( 76.635)( 64.295)
Total $ 445,096,204 §$ 397,268,743

The Consolidated Company recognized appropriate allowance for bad debts for the bills
discounted, loans and receivables. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, details and changes in
allowance for bad debts in relation to bills discounted and loans are as follows:
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For the years ended December 31

Bills discounted and loans 2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 5,052,374 § 4,932,367
Add : Provision 1,079,349 1,241,738
Foreign exchange rate changes and 28,153 7,346
others
Less : Transfers to other allowance for bad debts - ( 25)
Reversal due to disposal ( 231,731) -
Write-off ( 208.912) ( 1,129.052)
Ending balance $ 5,719,233  § 5,052,374

For the years ended December 31

Receivables 2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 160,144 § 127,507
Add : Provision 80,540 -
Transfers from other allowance accounts - 63,758
Foreign exchange rate changes and 632 16
others
Less: Reversal - ( 6,814)
Reversal due to disposal ( 856) -
Write-off ( 22,042) ( 24,323)
Ending balance $ 218,418 $ 160,144

Please refer to Note 12(3) for the impairment assessment made on bills discounted, loans and
receivables of the Consolidated Company.

(6) Available-for-sale financial assets- net
December 31,2014 December 31,2013
Bonds (including government bonds, financial bonds, $ 31,648,627 $ 29,452,569
and corporate bonds)

Listed (TSE and OTC) stocks 2,156,931 767,202
Unlisted stocks 359,667 386,969
Valuation adjustments of available-for-sale financial 601,949 433,103
assets

Subtotal 34,767,174 31,039,843
Less : accumulated impairment- available-for-sale ( 155) ( 155)

financial assets
Total $ 34,767,019 $ 31,039,688

A. Reclassifications

(A) Because the Consolidated Company changed its intent to hold and was able to hold the
following assets to maturity or foreseeable future, government bonds that were initially
classified as available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified on September 30, 2013 in
accordance with paragraph 50(e) of IAS 39. The fair value of the government bonds on
the date of reclassification was as follows:

113



Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity Bond investments
At September 30, 2013 _ financial assets _ financial assets _without active market
Before reclassification  $ 28,651,530 $ -3 -
After reclassification - 4,950,298 23,701,232

(B) Book value and fair value of reclassified financial assets that have not yet been disposed
of are as follows:

December 31,2014

Book Value Fair Value
Held-to-maturity financial assets $ 4,976,243  $ 5,025,199
Bond investments without active market 23,822,324 24,123,087

$ 28,798,567 $ 29,148,286

December 31,2013

Book Value Fair Value
Held-to-maturity financial assets $ 4,955,516 $ 4,957,977
Bond investments without active market 23,725,421 23,898,224

$ 28,680,937 § 28,856,201

(C) The loss on aforesaid government bonds recognized in other comprehensive income was
$1,059,284 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

(D) If the above government bonds had not been reclassified to held-to-maturity financial
assets and bond investments without active market on September 30, 2013, the gain
recognized in other comprehensive income would be $295,216 for the year ended
December, 2014.

(E) The effective interest rates of the assets that were reclassified on September 30, 2013
ranged between 1.329 and 1.799G on the reclassification date.

(F) The expected recoverable cash flow of the assets that were reclassified on September 30,
2013 is $32,803,022 on the reclassification date.

B. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, for the above available-for-sale financial assets pledged
as collaterals, please refer to Note 8.

(7) Held-to-maturity financial assets— net

December 31,2014 December 31,2013
Government bonds $ 7,277,780 $ 4,955,516

A. The Consolidated Company recognized interest income of $67,884 and $16,763 for
held-to-maturity financial assets in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Consolidated Company has no held-to-maturity
financial assets pledged to others as collaterals.

C. Because the Consolidated Company changed its intent to hold the following assets, a portion
of the government bonds were reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets to
held-to-maturity financial assets on September 30, 2013. Details of the reclassification are
provided in Note 6 (6)
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(8) Other financial assets- net

December 31,2014 December 31,2013

Bond investments without active market $ 38,833,620 $ 26,102,766

Advance and bills purchased 7,992 17,144

Non-loans reclassified to non-performing loans 138,694 135,182

Subtotal 38,980,306 26,255,092
Less: provision for credit losses ( 138,694) ( 79,487)
Discount adjustment - ( 229)

Total $ 38,841,612 $ 26,175,376

A. The Consolidated Company recognized interest income of $639,811and $97,450 for bond
investments without active market in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, details of the Consolidated Company’s bond investments
without active market pledged to others as collateral are provided in Note 8.

C. Because the Consolidated Company changed its intent to hold the following assets, a portion
of the government bonds were reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets to bond
investments without active market on September 30, 2013. Details of the reclassification are
provided in Note 6 (6).
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(10) Investment property- net

Change in investment property of the Consolidated Company:

Land and land

Cost improvements Buildings Total
At January 1, 2014 $ 311,496 § 130,226 $ 441,722
Disposals ( 9,351) - ( 9,351)
Reclassifications ( 652) 2,174 1,522
At December 31, 2014 301,493 132,400 433,893
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2014 - ( 17,642)( 17,642)
Depreciation - ( 4,184)( 4,184)
Reclassifications - ( 190) ( 190)
At December 31, 2014 - ( 22.016)( 22.016)
Accumulated impairment
At January 1, 2014 ( 109,272) - ( 109,272)
Reversal of impairment loss 3.447 - 3.447
At December 31, 2014 ( 105,825) - ( 105.825)
Net carrying amount $ 195,668 $ 110,384 $ 306,052

Land and land

Cost improvements Buildings Total
At January 1, 2013 $ 287,856 $ 100,719 $ 388,575
Disposals ( 31,690)( 108)( 31,798)
Reclassifications 55.330 29,615 84,945
At December 31, 2013 311,496 130,226 441,722
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2013 - ( 10,094 ) ( 10,094 )
Depreciation - ( 3,647)( 3,647)
Disposals - 108 108
Reclassifications - ( 4,009 ) ( 4.,009)
At December 31, 2013 - ( 17,642)( 17,642)
Accumulated impairment
At January 1, 2013 ( 144,091 ) - ( 144,091)
Reversal of impairment loss 34,819 - 34,819
At December 31, 2013 ( 109,272) - ( 109,272)
Net carrying amount $ 202,224 $ 112,584 $ 314.808

A. The fair value of the investment property held by the Consolidated Company as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $341,899 and $342,365, respectively, according to the
result of valuation by an independent valuation expert using the income method,
comparison method, cost approach and land development analysis approach.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, rental income from the lease of the
investment property was $14,054 and $12,356, respectively.
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(11) Intangible assets- net

Change in intangible assets of the Consolidated Company:

Cost Goodwill Computer software Total

At January 1, 2014 $ 1,924395 $ 675,372 $ 2,599,767
Additional - 4,618 4,618
Disposals - ( 500,440)( 500,440)
Reclassifications - 95,386 95,386
At December 31, 2014 1,924,395 274,936 2.199.331
Accumulated amortization

At January 1, 2014 - ( 541,130)( 541,130)
Amortization - ( 91,272)( 91,272)
Disposals - 500,440 500,440
At December 31, 2014 - ( 131,962)( 131,962)
Net carrying amount $ 1,924,395 $ 142974 $ 2,067,369

Cost Goodwill Computer software Total

At January 1, 2013 $ 1,924395 $ 788,118 § 2,712,513
Additional - 4,563 4,563
Disposals - ( 135,437)( 135,437)
Reclassifications - 18,128 18,128
At December 31, 2013 1,924,395 675.372 2.599.767
Accumulated amortization

At January 1, 2013 - ( 527,549)( 527,549)
Amortization - ( 149,018)( 149,018)
Disposals - 135,437 135,437
At December 31, 2013 - ( 541,130)( 541,130)
Net carrying amount $ 1924395 $ 134242 § 2,058,637

Tests of impairment for goodwill:

A. The basis of determining the recoverable amount of cash generating unit:
Recoverable amount of cash generating unit as identified by the operating segments is
assessed by the value-in-use, which is calculated by pre-tax cash flow of the one-year
financial budget as granted by the management.

B. The key assumptions used in calculating value-in-use are as follows:
(A) Discount rate : Calculations are based on the weighted average cost of capital (WACC),
taking into account risks that are specific to the cash generating units tested for
impairment.

(B) Growth rate : Calculations are based on the conservatively estimated future cash flow
over 10 years.

C. Goodwill of the Consolidated Company is tested annually for impairment. The
reasonableness of key assumptions used in calculating the recoverable amount of cash
generating unit are assessed to ensure that the recoverable amounts of the Consolidated
Company calculated through value-in-use did not exceed the carrying amount. As a result,
no impairment on goodwill was determined. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, the discount rate and growth rate of key assumptions used in calculating value-in-use
were 8.84%, 0.00%, 10.08%, and 0.00%, respectively.
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(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

Other assets-net
December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Refundable deposits-out $ 3,020,674 $ 1,307,349
Other deferred expenses 80,977 95,015
Others 94.444 92.690
Total $ 3,196,095 § 1,495,054

Due to Central Bank and other banks

December 31, 2014

December 31,2013

Due to other banks $ 3,461 $ 1,138

Overdrafts from other banks 2,422 14,235

Call loans from other banks 779,320 8,146,400

Redeposit from the directorate general of postal 4,895,802 4,910,707
remittance

Total $ 5,681,005 $ 13,072,480

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss — net
December 31,2014

December 31,2013

Derivative financial instruments $ 5,679,085

$ 2,336,752

Bills and bonds sold under agreements to repurchase

December 31, 2014

December 31,2013

Bills and bonds payable under agreements to $ 8,340,995 $ -
repurchase

Range of interest-rate -0.05%~2.90% -
Agreed-to-repurchase price $ 8,379,243 § -
Payables

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
Demand remittance payables $ 10,353,521 $ 5,223,423
Checks for clearing 1,248,129 544,989
Accrued expenses 1,138,516 889,210
Bankers’ acceptances payables 831,113 1,083,765
Interest payables 734,711 667,586
Factoring payables 366,174 409,967
Accounts payables 330,376 1,054,549
Collections payable for customers 160,393 151,390
Compensation payables 11,187 11,750
Other payables 650,779 289,992
Total $ 15,824,899 $ 10,326,621
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(17) Deposits and remittances

(18)

Checking deposits

Demand deposits

Time deposits

Negotiable certificates of deposit
Savings deposits

Remittances

Total

Financial debentures payable

Subordinate financial debentures

December 31,2014

December 31, 2013

$ 4,830,187 $ 3,938,258
78,102,071 62,599,117
149,676,566 114,595,554
34,536,500 33,836,500
311,918,441 281,154,262
227.554 359.268

$ 579.291,319 $ 496,482,959

December 31, 2014

December 31,2013

$

23,000,000

$

15,000,000

The details of financial debentures as of December 31, 2014 were as follows:

First series of subordinate financial debentures in 2010

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

$5,000,000

Fixed interest rate at 2.30%
Seven years

Payable every year

Payable on maturity
Price at face value on issuing date

First series of subordinate financial debentures in 2011

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

Second series of subordinate financial debentures in 2011
$2,350,000

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

$2,450,000

Fixed interest rate at 1.75%
Seven years

Payable annually

Repaid on maturity

Priced at face value on issue date

Fixed interest rate at 1.85%
Seven years

Payable annually

Repaid on maturity

Priced at face value on issue date

Third series of subordinate financial debentures in 2011(debenture A)

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

$700,000

Fixed interest rate at 1.80%
Seven years

Payable annually

Repaid on maturity

Priced at face value on issue date
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(19)

(20)

Third series of subordinate financial debentures in 2011(debenture B)

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

$4,500,000

Fixed interest rate at 1.95%

Ten years

Payable annually

Repaid on maturity

Priced at face value on issue date

First series of subordinate financial debentures in 2014(debenture A)

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

$1,600,000

Fixed interest rate at 1.80%
Seven years

Payable annually

Repaid on maturity

Priced at face value on issue date

First series of subordinate financial debentures in 2014(debenture B)

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

$4,700,000

Fixed interest rate at 2.00%

Ten years

Payable annually

Repaid on maturity

Priced at face value on issue date

Second series of subordinate financial debentures in 2014

Par value

Stated interest rate

Period

Interest payment date
Term of principal payment
Issue price

Other financial liabilities

Structured deposit
Appropriated loan fund
Lease payables

Total

Provisions

Provisions for employee benefits
Provisions for guarantee liabilities
Total

$1,700,000

Fixed interest rate at 1.85%
Seven years

Payable annually

Repaid on maturity

Priced at face value on issue date

December 31,2014 December 31,2013

$ 6,022,114 $ 12,793,727
207,400 99,698

8,392 9,571

$ 6.237,906 $ 12,902,996

December 31,2014 December 31,2013

$ 657,772 § 518,743
370,486 217,500
$ 1,028,258 $ 736,243
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Change in provisions for guarantee liabilities of the Consolidated Company is as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 217,500 $ 202,359
Add : Provision 152,765 78,851
Foreign exchange rate changes and others 221 23
Less : Transfers to other allowance for bad debts - ( 63,733)
Ending balance $ 370,486 $ 217,500

(21) Provisions for employee benefits

A. Defined benefit plans:

(A) The Consolidated Company have a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with
the Labor Standards Law, covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the
enforcement of the Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of
employees who chose to continue to be subject to the pension mechanism under the
Law. Under the defined benefit pension plan, two units are accrued for each year of
service for the first 15 years and one unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to
a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on the number of units accrued
and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement.
The Consolidated Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of
Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement fund committee.

(B) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are determined as follows:
December 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Present value of funded obligations $ 1,041,870 $ 916,070
Fair value of plan assets ( 384.960)( 398.448)
656,910 517,622
Unrecognized past service cost 862 1,121
Net liability in the balance sheet $ 657,772 $ 518,743

(C) Changes in present value of funded obligations are as follows:

For the years ended December 31

Present value of funded obligations 2014 2013

At January 1 $ 916,070 $ 920,065
Current service cost 20,351 21,725
Interest expense 18,322 13,801
Actuarial loss 122,358 37,087
Benefits paid ( 33,942 )( 71,832)
Expenses paid ( 1,289)( 4,776)
At December 31 $ 1,041,870 $ 916,070
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(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

For the years ended December 31

Fair value of plan assets 2014 2013

At January 1 $ 398,448 § 453,423
Expected return on plan assets 7,969 6,801
Actuarial gain (loss) 2,795 ( 812)
Employer contributions 9,690 10,868
Benefits paid ( 33.942)( 71.832)
At December 31 $ 384,960 $ 398,448

Amounts of expenses recognized in comprehensive income statements are as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Current service cost $ 20,351 $ 21,725
Interest cost 18,322 13,801
Expected return on plan assets ( 7,969 )( 6,801)
Past service cost ( 259)( 259)
Current pension costs $ 30,445 §$ 28,466

Amounts recognized under other comprehensive income are as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Recognition loss for current period $ 119,563 $ 37.899
Accumulated losses amount $ 195,377 $ 75,814

The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Bank’s and
domestic subsidiaries’ defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s
annual investment and utilization plan and the “Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund” (Article 6:
The scope of utilization for the Fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign financial
institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private
placement equity securities, investment in domestic or foreign real estate
securitization products, etc.). With regard to the utilization of the Fund, its minimum
earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less
than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits
with the interest rates offered by local banks. The constitution of fair value of plan
assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is given in the Annual Labor Retirement
Fund Utilization Report published by the government.

Expected return on plan assets was a projection of overall return for the obligations
period, which was estimated based on historical returns and by reference to the status
of Labor Retirement Fund utilization by the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory
Committee and taking into account the effect that the Fund’s minimum earnings in the
annual distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less than the earnings
attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest
rates offered by local banks. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, actual
return on plan assets of the Consolidated Company are $10,764 and $5,989,
respectively.
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(H) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Discount rate 2.00% 2.00%
Future salary increases 3.00% 3.00%
Expected return on plan assets 2.00% 2.00%

For the years end December 31, 2014 and 2013, assumptions regarding future
mortality rate are set based on the 5th Chart of Life Span Estimate, used by the
Taiwan Life Insurance Enterprises.

(I) Historical information of experience adjustments was as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Present value of defined benefit obligation  $ 1,041,870 $ 916,070 $ 920,065
Fair value of plan assets ( 384.960) ( 398,448) ( 453.423)
Deficit in the plan § 656910 $ 517,622 $ 466,642
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities ~§ 122,358 § 43,154 $( 8,551)
Experience adjustments on plan assets $ 2,795 $( 812)$ ( 4,218)

(J) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plans of the Consolidated
Company within one year from December 31, 2014 amounts to $10,084.

B. Defined contribution plans:

(A) Effective July 1, 2005, the Consolidated Company have established a defined
contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”),
covering all regular employees with R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the
Consolidated Company contributes monthly an amount based on 6.0% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts
at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump
sum upon termination of employment.

(B) Under the defined contribution plan, the Consolidated Company recognized pension
expense of $92,980 and $88,824 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
(22) Other liabilities

December 31,2014 December 31,2013

Collections in advance $ 655,374 $ 606,199
Refundable deposits- in 11,556 8,916
Others 62,749 116,467
Total $ 729,679 $ 731,582

(23) Share capital

A. As of December 31, 2014, authorized capital and paid-in capital were $38,000,000 and
$37,690,491, respectively, equivalent to 3,800,000 thousand and 3,769,049 thousand shares,
respectively, with a par value of $10 dollars per share. As of December 31, 2013,
authorized capital and paid-in capital were $36,500,000 and $36,496,931, respectively,
equivalent to 3,650,000 thousand and 3,649,693 thousand shares, respectively, with a par
value of $10 dollars per share.
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B. The Board of Directors resolved on May 22, 2014 on behalf of stockholders to transfer
undistributed earnings amounting to $1,193,560 to increase its capital, 119,356 thousand
shares with a par value of $10 dollars per share, The Board has set the effective date of
stock distribution for capital increase and earnings transferred to new stocks issuance on
June 26, 2014. The registration for capital change has been completed.

C. The Board of Directors resolved on May 16, 2013 on behalf of stockholders to transfer
undistributed earnings amounting to $1,533,616 to increase its capital,153,362 thousand
shares with a par value of $10 dollars per share. The Board has set the effective date of
stock distribution for capital increase and earnings transferred to new stocks issuance on
June 27, 2013. The registration for capital change has been completed.

(24) Capital surplus

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, additional paid-in capital is by the following composition:
Change in equities of investee

Employee company accounted for under
Share premium stock options equity method Total
$ 6,068,976 $ 47,783 $ 124 3 6,116,883

As required by the Company Law, capital reserve of premiums exceeding the face value on
issuance or the donation is to be used to offset any accumulated deficit. Alternatively, it may be
used to increase capital by issuing new shares or to distribute cash to shareholders in proportion
to their share ownership provided that the company has no accumulated deficit. In addition, as
required by Securities and Exchange Act, only 10% of the aforementioned paid-in capital
reserve shall be capitalized annually in total. Unless the earnings reserve is insufficient to offset
the deficit, the capital reserve shall not be used.

(25) Unappropriated earnings

A. Legal reserve

The Bank’s Articles of Incorporation states that 30% of current year’s earnings after paying
all taxes and offsetting any accumulated deficit, should be set aside as the legal reserve.
Until the legal reserve balance equals the total amount of capital, the maximum cash
earnings distribution shall not exceed 15% of total amount of capital. Provided that the
legal reserve equals the total amount of capital or the criteria of sound financial structure
outlined by the competent authorities is met, the above rule may be exemptible. The legal
reserve is to be used exclusively to offset any accumulated deficit or to increase capital by
issuing new shares or to distribute cash to shareholder in proportion to their share
ownership when the reserve has exceeded capital by 25%.

B. Special reserve

In addition to the legal reserve, the Bank should set aside special reserve in accordance
with its Articles of Incorporation or provisions under the applicable laws and regulations.
Special reserve for unrealized loss of financial instruments accounted for in current year’s
other equity (ex: accumulated balance of translation gains and losses on the financial
statements of foreign operating entities and unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale
financial assets, etc.) should be recognized from the current year’s earnings after tax and
prior year’s undistributed earnings. Unless there is a reversal for the unrealized loss of
financial instruments in other equity, distribution of earnings may be allowed only for the
reversal amount and no other purpose is allowed.
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C. Unappropriated earnings distribution and dividend policy

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

According to the Bank’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any,
shall first be used to pay all taxes, to offset prior years’ operating losses, and then to
set aside as legal reserve and special reserve in accordance with provisions under the
applicable laws and regulations. The remaining earnings are then distributed as
follows: set aside 0.01% ~ 5% as employees’ bonus, and the remaining earnings are
subject to the Board of Directors’ decision to propose a distribution plan and to be
submitted to the Ordinary Stockholders’ Meeting for approval.

In order to continuously expand operation scale and enhance the profitability and
capital adequacy ratio, the Company adopts a dividend surplus policy which regulates
retained earning distribution in cash dividends shall not be less than 30% of the
annual earnings to be distributed. Additionally, cash dividends distribution shall be
resolved at stockholders’ meeting where as share dividends distribution shall be
approved to execute by the Financial Supervisory Commission. Furthermore, any
matter in regarding to distribution policy shall be raised at the Board of Directors’
meeting and resolved at the stockholders’ meeting.

After the Bank became a subsidiary of Yuanta Financial Holding Company, the rights
of the stockholders were exercised by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors has approved the distribution of earnings for the year 2013
and the retained earnings transferred to capital for the year 2014 on May 22, 2014 and
the distribution of earnings for the year 2012 on May 16, 2013. and the retained
earnings transferred to capital for the year 2013. Details are shown as follows :

2013 earnings 2012 earnings
Stock dividends per Stock dividends per
Amount share (dollar) Amount share (dollar)
Legal reserve $ 772,074 $ 626,074
Special reserve 607,945 ( 72,775)
Stock dividends 1.193.560 $ 0.3270 1,533,616 $ 0.4386
Total $ 2,573,579 $ 2,086,915

Earnings distribution for the year 2014 and the retained earnings transferred to capital
for the year 2015 with the approval of the Board of Directors on March 17, 2015 are
as follows:

2014 earnings

Stock dividends per
Amount share (dollar)
Legal reserve $ 1,334,374
Special reserve ( 379,588)
Cash dividends 2,000,000 § 0.5306
Stock dividends 1.493.127 0.3962
Total $ 44470913

The appropriation of the Bank’s 2014 earnings has been approved by the Board of
Directors on March 17, 2015 and is pending until the confirmation from the Board of
Directors on behalf of stockholders.

The estimate of the Bank’s employee bonus is based on the net income after tax for the
current period minus legal reserve that should be set aside as required by the Bank and
then multiplied by the amount with the most appropriate estimate according to allocated
threshold. Any difference should then be recognized as gain (loss) of next year.
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Through the approval by the Board of Directors on behalf of the stockholders’
meeting on May 22, 2014, the Bank’s employee bonus for the years ended December
31, 2013 were set to be $21,400, which is consistent with the employee bonus
recognized in the financial statements of 2013. The Bank’s Board of Directors on
March 17, 2015 has approved the employee bonus for year 2014 amounting to
$27,061, which is consistent with the employee bonus recognized in the financial
statements of 2014 and is awaiting the confirmation from the Board of Directors on

behalf of stockholders.

(F) Earning distribution of the Company is approved by the Board of Directors and
resolved at the stockholders’ meetings. Any relevant information such as the retained
earnings transferred to capital, share distribution and employees’ bonus has been
updated to be available at the website of the Market Observation Post System

provided by the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (TESE).
(26) Other equity items

Translation gain
and loss on the
financial statements

of foreign Available-for-sale
operating entities financial assets Total
Balance, January 1, 2014 $ 943 §( 608,887 )$( 607,944 )
Available-for-sale financial
assets
-Evaluation adjustment in the
period - 448,464 448,464
- Realized gain and loss in the
period - ( 152,308 )( 152,308)
Changes in translation difference 87,217 - 87,217
of foreign operating entities
Effects on income tax - ( 3,786 )( 3.786)
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 88,160 $( 316,517 )$( 228,357)
Translation gain
and loss on the
financial statements
of foreign Available-for-sale
operating entities financial assets Total
Balance, January 1, 2013 $ - $ 560,681 $ 560,681
Available-for-sale financial assets
-Evaluation adjustment in the - ( 862,852 )( 862,852)
period
- Realized gain and loss in the - ( 301,137 )( 301,137)
period
Changes in translation difference 943 - 943
of foreign operating entities
Effects on income tax - ( 5,579 )( 5,579)
Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 943 $( 608,887 )$( 607,944 )
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(27) Net interest income

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Interest income
Bills discounted and interest income on loans $ 9,152,828 $ 8,287,388
Interest income on securities investment 1,055,501 728,403
Interest income from placement and call loan to other 828,876 716,413
banks
Recurring interest income from credit card 58,662 61,015
Other interest income 25,570 5,058
Subtotal 11,121,437 9.798.277
Interest expense
Interest expense of deposit ( 3,692,045)( 3,248,771)
Coupon rate of bank debenture ( 347,251)( 301,700)
Interest expenses of structured instruments ( 67,604)( 113,159)
Interest expenses of Central Bank and other banks’ ( 33,529)( 18,120)
deposit
Other interest expenses ( 22.155)( 1,100).
Subtotal ( 4,162,584)( 3,682.850)
Total $ 6,958,853 $ 6,115,427
(28) Net service income
For the years ended December 31
2014 2013
Service fee and commission income
Service fee income on trust business $ 898,340 $ 759,218
Service fee income on insurance brokerage 746,941 505,920
Service fee income on credit extension 440,662 387,365
Service fee income on credit card 210,177 168,183
Service fee income on foreign exchange 76,057 67,906
Deposits and remittance and other service fee income 101,299 97,593
Subtotal 2,473,476 1,986,185
Service fee expense and commission expense
Service fee expense on credit card ( 157,242)( 105,113)
Service fee expense on insurance brokerage ( 71,101)( 27,499)
Service fee expense on foreign exchange ( 20,112)( 17,118)
Service fee expense on credit extension ( 13,722)( 12,878)
Service fee expense on trust business ( 10,411)( 13,208)
Deposits and remittance and other service fee expense ( 143.401)( 120,984)
Subtotal ( 415,989)( 296.800)
Total $ 2,057,487 $ 1,689,385
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(29) Gain or loss on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Realized gain or loss on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds $ 512,744  $ 90,033
Time deposits 62,338 365
Commercial papers 53,661 51,621
Beneficiary certificates ( 4,361)( 14,511)
Stocks ( 41,626)( 18,994)
Exchange rate-linked instruments 272,483 ( 1,048,871)
Interest-linked instruments ( 165,209)( 31,196)
Other derivative instruments ( 6.102)( 43.802)

Subtotal 683,928 ( 1,015.355)
Unrealized gain or loss on financial assets and financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds 54,901 ( 17,074)
Time deposits 4,671 -
Commercial papers 466 ( 218)
Beneficiary certificates 1,487 5,778
Stocks ( 334)( 23,638)
Exchange rate-linked instruments 134,417 236,885
Interest-linked instruments ( 42,647) 26,554
Other derivative instruments ( 196) 1.425

Subtotal 152,765 229,712
Total $ 836,693 (3 785,643)

A. The realized gains (losses) on the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss of the Consolidated Company for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
including the gain(loss) on disposal and the interest income, are as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Gain (loss) on disposal $ 222,889 $( 1,224,598)
Interest income 455,952 208,858
Dividend income 5,087 385
Total $ 683,928 $ ( 1,015.355)

B. Exchange rate-linked instrument include forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange
swap contracts, cross currency swap contracts, non-delivery forwards contracts, exchange
rate options and other exchange rate related instruments.

C. Interest-linked instruments include interest rate swap contracts, structured interest rate
products and interest linked-options futures and other interest related instruments.

D. Any changes in fair value of the derivatives together managed with the financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss are listed under “gain and loss of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.
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(30) Realized gain on available-for-sale financial assets

€2))

Stock dividend income
Gains on disposal
Listed (TSE and OTC) stocks
Unlisted stocks
Financial bonds
Corporate bonds

Subtotal
Loss on disposal
Listed (TSE and OTC) stocks
Corporate bonds

Government bonds
Subtotal

Total

Reversal of impairment loss on assets

Gain on reversal of investment property

(32) Other non-interest income

Gain on bond investments without active market
Gains on default fine of loans

Rental income on investment property

Gain and Loss on trade/disposal of property
Loss on disposal of investment property

Other net losses

Total

(33) Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries

Labor and health insurance fees
Pension costs

Other personnel expenses

Total
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For the years ended December 31

2014 2013

$ 154,509 $ 68,376
83,913 295,144

89,443 33,715

2,861 4353

- 771

- 114

330.726 402.503

( 23,909)( 27,110)
- ( 5,822)

- ( 58)

( 23.909)( 32.990)
$ 306,817 $ 369,513

For the years ended December 31

2014

2013

3447 $

34,819

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013

$ 46,396 S -
24,248 29,926

14,054 12,356

419 ( 3,170)

( 352)( 24,490)
80,261 121,299

$ 165,026 $ 135,921

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
$ 2,728,052 § 2,523,187
190,785 185,349
123,425 117,290
153.126 247,887
$ 3.195.388 $ 3,073,713




(34) Depreciation and amortization

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Property and equipment depreciation $ 201,408 $ 260,352
Investment property depreciation 4,184 3,647
Intangible assets amortization 91,272 149,018
Deferred assets amortization 36,236 47411
Total $ 333,100 $ 460,428

(35) Other general and administrative expense

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Rental expense $ 566,493 §$ 566,253
Tax 470,499 267,381
Repairs and maintenance 161,475 162,011
Insurance expense 152,003 137,777
Others 688,780 571,937
Total $ 2,039,250 $ 1,705,359

(36) Income tax expense

A. Income tax expense
(A) Income tax expense by the following composition:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013

Current tax:

Income tax from current income $ 832,591 $ 303,416

Adjustments in respect of prior years 42,441 ( 88.597)
Total current tax 875,032 214.819
Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary ( 409,284) 141,698

differences

Income tax expense $ 465,748 $ 356,517

(B) Reconciliation between accounting income and income tax expense -

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013

Income tax from pretax income calculated at  $ 852,193 § 579,483
regulated tax rate

Adjustments in respect of prior years 42,441 ( 88,597)

Income tax payable in relating to the 16,811 -
alternative minimum tax

Effects of items not recognized under( 1,302) 1,043
relevant regulations

Adjusted effects on income tax exemption  ( 444.395)( 135,412)
and other income

Income tax expense $ 465,748 $ 356,517
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(C) Recognized in other comprehensive income:

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Fair value gains/losses on available-for-sale $ 3,786  $ 5,579
financial assets
Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit ( 20,326) ( 6,443)
obligations
Total $( 16,540) $( 864)
Details of temporary differences, loss carryforwards and investment tax credits resulting

in deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:
For the year ended December 31, 2014

Temporary differences:

- Deferred tax assets:

Unrealized exchange loss $

Unrealized valuation loss on
short-term commercial paper

Increase in allowance for credit
losses in excess of tax limitation

Unrealized compensation loss

Accrued unused compensated
absences

Auvailable-for-sale financial assets
impairment loss

Employee benefit liabilities reserve

Deferred revenue of credit cards

Other

Subtotal $
- Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized exchange gain $(
Unrealized valuation gain on (
derivatives

Unrealized valuation gain on
short-term commercial paper

Unrealized valuation gain on (
available-for-sale financial assets
Amortization of goodwill (
Reserve for land revaluation (
increment tax
Subtotal $(
Total $(

Recognized in

other
Recognized in comprehensive
January 1 profit or loss income Other December 31
-3 271,803 $ - $ $ 271,803
22 ( 22) - _
93,665 93,270 - 186,935
1,998 ( 96) - 1,902
2,624 329 - 2,953
26 - - 26
88,187 3,309 20,326 111,822
7,402 ( 440) - 6,962
170 - - 170
194,094 $ 368,153 $ 20,326 $ $ 582,573
11,427)$ 11,427 $ -8 $ -
86,322) 50,371 - ( 35,951)
- ( 57) - ( 57)
13,007) - ( 3,786) ( 16,793)
77,287) ( 20,610) - ( 97,897)
21,120) - - 6 ( 21,053)
209.163) $ 41,131 $¢( 3.786) $ 68( 171,751)
15,069) $ 409,284 $ 16,540 § 68 410,822
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Temporary differences:

- Deferred tax assets:

Unrealized exchange loss $

Unrealized valuation loss on
short-term commercial paper

Increase in allowance for credit
losses in excess of tax limitation

Unrealized compensation loss

Accrued unused compensated
absences

Available-for-sale financial assets
impairment loss

Employee benefit liabilities reserve

Deferred revenue of credit cards

Loss carryforwards

Other
Subtotal $
- Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized exchange gain $
Unrealized valuation gain on (
derivatives
Unrealized valuation gain on (
short-term commercial paper
Unrealized valuation gain on (
available-for-sale financial assets
Amortization of goodwill (
Reserve for land revaluation (
increment tax
Subtotal $(
Total $(

income tax returns is as follows:

Yuanta Bank
Yuanta Life Insurance Agency

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Recognized in

other
Recognized in comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income Other December 31
14,019 $( 14,019) $ - S -3 -
- 22 - - 22-
82,420 11,245 - - 93,665
1,998 - - - 1,998

- 2,624 : - 2,624

26 - - - 26
79,564 2,180 6,443 - 88,187
8,027 ( 625) - - 7,402
7,954  ( 44) - ( 7910) -
170 - - - 170
194,178 $ 1,383 $ 6,443 $ -3 194,094
- 8( 11,427) $ - $ - 8( 11,427)
33,956) ( 52,366) - - ( 86,322)
15) 15 - - -
7,428) - ( 5,579) - ( 13,007)
56,677) ( 20,610) - - ( 77,287)
21,142) - - 22 ( 21,120)
119.218)$ ( 84.388) $( 5,579) $ 22 $( 209.163)
74,960)$ (__ 83,005) $ 864 § 7,888 § 15,069

Yuanta Property Insurance Agency

Yuanta International Leasing

income tax payable.

Assessment Information

. As of December 31, 2014, the assessment information on the Consolidated Company’s

Assessed through 2008
Assessed through 2011
Assessed through 2012
Assessed through 2012

The Bank's annual income tax returns for 2004 to 2008 were assessed by the Tax Authority
and received assessment reports. The Tax Authority disallowed the amortization of
goodwill and bond investments. In accordance with the law, the Company has claimed for
administrative remedy to recognize the income tax expense relating to the addition al

D. Imputation credit account for stockholders and its related information
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Balances of the imputation credit account for

stockholders
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The actual creditable tax rate based on the appropriation of 2013 earnings was 0.84%; the
actual creditable tax rate based on the appropriation of 2012 earnings was 1.25%.

E. The undistributed earnings on account have been accumulated since 1998.

(37) Earnings per share

A. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the period.
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Weighted average
number of ordinary ~ Earnings per

shares outstanding share
Amount after tax (share in thousands) (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to the parent $ 4,547,150 3,769,049 $ 1.21
For the year ended December 31, 2013
Weighted average
number of ordinary ~ Earnings per
shares outstanding share
Amount after tax  (share in thousands) (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to the parent $ 3,052,205 3,769,049 $ 0.81
B. The above weighted-average outstanding stocks have been adjusted retrospectively
according to the ratio of capital increase from retained earnings for the year ended June 26,
2014. Earnings per share before adjusted was $0.84 dollars in 2013.

7. Related party transactions

(1) Parent and ultimate controlling party

Yuanta Financial Holdings is parent company and ultimate controlling party of the Consolidated

Company.
(2) Names and relationship of related parties
Names of related parties Relationship with the Bank
Yuanta Securities Finance Co., Ltd. (“Yuanta Affiliated company in the same Group

Securities Finance™)

Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. Affiliated company in the same Group
(“Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting”)

Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.( “Yuanta Securities”)  Affiliated company in the same Group

Yuanta Securities Investment Trust Co., Affiliated company in the same Group
Ltd.( “YSIT”)

Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd. Affiliated company in the same Group

Yuanta Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Affiliated company in the same Group

(Notel )

Funds managed by Yuanta Securities Investment ~ Funds managed by the same group (Note2 )
Trust

MF Global Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. Related party in substance(Note2 )

134



(3)

Names of related parties Relationship with the Bank
Yuan Kun Construction Co., Ltd. Related party in substance
(Yuan Kun Construction)
Yuanta Cultural & Education Foundation (Yuanta Related party in substance

Foundation)
Polaris Research Institute (Polaris Research) Related party in substance
Funds managed by MF Global Investment Funds managed by the same group (Note2 )

Consulting Co., Ltd.

Others (each related party's deposits and loans are The Consolidated Company's affiliated

not over 1% of total deposits and loans) companies and directors, supervisors and

managers, and their relatives

Note 1: Yuanta Financial Holding Co., Ltd. acquired 100% shares of New York Life Insurance
Taiwan Corporation on 2014/1/1. Then New York Life officially became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Yuanta Financial Holding and was renamed Yuanta Life
Insurance Co., Ltd.

Note 2: MF Global Multi-Strategy Futures Trust Fund managed by previous MF Global Futures
Trust Co., Ltd. was transferred to Yuanta Securities Investment Trust Company on
October 14, 2013 and was renamed MF Global Investment Consulting Company on
January 3, 2014. Later, MF Global Investment Consulting executed Dissolution on
March 14, 2014.

Significant transactions and balances with related parties

A. Deposits
December 31, 2014
Name Balance Percentage of deposits (%) Interest rate (%)
Others (Deposits by each
related party not over 1%
of total deposits) $ 28,264,820 4.88 0.00~6.42

December 31, 2013
Name Balance Percentage of deposits (%) Interest rate (%)
Others (Deposits by each
related party not over 1%
of total deposits) $ 26,416,735 5.32 0.00~6.42

Apart from an interest rate limit on staff demand savings deposits of 6.42%, for both the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the range of interest rate on other related parties'
demand savings deposits were 0.00%~5.00%. The interest rates and other terms provided to
the above related parties were the same as the terms offered to the general public.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, interest expense on the above deposits
was $231,738 and $220,688, respectively.
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C.

D.

Loans to related parties are under the same terms as those to other customers, except for
interest rates on loans to affiliated companies, ranging from 2.25% and 1.60%, the interest
rates on the remaining loans are ranging from 1.42 % to 5.00% and 1.42 % to 5.25% for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which are the same with the terms
of general loans.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, interest income resulting from the above
loans amounted to $67,033 and $63,021, respectively.

Fee and commission income

For the years ended December 31

Names of related parties 2014 2013
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Life Insurance $ 250,091 $ -
Yuanta Securities Investment Trust 12,287 14,357
Yuanta Securities 230 243
Yuanta Futures 9 10
Total $ 262,617 $ 14,610

The following income was mainly from commissions from sales of mutual funds and
insurance and fiduciary affiliated services, the related receivables were as follows:

Names of related parties December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Life Insurance $ 33,901 $ -
Yuanta Securities Investment Trust 1,530 2,110
Total $ 35431 $ 2,110

Rental revenue
For the years ended December 31

Names of related parties Purpose 2014 2013
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities Office rental/ Venue $ 8412 $ 7,778
rental
Yuanta Futures Office rental 636 636
Total $ 9,048 $ 8,414

Above-mentioned terms are settled according to the contracts signed between parties, the
related refundable deposits-in were as follows:

Names of related parties December 31,2014 December 31,2013
Fellow subsidiary:

Yuanta Securities $ 2,159 § 2,159

Yuanta Futures 158 158
Total $ 2,317 § 2,317
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E. Rent expenses

For the years ended December 31

Names of related parties Purpose 2014 2013
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities Office rental/ Venue $ 177,207 $ 175,268
rental
Yuanta Securities Finance Office rental 2.539 2,539
Total $ 179,746 $ 177,807

Above-mentioned terms are settled according to the contracts signed between parties, the

related refundable deposits-out were as follows:

Names of related parties
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities
Yuanta Futures
Total

F. Donations

December 31,2014 December 31,2013

$ 26,202 $ 25,700
633 633
$ 26,835 § 26,333

For the years ended December 31

Names of related parties 2014 2013
Other related parties:
Yuanta Foundation $ 11,000 $ 7,000
Polaris Research Institute 4,600 4,500
$ 15,600 $ 11,500

G. Consulting fee

For the years ended December 31

Names of related parties 2014 2013
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting $ 9,538 $ 11,642
Yuanta Securities 2.550 -
$ 12,088 $ 11,642

H. Commission expense

Names of related parties

For the years ended December 31
2014 2013

Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities

I. Current income tax assets/liabilities
Names of related parties
Parent :
Yuanta Financial Holdings
Consolidated income tax return receivable
Consolidated income tax return payable
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J. Property transactions
(A) Open-end funds raised by the related parties that the Consolidated Company acquired
were as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2014: None.

For the year ended December 31, 2

Balance as of Balance as of Profit (loss) on
Purchases January 1 December 31 redemption
Other related parties:
Funds managed by MF Global
Futures Trust $ -$ 50,0008 - $( 7.261)

(B) Exchange Traded Funds raised by the related parties that the Consolidated Company
acquired were as follows:
For the year ended December 31, 2014: None.

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Balance as of Balance as of Profit (loss) on
Purchases January 1 December 31 redemption
Other related parties:
Funds managed by Yuanta
Securities Investment Trust $ 99.857 $ 112,042 % -3 2,051

(C) The details of the Consolidated Company’s outright purchase and sale transactions with
affiliates in the open market were as follows:
For the year ended December 31, 2014

Purchase
Type price Selling price
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities Bond $ 248,676 $ -
For the year ended December 31, 2013
Purchase
Type price Selling price
Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities Bond $ 397,799 $ 453,370
K. Others

Detail of securities lending with related parties were as follows:
For the year ended December 31, 2014: None.
For the year ended December 31, 2013

Revenue from
Ending balance Highest Balance securities borrowing

Fellow subsidiary:
Yuanta Securities $ -3 27,6578 13
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(4) Information on remunerations to the Consolidated Company’s key management

For the years ended December 31

2014 2013
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits $ 431,090 $ 410,350
Post-employment benefit 10,265 11,575
Total $ 441355 § 421,925

8. Pledged assets
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Consolidated Company’s assets pledged as collateral are as
follows:

Items December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 Purpose of pledge
Investment of debt instruments without active
market

- government bonds $ 9,659,535 § - Foreign currency clearing
overdraft guarantee

- Time deposits 1,632,960 271,865 Foreign currency clearing
overdraft guarantee

- government bonds 96,896 - OTC EBTS for bond
settlement reserves

- government bonds 77,517 67,554 Trust fund reserve

- government bonds 67,990 42,992 Collateral for provisional
seizure

- government bonds 49,128 48,966 Deposit guarantees of bills
merchants

- government bonds 9,826 9,793 Operating guarantee deposits
for securities dealing

- government bonds 3,925 3,719 VISA International card

payment reserves
Available-for-sale financial assets
- government bonds 2,301 2,275 Operating guarantee deposits
- 5,323 Collateral for provisional
seizure

- government bonds

Total ) 11,600,078 $ 452,487

9. Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognized contract commitments

(1) Commitments
A. Operating leases
Please refer to Note 12(3)C(C).
B. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, capital expenditure contracted for at the
balance sheet date but not yet incurred was $83,013 and $116,912 respectively.
(2) Others
December 31,2014 December 31,2013

Irrevocable loan commitments $ 22,417,888 $ 26,021,083
Unused credit commitments on credit cards 34,001,624 30,075,322
Unused L/C balance 2,855,407 4,083,754
Other guarantees 32,167,463 31,975,444
Consignment collection for others 16,984,119 15,703,886
Trust assets 113,761,789 102,345,751
Items under custody 33,104,150 34,609,453
Commitment of securities under a repurchase 8,379,243 -
agreement
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10.Significant losses from disasters
None.

11.Significant subsequent events

(1) As resolution made by the Board of Directors, an expenditure of ¥ 122 billion aimed to acquire
100% shares of Tong Yang Reserved Bank Co., Ltd. (Philippine) from Yuanta Securities (Korea) on
November 20, 2014. On February 3, 2015, an initial approval has been issued by FSC, and a formal
application shall be filed to Philippines competent authority later to proceed acquisition further.

(2) For the purpose to enhance the operation of foreign currency, and middle and long term
investment capital, the Board of Directors has reached a decision on issuing senior financial bonds
in foreign currency in equivalent to 50 billion in year 2015, on November 20, 2014. Later on
January 14, 2015, the issuance application was granted by the FSC to issue within the year.

12.0Others
(1) Financial instruments
A. Fair value information of financial instruments

Financial instruments measured at fair value should be recognized at trading date, and this
measurement shall be consistent.to maintain the equivalency in between its book value and
fair value. On the other hand, financial instruments not measured at fair value, except for those
listed in the following table, are approximate to their fair values.

December 31, 2014 December 31,2013
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial ~$ 7,277,780 $ 7,329,497 § 4955516 $ 4,957,977
assets- net

Other financial assets- net 38,841,612 39,165,776 26,175,376 26,348,179

B. The assumptions and methods used to estimate the financial instruments not measured by fair
value:

(A) In relation to cash and cash equivalents, due from Central Bank and call loans to other
banks, investments in bills and bonds under resale agreement, receivables, other
financial assets-net (except bond investments without active market), refundable
deposits-out, due to Central Bank and other banks, bills and bonds sold under
agreements to repurchase, payables, and refundable deposits-in the book value of the
financial instruments which have a short maturity period will be considered as their fair
value. While the maturities are quite close or the future payment or receipts are close to
the carrying amount, the carrying amount at the consolidated balance sheet date is used
to estimate the fair value.

(B) Bills discounted and loans: The effective interest rates of loans are generally based on
the benchmark interest rate plus or minus certain adjustment (equivalent to floating rate)
to reflect the market interest rate. As a result, it is reasonable to assume that the carrying
amount, after adjustments of estimated recoverability, approximates the fair value. Fair
values for long-term loans with fixed interest rates shall be estimated using their
discounted values of expected future cash flows. However, as such loans account for
only a small portion of all loans, book value was used to estimate the fair value.

(C) Held-to-maturity financial assets: When there is a quoted market price available in an
active market, the fair value is determined using the market price. If there is no quoted
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(D)

(E)

(F)

market price for reference, a valuation technique or quoted price offer by the
counterparties will be adopted to measure the fair value.

Other financial assets : Bond investments without active market such as NTD Central
Government Bonds shall refer to the yield rate and the theory price that bulletined by
Over-The-Counter. For foreign currency bonds, corporate bonds and financial
debentures, the quotations from Bloomberg information are adopted. The carrying
amount of remaining financial instruments on balance-sheet-date should be used to
estimate the fair value as the future payments and receipts shall have similar resultant
figures.

Deposits and remittances: Considering the nature of the banking industry, the fair value
is determined by the market rate (market price) while the deposit transactions usually
mature within one year. As a result, the carrying amount is a reasonable basis to estimate
the fair value. Fair values of the long-term fixed rate deposits shall be estimated using
discounted expected future cash flows. On top of that, as the maturities are less than
three years to date, it is reasonable to use the carrying amount to estimate the fair value.

Financial bonds payable: Since the coupon rates of the financial bonds issued by the
Consolidated Company approximate the market rates, the fair value based on the
discounted value of expected future cash flow approximates the book value. The
estimated cash flow of corporate bonds and convertible corporate bond issued by the
Consolidated Company is discounted to evaluate the fair value.

C. Financial instruments measured at fair value: fair value is the amount for which an asset could
be exchanged or a liability can be settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction.

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

Financial instruments are initially recognized by fair value, which is transaction price in
most cases. Subsequent recognitions are measured by fair value except that certain
financial instruments are recognized by amortized cost. In the subsequent measurements,
the best evidence of fair value is the quoted market price in an active market. If the
market in which financial instruments traded is not active, the Consolidated Company
then adopts valuation technique or takes reference to Bloomberg or the fair value of
financial instrument from counterparties.

If the quoted market price of a financial instrument is available in an active market, the
quoted price is the fair value. Market prices bulletined by major SEC and OTC, where
high volume of central government bonds are traded, are the foundation of debt
instruments’ fair value of quoted market price in an active market and listed equity
instruments.

If the market quotation from Stock Exchange Corporation, Reuters, Bloomberg
information, commission merchants, or competent authorities can be frequently obtained
on time, and the price represents the actual and frequent transactions at arm’s length,
then a financial instrument is deemed to have an active market. If the above condition
cannot be met, the market is deemed inactive. In general, significant price variance
between the purchase price and selling price, significantly increasing price variance or
extremely low trading volume are all indicators of an inactive market.

If the financial instruments held by the Consolidated Company has an active market, the
fair values by classification and nature are as follows:

a. NTD Central Government Bond: the yield rates across different contract length
bulletined by Over-The-Counter (hereinafter OTC) are used.
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(E)

g.
h.

. NTD government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds and beneficiary securities:

the yield rates across different contract length bulletined by OTC are adopted.

. Foreign financial bonds, corporate bonds, securitized instruments: the quotations

from Bloomberg information or Reuters are adopted.

. Listed stocks (TSE and OTC) ~ ETF : Listed stock and ETF: the closing price on

the date that the stock or ETF being listed in TSE or OTC for the first-time or the
prior transaction price is adopted.

. Domestic convertible corporate bonds: reference prices for the next day bulletined by

the TSE are adopted as valuation standard.

Domestic and overseas funds: the net fund values announced by the investment trust
are adopted.

Overseas convertible bond: quotations from Bloomberg are adopted.
Spot exchange transactions: quotations from Reuters are adopted.

If the financial instruments held by the Consolidated Company has no active market, the
fair values by classification and nature are as follows:

a.

b.

NTD Central Government Bond: Bonds with lower trading volume adopt the theory
price of fair value bulletined by OTC.

NTD local government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds and beneficiary
securities: For bonds with lower trading volume, theoretical price retrieved from
referencing interest rate bulletined by OTC using the linear interpolation method is
adopted.

Term deposit of Central Bank, NCD, short-term commercial papers and treasury
bills: the quoted price of Reuters is referenced and used to discount the future cash
flows.

Foreign financial bonds, corporate bonds, NCD and securitized instruments: when
the quoted price is not obtainable in a market, the quoted price from counterparties is
adopted as the valuation basis.

Structured interest rate products : The quoted price of Reuters is referenced and used

to discount the future cash flows.

Derivatives trading:

(a) Foreign exchange forward contract, currency swaps, forward rate agreement,
interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps: quoted priced of Reuters is
referenced and used to discount future cash flow.

(b) Options: Black-Scholes model is mainly adopted for valuation and the quoted
priced of Reuters is referenced.

(c) Certain foreign structured instruments use the quoted price from counterparties.
Unlisted stocks:

(a) With regard to unlisted stocks without an active market held by the
Consolidated Company, the fair value is assessed by the adoption of market
method, income method or replacement cost method. The fair value is
estimated by valuation technique with consideration of availability of the
valuation information. As a result, the Consolidated Company first uses the
market method to determine the fair value of unlisted stocks, then the income
method. Only when the market method and income method cannot
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appropriately assess the fair value of the unlisted stocks, can the replacement
cost method be used.

(b) Estimate made on fair value assessment is primarily based on the latest fund
raising activities of the issuance company, stock price fluctuation of the same
type of companies, growth trend of the industry, overall financial market and
macro economy indicator. Any change in the estimate could affect the
measurement of fair value. The valuation technique used to assess fair value
may not completely reflect all the relevant factors of the financial asset held by
the Consolidated Company. As a result, other important inputs may be
appropriately included for adjustment, such as liquidity risk. According to the
management policy and related control procedures for the fair value valuation
of the Consolidated Company, the management believes that the price
information and inputs are stringently evaluated in the valuation process and
should be able to reasonably reflect the current market situation.

Fair value of financial instrument without an active market is assessed through
valuation technique or refinancing to quotations from counterparties. The fair value
obtained through the valuation technique may take reference to the fair value of other
financial instruments with similar characteristics and actual terms, discounted cash
flow method, or other valuation technique, including the available market data
obtained through the exercise of model calculations at the consolidated balance sheet
date (such as yield rate of OTC, the quotations from Reuters).

When assessing non-standardized financial instruments with lower complexity, such
as debt instruments without an active market, interest swaps, FX swap and options,
the Consolidated Company adopts the valuation technique generally accepted by
market users. The valuation model for these kinds of financial instruments usually
uses the observable information as the input.

In relation to the highly sophisticated financial instruments, the Consolidated
Company assesses the fair value through the valuation model self-developed by
valuation method and technique generally accepted by the counterparties. These
kinds of valuation models are usually used for derivatives, embedded derivative debt
instruments or securitized instruments and others.

(1) Hierarchy of fair value estimation of financial instruments

A. Definition for the hierarchy classification of financial instruments measured at fair value
(A) Level 1

(B)

That is the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active
market has to satisfy all the following conditions: 1) the products traded in the market
share a common nature; and 2) the willing buying and selling parties can be readily
found in the market and the prices are observable for public. The fair value of the
investments of the Consolidated Company, such as listed stocks investment, beneficiary
certificates, popular Taiwan government bonds and the derivatives with a quoted price
in an active market, are deemed as Level 1.

Level 2

Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, are those observable price, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) in active market.
Investment of the Consolidated Company such as non-popular government bonds,
corporate bonds, financial bonds, convertible corporate bonds, most derivatives and

144



financial bonds issued by the Consolidated Company are all classified within Level 2.

(C) Level3

Inputs for level 3 instruments’ fair value are data that cannot be obtained in the market.
Certain derivatives and overseas securities of the Consolidated Company are classified
within Level 3.

. Hierarchy of fair value estimation of financial instrument:

Financial instruments measured at fair

value December 31, 2014
Items Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-derivative financial instruments
Assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets held for trading

Stock investments $ 2,391 $ 2,391 $ - $ -
Bond investments 32,012,475 8,454,072 20,380,051 3,178,352
Others 10,412,634 302,367 5,925,453 4,184,814
Financial assets designated as at fair 1,250,134 - 1,250,134 -
value through profit or loss on initial
recognition
Available-for-sale financial assets
Stock investments 2,971,082 2,071,042 - 900,040
Bond investments 31,795.937 - 29,704,042 2.091.895
Total $ 78444653 $ 10,829,872 § 57,259,680 $ 10,355,101
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through $ 5,733,872 $ 11,548 $ 2,870,609 $ 2,851,715
profit or loss
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through $ 5,679,085 $ -$ 2,748,775 $ 2,930,310

profit or loss

Financial instruments measured at fair

value December 31, 2013
Items Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-derivative financial instruments
Assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets held for trading

Bond investments $ 14,522,957 $ 280,519 $ 14,242,438 $ -
Others 7,245,434 300,873 6,944,561 -
Available-for-sale financial assets
Stock investments 1,556,358 728,272 - 828,086
Bond investments 29.483.330 - 27.531.434 1,951.896
Total $ 52,808,079 $ 1,309,664 $ 48,718,433 § 2,779,982
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through $ 2,607,335 $ 2,965 $ 2,079,894 § 524,476
profit or loss
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through $ 2,336,752 $ - $ 1,809,847 $ 526,905

profit or loss
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D. Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2

Certain NTD Central Government Bonds held by the Consolidated Company are assessed to
be debt instruments in a non-active market according to popularity of OTC. As a result, the
related amount will be transferred from Level 1 to Level 2.

E. Fair value measurement to Level 3, and the sensitivity analysis of the substitutable
appropriate assumption made on fair value

The fair value measurement that the Consolidated Company made onto the financial
instruments is deemed reasonable; however, different valuation model or input could result in
different valuation result. Specifically, if the valuation input of financial instrument classified
in Level 3 moves upward or downward by 10%, the effects on gain and loss in the period or
the effects on other comprehensive income are as follows:

Change in fair value recognized

in current Change in fair value recognized in.
profit and loss other comprehensive income
Favorable Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
movements movements _ movements movements
December 31, 2014
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit $ 1,021,488 $( 1,021,488)$ -3 -
or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets - - 299,194 ( 299,194)
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ $ 293,0318(  293,031)$ -3 -
profit or loss
December 31, 2013
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit $ 52,448 §( 52,448)$ -3 -
or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets - - 277,998 ( 277,998)
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ $ 52,691 $( 52,691)$ -$ -

profit or loss

Favorable and unfavorable movements of the Consolidated Company refer to the fluctuation
of fair value, and the fair value is calculated through the valuation technique according to the
non-observable inputs to different extent.

There was only single non-observable input on both December 31, 2014 and 2013, thus the
table above presents the figures that was impacted on changes in single non-observable input.

(2) Management objective and policy for financial risk

The Bank engages in risk management under the principles of not only serving customers but
also conforming to the Bank operational goal, overall risk tolerance limits, and legal compliance
to achieve risk diversification, risk transfer, and risk avoidance, and to create a trilateral win for
all customers, shareholders, and employees. The Bank is mainly exposed to credit risk, market
risk (including the interest rate, foreign exchange rate, equity securities, and commodity risks),
operational risk, and liquidity risk on or off balance sheets.

The Bank established written risk management policies and guidelines which have been
approved by the Board of Directors or senior managements in order to identify, measure, monitor
and control credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.
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A. Risk Management Framework:

Ultimate responsibility for the effective management of risk rests with the Board. In order to
achieve the Bank’s overall risk management goals, the Board of Directors is in charge of
reviewing risk management policies and relating procedures, and monitoring the effectiveness
of risk management systems. The Board delegates authority for monitoring the control of
risks to the Audit Committee. The chief executive officer delegates authority to the Credit
Evaluation Committee, the Human Resource Evaluation Committee, the Assets and Liabilities
Management Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Non-Performing Loan
Management Committee, the Financial Product Evaluation Committee, and the New Product
Evaluation Committee. The President holds regular or ad hoc meetings with relating
committees to discuss issues regarding risk management; moreover, an emergency response
team is set, when faced with crises or extraordinary events, to take timely and effective
actions to prevent further damage, to mitigate risks, and to stay functional.

B. Credit risk
(A) Source and definition of credit risk

Credit risk is the potential loss due to a failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to
pay the Consolidated Company in accordance with the agreed terms. Credit risk may
happen due to accounts on and off the balance sheet. For accounts on the balance sheet,
credit risk exposure of the Consolidated Company mainly comprises of bills discounted,
loans, credit card business, debt instruments, derivatives and call loans from banks, etc.
Off balance sheet accounts include financial guarantees, acceptance bills, letters of credit
and loan commitments that could give rise to credit risk exposure to the Consolidated
Company.

(B) Principle of credit risk management

The Bank has stipulated credit risk management guidelines where the framework of
credit risk management is set out, and through the building and implementation of the
management system, potential credit risk relating to businesses can be carefully assessed
and signaled. The Bank divided its services into consumer finance services and corporate
finance services by the nature of services. With an emphasis on segregation of duties
whereby the credit investigation performed independently from the credit review, risk
management is effective. Detailed risk management information of corporate finance
services, personal finance services, and cross-services integration is set out as follows:

a. Credit Risk Management for Corporate Finance Services: The Bank develops a
credit rating model and a risk grading mechanism for loan applications, strengthens
quantitative mechanisms for credit risk management, and effectively assesses the
quality of credit assets and its fluctuation to secure credit assets. A credit client early
warning system is established aimed at credit risk exposures from significantly
unusual cases. And an information integration and communication mechanism is set
to monitor the financial and operational positions of these clients, providing a timely
knowledge of these clients’ operations and credit status.

b. Credit Risk Management for Consumer Finance Services: The Bank controls the
credit risks through credit grading mechanisms, credit investigation, credit review
and overdue management systems. With these systems in place, the Bank manages
to strengthen controls over consumer finance, to raise the bar on credit reviewing, to
strengthen controls over credit limits, to enhance the quality of credit assets, and to
cut losses arising from credit risk.
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c. Cross-Services Integration of Risk Management: The bank-wide and cross-services
credit risk early warning system serves as a platform for operating units to check on
the financial and operational positions of clients with lower credit ratings, and it is
used as a reference for loan management. To effectively manage concentration risk,
a bank-wide large risk exposures guideline is set up.

(C) Credit Risk Mitigation Policies

To limit the credit risk to lie within tolerable range, the Bank sets out a rule in its credit
risk management guideline that for the products provided and businesses conducted
which includes all transactions arising from both banking and trading books, either
on-balance or off-balance sheet, a detailed analysis should be carried out to identify any
existing and potential credit risk; Before the introduction of new products or businesses,
accompanying credit risk should be indentified and examined in accordance with relating
guidelines. As for the more complex credit services, e.g. factoring, credit-linked
derivatives, etc., tailored risk management mechanisms are incorporated into relating
operating guidelines.

Procedures and methods used in credit risk management for the core businesses of the
Consolidated Company are as follows:

a. Credit business (including loan commitment and guarantees)
Details of credit assets classification and credit quality rating are set out as follows:

(a) Credit Assets Classification

Credit assets are classified into five types. Other than normal credit assets shall
be classified as Category One, the remaining non-performing loans are assessed
based on the collateral provided and the time period of overdue payment as
follows: Category Two for assets requiring special mention. Category Three for
assets deemed recoverable. Category Four for assets those are doubtful.
Category Five for assets those are not recoverable.
(b) Credit Quality Rating

In response to the characteristics and scale of business, the Consolidated
Company sets up credit quality rating for risk management purposes (such as
implementing internal evaluation model of credit risk, setting up credit rating
table or other relevant regulations).

The Consolidated Company, mainly by the statistic and professional judgment
of expertise and consideration of client information, developed a business credit
rating model for the purpose of evaluating the credit risk of corporate clients.
The model is regularly reviewed to check if the calculation result is consistent
with the actual situation. And adjustment on various inputs should be calibrated
to optimize the calculation result.

Credit rating of corporate finance is categorized into 10 levels according to the
risks assessment on each credit extension case. When a loan is granted, in
addition to that the credit quality of the client, fund purpose, repayment source,
protection of claims and credit prediction should be considered, credit risk by
credit account and facility should also be respectively assessed and rated based
on the corporate or consumer risk rating referencing standards.

Credit risk rating of the consumer finance is categorised by client superiority,
client profession and the rating of collateral threshold.
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b.

The credit quality of borrowers can be divided into three grades as follows:

Corporate finance Consumer finance
Credit risk rating Internal/External credit  (Credit risk rating
rating level
Excellent Level 1~6 Excellent
/Acceptable Level 7~8 |Acceptable
Weak Level 9~10 Weak

The Bank reassesses ratings for each client at least once a year. Moreover, to
ensure the reasonableness of the design and the process of credit rating system,
and that of the estimates of relating risk factors, the Bank takes actual defaults
into account and performs inspections and back testings on the credit rating
model annually.

Due from and call loans to other banks

The Bank assesses the credit status of each counterparty before any transaction, and
ratings assigned by domestic and foreign external ratings agencies are used in
determining internal credit grades on which various credit risk exposure limits are
set and then granted to different counterparties.

Debt instruments investment and derivatives

The risk management of the Consolidated Company’s debt instruments is based on

credit rating of external institutions, credit quality of bonds, condition by

geographical location and counterparty risk to identify the credit risk. Financial

institutions with which the Bank conducts derivative transactions are mostly above

investment grade and each year counterparty credit risk limits at different levels are

submitted to the Board for approval. The limits are the basis for credit risk control.

Counterparties with no credit rating are subject to individual review and Board of

Directors approval. If the counterparties are general clients, controlling is

implemented through risk limits and conditions of derivatives approved by general

credit procedures to manage credit exposure of counterparties.

The Consolidated Company divides the credit quality of debt instruments investment

and derivatives into three grades as follows:

(a) Excellent: Exposure to instrument with a result of internal/external credit rating
level in between 1 to 6.

(b) Acceptable: Exposure to instrument with a result of internal/external
credit rating level in between 7 to 8.

(c) Weak: Exposure to instrument with a result of internal/external credit
rating level in between 9 to 10.

(D) Hedging and mitigation of credit risk

a.

Collateral

The Consolidated Company adopts a series of policies and measures to mitigate
credit risk in relation to credit extension business. Amongst those, requesting
borrowers to provide collateral is one of the most usual means. The Consolidated
Company has specific criteria for acceptable collateral and collateral valuation,
management and disposing procedures regarding the collateral valuation
management, collateral assessment for credit facility in order to protect the credit
right. Besides, protection of creditor’s right, collateral terms and offsetting terms are
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all addressed in the credit extension contract in case of any occurrence of credit
event, of which the amount may be deductible, loan repayment schedule may be
shortened or deemed as matured, or various types of deposits can be used to offset
its liabilities to mitigate credit risks.

Collateral for other non-credit extension business depends on the nature of financial
asset.

b. Credit risk limit and credit risk concentration control

In avoidance of high risk concentration, the Consolidated Company has set up credit
exposure limit for a single counterparty or a single group, and set up investment
standards and risk controlling regulations for stock investment for a single person
(entity) or affiliated enterprises’ (group) various investment limit. In addition, in
order to control concentration risk of various assets, the Consolidated Company has
also set up credit limits based on the industry, enterprise of group, country, pledged
stocks for credit extension and monitored risk concentration of each asset. Through
the system consolidation, single counterparty, group’s enterprises, affiliated
enterprise, industry, nationality, ultimate risk and various credit risk concentration
can be monitored.
c. Net-settled general agreement

The transactions of the Consolidated Company are usually gross-settled. However,
net-settled agreements are signed with certain counterparties to further mitigate
credit risk in case of any default and all transactions shall be terminated with the
counterparties and settled by net amount.

(E) Maximum risk exposure of the Consolidated Company

(F)

The maximum risk exposure of assets in the consolidated balance sheet, without
consideration of the collateral or other credit strengthening instruments, is equivalent to
the carrying amount. Please see Note 9(2) for the maximum credit risk exposure of the
consolidated balance sheet.

The management of the Consolidated Company believes that through a series of
stringent evaluation procedures and follow-up reviews afterwards, credit risk exposure
off the balance sheet of the Consolidated Company can be minimized and continuously
controlled.

Credit risk concentration

The credit risks are deemed significantly concentrated when the financial instrument
transactions significantly concentrate on a single person, or when there are multiple
trading counterparties engaging in similar business activities with similar economic
characteristics making the effects on their abilities of fulfilling the contractual obligation
due to economy or other forces similar.

The credit risks of the Consolidated Company concentrate on accounts and off balance
sheet that occurs through obligation fulfilling or implementation of transactions (either
product or service), or through trans-type exposure portfolio, including loans, placements
and call loan from the banks, securities investment, receivables and derivatives. The
Consolidated Company does not significantly carry out transactions with single client or
single counterparty and the gross amount does not exceed 5% of balance of each
component item. Information regarding bills discounted, loans and overdue accounts,
and the credit risk concentration by industry, location and collateral are shown as
follows:
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a. Industry

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Industry Amount % Amount %
Privately owned businesses $ 238,473,365 52.89 § 208,289,689 51.76
Government-owned businesses 11,166,400 2.48 16,699,760 4.15
Non-profit organizations 616,130 0.14 739,924  0.19
Private individuals 199,583,541 44.26 173,156,508  43.03
Financial institutions 940,558 0.21 - -
Others 112,078 0.02 3.499.531 0.87
Total $ 450,892,072 100.00 §  402,385.412 100.00

b. Geography location:
The Consolidated Company’s main business activities are concentrated in Taiwan,
hence there are no significant geographic credit concentration risks measured by over
5% of the balance of each component item.

c. Collateral

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Collateral Amount % Amount %
Non-guaranteed $ 156,091,724 34.62 § 144,083,512 35.81
Guaranteed
-Stock collateral 19,990,517 4.43 17,539,194 436
-Bonds collateral 6,547,187 1.45 6,592,307 1.64
-Real estate collateral 235,707,861  52.29 202,656,077 50.36
-Moveable collateral 31,357,858 6.95 30,263,811 7.52
-Notes receivable 106,204 0.02 240,450 0.06
- Guarantee 1,090,721 0.24 1,010,061 0.25
Total $ 450,892,072 100.00 § 402,385,412 _100.00

(G) Analysis on credit quality and overdue impairment of financial assets held by the
Consolidated Company

Certain financial assets held by the Consolidated Company such as cash and cash
equivalents, due from Central Bank and call loans to banks, financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss, investments in notes and bonds under resale agreements and
refundable deposits-out and so on, while the counterparties have good credit rating, the
credit risks are deemed extremely low.

The credit quality analyses for the rest of financial assets are as follows:
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b. In relation to bills discounted and loans of the Consolidated Company that were neither
past due nor impaired, the credit quality analysis is based on the credit quality rating by

client:
December 31,2014
Positions that are neither past due nor impaired
Unrated
By client Excellent Acceptable Weak (Note) Total

Corporate finance

-Guaranteed $ 58,378,457 $ 32,310,498 $ 249,419 $ 28,409,830 $119,348,204

-Non-guaranteed 124,923,111 21,387,964 68,536 4,427,121 150,806,732

-Government-owned 11,183,763 - - - 11,183,763

enterprise

- Others 479.380 34,555 - 185,487 699.422

Subtotal 194,964,711 _ 53,733.017 317.955 33,022,438 282,038,121
Consumer finance

- Mortgage loan 126,262,772 13,583,589 778,786 - 140,625,147

- Credit loan 266,336 20,114 478,379 - 764,829

-Automobile loan 11,984,928 3,316,216 2,583,160 - 17,884,304

- Others 2.865.653 110.279 12,609 - 2.988.541

Subtotal 141.379.689 _ 17.030.198 3.852.934 - 162,262,821
Total $336,344,400 § 70,763,215 4,170,889 $ 33,022,438 $444,300,942

December 31, 2013
Positions that are neither past due nor impaired

Unrated
By client Excellent _Acceptable Weak (Note) Total

Corporate finance

-Guaranteed $ 30,655,539 $§ 39,638,142 $ 2,795,139 $ 26,232,861 $ 99,321,681

-Non-guaranteed 102,879,379 26,576,351 418,709 5,009,277 134,883,716

-Government-owned 16,719,886 - - - 16,719,886

enterprise

- Others 267,345 85,334 - 112,730 465,409

Subtotal 150,522,149 66,299,827 3,213,848 31,354,868 251,390,692
Consumer finance

- Mortgage loan 110,112,028 13,984,209 1,299,005 - 125,395,242

- Credit loan 103,338 15,094 798,284 - 916,716

-Automobile loan 9,215,218 2,930,729 2,077,557 - 14,223,504

- Others 2,296,669 124,162 16,515 - 2.437.346

Subtotal 121,727,253 17,054,194 4,191,361 - 142,972,808
Total $272,249,402 § 83,354,021 § 7,405,209 $ 31,354,868 $394,363,500

Note: Credit rating for the corporate finance is categorized as “Credit rating model” and “Risk
assessment by case”, however, for those loans not classified as “Credit rating model” in
above table are treated as “Risk assessment by case”. Please refer to Note 12(3)B(B) for
loan management information.

(H) Aging analysis of overdue financial assets with no impairment of the Consolidated
Company:

The delayed processing of the borrower and other administrative reasons may give rise
to an overdue financial asset with no impairment. According to the internal risk
management policy of the Consolidated Company, financial assets overdue for less than
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90 days are usually not deemed impaired unless other evidence indicates otherwise.

Aging analysis of the overdue financial assets with no impairment of the Consolidated
Company:

December 31,2014

Overdue for less Overdue for
Items than 1 month 1~3 months Total
Receivables
- Credit card business $ 64,320 $ 408 $ 64,728
Bills discounted and loans
Corporate finance
- Guaranteed 136,817 7,592 144,409
- Non-guaranteed 66,376 7,798 74,174
- Others - 904 904
Consumer finance
- Mortgage loans 797,301 154,485 951,786
- Credit loans 4,875 - 4,875
- Car loans 616,120 20,791 636,911
Subtotal 1.621.489 191,570 1.813.059
Total $ 1,685,809 $ 191,978 § 1,877,787
December 31, 2013
Overdue for less Overdue for
Items than 1 month 1~3 months Total
Receivables
- Credit card business $ 8,763 $ 1,642 $ 10,405
Bills discounted and loans
Corporate finance
- Guaranteed 549,781 21,360 571,141
- Non-guaranteed 214,292 5,555 219,847
Consumer finance
- Mortgage loans 1,306,596 231,748 1,538,344
- Credit loans 17,755 4,078 21,833
- Car loans 653,577 11,260 664,837
- Others 244 - 244
Subtotal 2,742,245 274,001 3,016,246
Total $ 2,751,008 $ 275,643 $ 3,026,651

Analysis of impaired financial assets of the Consolidated Company

Impairment on bills discounted, loans and receivables of the Consolidated Company are
analyzed by client below:
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b. Contract amounts of significant credit risk concentration are as follows:
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)

December 31, 2014
Total Amounts of
Total Amounts of | Outstanding Loans /
Ranking Name of Enterprise Group Outstanding Loans | Total stockholders’
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) Equity
1 Group A—Petrochemical Manufacturing 8,231,750 16.12
2 Group B-Investment Consultancy 4,502,773 8.82
3 Group C—Air Transportation 4,194,377 8.21
4 Group D-Other Metalworking Machinery 3,676,665 7.20
Manufacturing
5 Company E-Real Estate Development 2,500,000 4.89
6 Group F—Iron and Steel Smelting 2,447,097 4.79
7 Group G—Ocean Water Transportation 2,304,899 4.51
8 Company H-Real Estate Development 1,999,500 391
9 Group I —Books and stationery retail 1,643,000 3.22
10 | Company J —Real Estate Development 1,460,300 2.86
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, %)
December 31, 2013
Total Amounts of
Total Amounts of | Outstanding Loans /
Ranking Name of Enterprise Group Outstanding Loans | Total stockholders’
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) Equity
1 Group A—Air Transportation 5,180,089 11.20
) Group B-Other Metalworking Machinery 3,684,757 7.97
Manufacturing
Group C—Computer Manufacturing 3,419,383 7.39
Group D-Liquid Crystal Panel and 3,262,438 7.05
Components Manufacturing
5 Group E— Ocean Water Transportation 2,665,332 5.76
6 Group F- Iron and Steel Smelting 2,304,716 4.98
7 Group G— Real Estate Development 2,146,790 4.64
] Company H-Liquid Crystal Panel and 2,005,195 4.34
Components Manufacturing
9 Group I — Iron and Steel Smelting 1,812,181 3.92
10 | Group J —Other machinery 1,497,500 324
Note 1: Ranking the top ten enterprise groups other than government and government enterprise according to
their total amounts of outstanding loans. If an outstanding loan belongs to an enterprise group, the
outstanding loan of enterprise group should be categorized and listed in total, and disclosed by “code”
plus “industry type” (for example, company (or group) A — Liquid Crystal Panel and Components
Manufacturing). If it is an enterprise group, industry type of maximum exposure of the enterprise group
should be disclosed. Industry type should be filled in accordance with “Standard Industrial
Classification System” of Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan.
Note 2: Definition of enterprise group is based on the Article 6 of “Supplementary Provisions to the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation Rules for Reviews of Securities Listings”.
Note 3: Total amounts of credit extensions were various loans (including import negotiations, export

negotiations, bills discounted, overdrafts, short-term loans, short-term loans secured, securities financing
receivable, mid-term loans, mid-term loan secured, long-term loans, long-term loans secured, and
overdue accounts), remittances purchased, advance accounts for factoring receivable, acceptances
receivable, and guarantees receivable.
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C. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risks include fund liquidity risk and market liquidity risk. Fund liquidity risk
happens when the fund supply cannot be sufficiently obtained in an expected period of time
leading to a failure of fulfilling the capital need as maturity comes due. Market liquidity risk
arises due to the insufficiency in market depth or the disorder which lead to the disposed or
written off position held cannot be traded in a reasonable period of time and reasonable price
resulting in a significant bid price or significantly discounted put price.

(A) Risk management principle, procedure and assessment
a. Principle

(a) In accordance with cost benefit analysis, the Bank achieves effective liquidity
management through appropriate allocation of assets and liabilities on and off
the balance sheet.

(b) As to large deposits, large loans, and block trading position of financial
instruments, the Bank shall avoid excessive transaction with single client and
have appropriate control over such deposits, loans, and block trading position.

(c) The Bank shall maintain smooth financing channels and consider diversity and
dispersion of funding resource to ensure the disposal of various assets. For the
use of limit, the Bank shall maintain appropriate available balance.

b. Procedure

(a) Liquidity risk management unit includes decision-making unit, supervisory
unit (asset and liability committee), and executive unit (departments in charge
of deposit and loan products and fund management unit under finance
department in the Bank) for liquidity risk management. Supervisory unit
appoints institution of general affairs and risk management unit, regularly
supervises implementation process of executive unit, and timely monitors
supervision of liquidity management indicators. Risk monitoring unit submits
quarterly report to the Board of Directors and asset and liability committee to
facilitate review and supervision of the state of liquidity management.

(b) Finance department works with risk management segment to establish
applicable ratios and limits on liquidity risk indicators, which will be reported
to the asset and liability committee and then assessed by the general
management with authorization of the Board of Directors.

(¢c) When liquidity risk exposure exceeds the ratio supervised by liquidity risk
indicators, risk management unit draws up a response plan, which will be
delivered to the relevant unit for implementation upon reporting to the asset
and liability committee for resolution. The asset and liability committee will
keep track of enforcement of the plan regularly.

c. Assessment

(a) Set up liquidity risk indicator and warning in order to control adverse element
to the liquidity. At the same time, analysis and appropriate measures are made
to mitigate the extent of effects.

(b) Use information about the Bank’s non-performing credit assets and changes in
external ratings addressing asset quality and external indicators as leading
indicators for liquidity management to identify the Bank’s liquidity risk
management.
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(c) Assessments are regularly made to the assets and liabilities denominated in
major currencies in the balance sheet and the cash inflow, cash outflow and
liquidity gap off the balance sheet by different time period.

(B) Maturity analysis for the financial assets and non-derivative liabilities held for liquidity
risk management:

a. Financial assets held for liquidity risk management

In order to fulfill the payment obligation and potential emergent fund demand in the
market, as well as manage the liquidity risk at the same time, sound earning assets
with high liquidity were held by the Consolidated Company, including cash and cash
equivalents, due from Central Bank and call loans to other banks, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, bills discounted and loans, available-for-sale
financial assets, held-to-maturity financial assets and investment of debt instruments
without active market, etc..

b. Maturity analysis on non-derivative assets and liabilities

The following table illustrates the analysis made on cash outflow of non-derivative
financial assets and liabilities of the Consolidated Company by the remaining
maturity from the consolidated balance sheet date to the contract expiration date.
While the amounts disclosed in the table are not made based on the consolidated
cash flow, certain accounts may differ from the responding accounts in the balance
sheet.

c. Maturity analysis on derivative financial assets and financial liabilities by date

(a) Derivative financial instruments settled on a net basis

Derivative financial instruments of the Consolidated Company settled on a net
basis include: non-delivery forward, interest rate swap, commodity options and
other futures contract.

(b) Derivative financial instruments settled on a gross basis

Derivative financial instruments of the Consolidated Company settled on a
gross basis include: FX options, foreign exchange forward contract, cross
currency swaps, foreign exchange swaps, asset swap and equity options.

The following table illustrates the maturity analysis on derivative financial
instruments settled on a gross and net amount basis of the Consolidated Company by
the remaining maturity from the consolidated balance sheet date to the contract
expiration date. According to the assessment, the maturities on the contract are the
most fundamental element to understand all the derivatives on the consolidated
balance sheet. The amounts disclosed in the table are made on the basis of
contractual cash flow, therefore, certain disclosed amounts may not be consistent
with the corresponding accounts in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Maturity analysis for above deposits and remittances are amortized to each period
based on historical experience. Given that all the deposits and remittances have to be
paid in the shortest possible time, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, expenses on
period of 0-30 days will increase by $245,142,486 and $217,521,971, respectively.

(C) Maturity analysis for items off the balance sheet, lease contract and capital expense
commitment

Items off the balance sheet, while the client may choose when to make a payment, are
classified into the earliest time category.

Lease commitment of the Consolidated Company include operating lease and finance
lease.

Operating lease commitment is the total minimum lease payments that the Consolidated
Company should make as a lessee or lessor under an operating lease term which is not
cancelable.

Financial lease commitment refers to the total future rental payment and the present
value that the Consolidated Company as a lessee should make according to the finance
lease term, or the total lease investment and the minimum lease payment receivable at
present value for a lessor according to the financial lease term.

Capital expenditure commitment of the Consolidated Company refers to the capital
expenses spent on the contract commitment in order to acquire the building and
equipment.

Please refer to the below table for maturity analysis on off balance sheet items, lease
contract commitment and capital expenditure commitment of the Consolidated
Company:

165



TI6°911 - 899°61 vrTL6 Judu oD dInyIpuadxa [eyde)
¥60°CE - St 91 61961 (10ss91) awoour asea] ddurULY JO on[eA Judsaid Ay,
T6LEE - 96891 96891 (10ss9]) QwoouI SB[ ddURUI] [BIO],
1LS°6 - €.89 69T (99ssa1) osuadxa asea] douruly JO anjeA Judsaid oy,
8CT01 - TS¢E°L 9.8°C (99ss9) asuadxo asea| dourUl,] [BIO],
Svi'vy - 108°1€ LY9°T1 (10ssay) swoour SunesedQ
766°560°1 LEI'SS $90°959 T6TV8E (o9ss97) asuadxa asea] SuneradQ
JUSUI IO JOBIIUOD 9SBI]
Yoy SL6 TE - - v SL6'TE SoojURIRND)
vSLESO Y - - PSLE]0 Y JIPAID JO SIANQ[ pasnu)
€80°120°9C $- $- $ €80°120°9C $ SJUSWIWILIOD UBO| D[qBIOAILI]
1991s ooue[eq JJO
€101 STBdA G Ue() OIO]\] ~ SIBIA G~ | Tedk | ueq) Sso|
10T € Pquiddeq
€10°¢8 - 99T°S1 LYL'LY JuUNIUIUod drypuadxd [ende)
6¥191 - - 6vv 91 (10SS3]) aWwOOUI 3SBI[ ddURULY JO AN[eA Juasaxd ay ],
96891 - - 968°91 (10SS3]) SWIOOUI ISBI] IOUBUIL] [BI0],
16€°8 - LET'S $SI°E (o9ssa1) osuadxa asea] douruly Jo anjea Judsaid oy,
S16°8 - 0LS'S She‘e (99559]) asuadxa 9sBI| d0UBUL] [RI0],
LyY 1Y - €71°8C YTEEl (10ss3]) swoour Suneradp
TS 010°1 #9179 61L°95¢ 65S9°16€ (99s89]) asuadxa ased] Sunerad(
JUSUI WO JORIIUOD 9SBI]
€9V LITTE - - €9V LITTE soojueIRNLD)
LOVSS8C - - L0V SS8‘T JIPaId JO SIANI pasnu()
888°LI¥TT $- $- $888°LI¥TT $ SJUSUIIWWOD UBO[ I[qBIOAILI]
1991s ooue[eq JO
€101, SIBdA G UBY) OIO]N ~ SIBAA G~ | Tedk | ueq) Sso|

PT0C 1€ quaosQ

166



'SQUoURIq ONSAWOP

pue 201350 peay joq 10J (Aouarmo uSa10y Surpnjoxo “a'1) A[Uo SIE[op [N Ul PAJeUIIOUap spunj ay) jussaidor oA0qe pjsi| SJUNOWe Y], :9JON

(2TT'099°081 )(L6V 661°9€ ) (S89%9t° Ty ) (66L°S€9°LT  )¥S0°69T°TE SPL'OYT'LS | (POVPPLLOT ) den

Kumyew uodn|

08STE€TOLY | STSLSLOL S97°686°€9 1€T°SL8'Y9  |ThL'88F CE $SSSTH 91 L60°89LbTL  |Mo[jano spuny Arewiid]

Kumyew uodn|

8SETLS 68T | 8T0°8STOY 08L¥TS 1T TEV'6ETLE  |96L°LSLY9 66T TLYEL €69°€T0°LTS  |Mmopyur spuny Arewid
IeaK 1 10AQ | 189K [ ~sAep 18T | SKep 081 ~ 16 | SABp 06 ~T¢ | SKep ¢~ 11 | SKep 0] ~0 [ejoL

(sre[jo uemre], MoN Jo SpuesnoyJ, ur passaidxy)
€10T ‘1€ Joquadeg

(£80°L88°681 )(L89'16€°LE )| (prerzeoe ) (169°699°8€ ) 162°067°ST 0SY08LvS  |(470°66S91T ) deny

Kumyew uodn|

CLTLYI0IS | 697 706°C8 #90C00°9S 8SS°00TP8  |8SHSE]SH 9TTSILLI L¥0°SS8°96L  |MO[jIno  spuny  Arewid|

Kumyew uodn|

681°092°0T€ | T8LTISSH 0bL‘08T'ST L98°0ES°Sy  |6VLSTI‘IL 9L9°SHSTL | €00°9ST°08S  |[mopur spuny  Arewilid
10K [ 10AQ | 180K | ~sAep [Q] | SKep 081~ 16 | SKep06~1¢ | sAepoc~11 | skepQ[~0 Telog,

(sre[jo uemIe], MoN JO spuesnoy ] ur passaidxd)

syueq o1qng Aq syprodoy reroueur jo uoneredord oy) Sururoaon) suone[nSoy oY) YIm dOUBPIOOd. Ul dpew saInsofosiq ()

710T ‘1€ Joquadaqg

(ALN) Aunjew 03 dwn Jo SIsAJeus aImonns e

167



‘syun Suryueq 9I0YS}JO PUL SAYIURIQ O1ISAWOP ‘DIJ() PEOH 10J SIB[[OP S[) Ul PIRUILIOUIP SPUNJ Y} Juasa1dor 9A0qe pajsi| syunoure oy, 190N

06951 (90¢'s6v (STT9p1 )(¥91°09 )(9LT'LLY JLgcees ) den

LTEESS ¥10°6£9 0LLOIE 19L°60 £78°9¢€’ SILSYT'E Aumnyew uodn mofy ino spury Krewid

L18°60L 80L6€1 SSOv91 L6S 6V L9S°659 YrE'€T0T Aumyewr uodn moyy ut spuny Arewtig
180K [ 10AQ | JBoK [~sAep [8]| SAEp 081~16 sKep 06~1¢ skep 0¢~0 [eloL

(s1e[jo@ SN Jo spuesnoy [ ur passaidxq)
€10T ‘1€ 1oquaosq

619°10T (8¥L°0L8 )(Tiete61 ) 96L°THT (69T°ssy P16 PLIT ) dep

L6V'LS9 699096 9ISt 1ty 912°69¢ YOEETL 423484 Ayumew uodn Moy Jno spury Arewiid|

911°658 12668 Pr1°84C T10°80S SE€0°89T°1 8TTEL6T Aunyew uodn mopy ur spuny Arewid
180K [ 10AQ | Jeok [~sAep [8]| SAep 081~16 sKep 06~1¢ skep 0¢~0 [el0L,

(s1e[jo S Jo spuesnoy, ur passaidxq)
Y10T ‘1€ 1qua03q
(asn) Aumew 03 swiy Jo SISA[eU. AUMONIS "q

168



D. Market risk

Market risks refer to the losses on and off the balance sheet as a result of the change in market
price, such as interest rate, exchange rate, equity securities and commodity price. Market risk
management is there to identify, evaluate, monitor and report the risks for a purpose of
ensuring that market risk of all kinds should be controlled within certain bearable level.

(A) Risk management principle

a. Principle

b.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

In order to establish a well-functioning risk management system and sound
business development, promote an appropriate risk management-oriented
business model, achieve business objectives and enhance shareholder value,
the Bank takes the Board-approved risk management policy to completely
carry out risk management system and further create stable and high-quality
earnings for shareholders.

The Bank has gradually implemented market risk quantification based on the
criteria laid down in the established risk management policy and standards.
The Bank has also set up mechanisms to evaluate and manage value at risk to
optimize capital allocation.

Market risk management is implemented in accordance with “Market Risk
Management Standards” and other relevant regulations of the Bank in order to
meet operational targets and maintain sound capital adequacy ratio.

The Bank established market risk information system to effectively monitor
different limit control, profit and loss assessment, analysis of sensitivity
factors, implementation of stress testing and calculation of value at risk in
respect of positions of financial instruments held by the Bank. The relevant
information will be presented at risk control meeting and the Board meeting
for the senior management’s reference in determination of strategic decision.

Policies and procedures

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Bank has already established an explicit market risk management system
based on the risk management policies of the parent Yuanta Financial
Holdings. This system includes risk management guidelines, risk management
procedures and reasonable risk measurement methods. By implementing
market risk management mechanism, the Bank can accurately identify,
measure and monitor market risk changes and trends.

Business domain and scope of financial instruments: the Bank established
market risk management standards and defined scope of market risk
management covering business domain such as foreign exchange trading,
money market trading, capital market trading and derivative financial
instrument transactions.

The Bank established risk management procedures and took advantage of
measurement methods (such as sensitivity analysis, VaR calculation, scenario
simulation and stress testing) to require relevant units to set not only trading
limits on various financial instruments including position limit, nominal
principal limit, and stop-loss limit but also limits of authorization and limit
exceeding handling procedures applicable to various limits. To increase
transparency of market risk information, risk management unit reviews and
submits statement of risk management on a daily basis and performs
continuous monitoring and tracking in case of abnormal transactions.
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(B) Procedure of market risk management

a. Recognition and measurement

(a)

(b)

By establishing value at risk (VaR) measurement systems that are tailored to
each financial product, the Bank continually strengthens potential loss
estimation models and methods, gradually integrates them into a
comprehensive risk management system that thoroughly discloses information,
effectively strengthens early warning capabilities, and meets the requirements
of the New Basel Capital Accord with regard to risk management quality.

Both business unit and risk management unit have market risk factors for
identifying exposed positions so that market risk can be measured accordingly.
For interest rate instruments, except for measurement of VaR above, the impact
of an interest rate shift on profit and loss is measured using price value of a
basis point (DVO01). Risk of holding equity securities is monitored by limits on
market value and liquidity. The impact of options on the Bank is measured
using Delta and Gamma. The Bank also arranges scenario and performs regular
stress testing for market risk.

b. Supervision and reporting

According to different business characteristics, the Bank sets up policies governing
risks of various financial instruments to cover procedures of identification,
measurement, supervision and reporting. Risk management segment is assigned to
keep track of the business unit’s compliance.

(a)

(b)

Daily transactions: the Bank’s front office business and risk control of middle
office belong to different units and are independent from each other. The risk
management segment supervises trading positions of business unit on a daily
basis to produce supervision report recording utilization of limits, market value
assessment and income statement, exposed positions, and utilization of risk
limit for approval of the senior management. The Bank’s risk management unit
also submits monthly/quarterly reports recording information about
enforcement of risk management objectives, control over positions and profit
or loss, sensitivity analysis, and state of VaR to audit committee and the Board
of Directors for their sufficient knowledge of market risk control.

Exceptional management: the Bank established explicit early-warning and limit
exceeding handling procedures, which has been set to stop loss if transactions
overrun market risk limit or individual limit due to market changes. Applicants
filing exceptional management due to business reasons shall state reasons and
handling plans clearly and report to the senior management for approval.

(C) Risk management policies for trading book

The so-called trading book refers to financial instruments and physical instruments held
for trading or for hedging trading book position. The so-called positions held for trading
mainly refer to positions are held with an intention to earn profit from actual or
expected price variance between the purchase price and selling price. Positions not
classified as trading book above are banking book positions.

a. Strategy

Various assessments and controls are implemented to effectively control market risk
and ensure the mobility and adaptability of the trading strategy implemented by
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business unit. In addition, risk limits on each portfolio of trading book are set up
according to the trading strategy, types of trading instruments and annual profit
objective for better management.

b. Policies and procedures

The Bank established “Market Risk Management Standards” as a significant control
regulation to be followed when holding trading book positions.

c. Evaluation policy

If valuations on various financial instruments of trading book have market values,

assessment shall be performed based on independent sources and accessible

information at least once a day. For those evaluated by models, the Bank shall
carefully adopt mathematical models to perform valuation and regularly review
assumptions and inputs used in the evaluation models.

d. Measurement methods

(a) Please refer to Note 12(3)D(E) for assumptions and calculation methods for
VaR.

(b) The Bank performs stress testing monthly on the assumptions of the change in
interest rate, equity securities, and foreign exchange rate by 1%, 15%~20%,
and 3%~5%, respectively, and reports to the senior management.

(D) Risk management for foreign exchange, equity securities, and interest rate is set out
below:
a. Interest rate risk management of trading book
(a) Definition of interest rate risk
“Interest rate risk” refers to risk of loss on earnings or change in fair value of
trading book position as a result of interest rate movement. Major instruments
include interest-rate securities and derivatives.
The Bank’s interest rate risk mainly arises from interest rate swaps, cross
currency swap, foreign exchange swap, fixed income transactions, and interest
rate futures.
(b) Interest rate risk management procedures for trading book
The Bank carefully chooses underlying investment target through studies of
issuer’s credit rating and financial position, state of country risk, and interest
rate trends. According to business strategy and market conditions, the Bank
sets up trading limit and stop-loss limit on trading book (including limits on
trading room, trading representatives, and trading instruments), and reports to
the senior management or the Board of Directors for approval.
(c) Measurement methods
a) Please refer to Notel2 (3)D(E) for assumptions and calculation methods
for VaR.
b) The Bank measures the impact of interest rate risk on investment
portfolio by DVO01 on a daily basis.
b. Interest rate risk management of banking book

“Interest rate risk of banking book™ refers to interest rate risk from banking book

position and interest rate risk faced by off-balance sheet transactions which are not

classified into trading book.

171



(a) Strategy

The Bank’s interest rate risk management strategy of banking book is used to
reduce the negative impact of interest rate movement on future net interest
income and net economic value of balance sheet accounts in banking book.

(b) Management process

a)

b)

Recognition and measurement

Recognition and measurement of interest rate risk in the banking book
shall take account of sources of repricing risk, yield curve risk, basis risk,
and characteristics of options, and measure possible impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s earnings and economic value.

Supervision and reporting

Risk management segment is responsible for supervision and presenting
reports on various interest rate risk management objectives set by the
Bank, including relevant risk data in view of earnings, economic value,
stability, and concentration at monthly Asset and Liability Management
Committee. In case of exceeding risk management objectives or other
special circumstances that may significantly affect the Bank’s earnings or
economic value, the Bank will report to the senior management in advance,
adopt appropriate interest rate risk mitigation method, and track effects of
improvement.

Measurement methods

The Bank estimates the effects on profit or loss/equity on the assumption
that the interest rates have parallel shift of +/-200 bps.

c. Interest-rate-sensitive analysis

Available-for-sale

December 31,2014 December 31, 2013
Effects on other Effects on other

comprehensive comprehensive
Variation of Interest-rate Income Income
Major interest-rate-curve $( 7,129) $( 7,924)

financial assets - Bond rises one basis point

(c¢) Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign exchange risk refers to profit or loss resulted from conversion
between two different currencies at different periods. The Bank’s foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from foreign exchange spot, forward, foreign
exchange options and other derivatives business.

a) Policies, procedures, and measurement methods of foreign exchange risk

b)

management

To control foreign exchange risk, the Bank sets operating limit and stop-loss
limit on trading room and trading representatives. The Bank also established
annual maximum loss limit to control the loss within bearable level.

Measurement methods

a))Please refer to Note 12(3)D(E) for assumptions and calculation
methods for VaR.

b))Delta and Vega are used to measure the effect of foreign exchange risk
on investment portfolio on a daily basis.
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For the Bank’s foreign exchange risk, the Bank performs a stress testing on the
assumptions of change in exchange rate of major currency by 3%~5% on a
monthly basis at least, and reports to the senior management. Relevant details
about stress testing are provided in Note 12(3)D(E).

(d) Price risk management of equity securities

The Bank’s market risk of holding equity securities includes unique risk
arising from market price change of unique equity security and general market
risk arising from overall market price change.

The Bank’s equity security risk mainly arises from stocks, ETF, funds, and
convertible corporate bonds transactions.

a) The purpose of price risk management of equity securities

The purpose of price risk management of equity securities are to avoid
material fluctuation that may worsen the Bank’s financial position or
cause loss on earnings and to expect sound business operation and
improved effectiveness of capital utilization.

b) Procedures for price risk management of equity securities

Procedures are used to control equity security risk and set annual
maximum loss limit in order to control the loss within bearable level.
Besides, for the stop-loss point set for individual share, the Bank is
required to handle individual share that has met the stop-loss point in
accordance with limit exceeding handling procedures for market risk.

¢) Measurement methods

a))Price risk of equity security is mainly controlled based on VaR.
Relevant information is provided in Note12(3)D(E).

b))Delta is used to measure the impact of equity security risk on
investment portfolio on a daily basis.

(E) Valuation techniques of market risk

a.

Value at Risk (VaR)

VaR model is used to measure the possible maximum potential losses in investment
portfolio as a result of movement in market risk factor in a specified period and
confidence level. In terms of trading positions, VaR model is used as a major tool
to control the market risk. The Bank currently uses ‘confidence level of 99%’ for
estimating maximum possible losses on trading position of one day (that is VaR
(99%, one day)) as a standard to measure market risk.

The Bank performs back testing of VaR model on an ongoing basis to ensure the
model can continuously, reasonably, effectively measure maximum potential losses
that may arise from investment portfolio.

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Average Maximum Minimum Average Maximum Minimum
Foreign exchange rate 3,338 9,184 467 3,508 21,584 31
Interest rate 23,105 34,663 11,888 15,484 37,224 906
Equity securities 8,400 16,310 99 14,892 42,824 84
[Total VaR 31,183 39,669 19,729 26,474 53,103 6,139

Stress testing

Except for VaR model, the Bank regularly measures stress loss the Bank may
assume in extremely abnormal stress scenario. For setting of stress scenario, the
Bank comprehensively considers rationality and possibility of standard scenario,

173



historical scenario and hypothetical scenario to completely assess possible stress
loss on positions.
When stress testing exceeds risk tolerance, the Bank shall peruse market risk

analysis and risk warning, then execute counter strategy to contain risk within
reasonable scope.

(F) As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank’s foreign currency denominated financial
instruments whose balances are greater than 5% of the balance of total assets or
liabilities are presented based on foreign exchange risk concentration by the carrying

amount.
UNIT: In thousands of US Dollars/NT Dollars
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying amount Carrying amount
USD position (NTD) USD position (NTD)
Foreign currency denominated financial assets
Bills discounted and loans $ 1,635,092 $ 51,861,858 $§ 1,526,444 $ 45,717,008
Foreign currency denominated financial liabilities
Deposits and remittances $ 2422795 $ 76,846,212 § 1,738,119 § 52,056,655

Note: As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, USD to TWD exchange rates was 31.718,
and 29.950, respectively.
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(3) Capital risk management

A. The objectives of capital management of the Consolidated Company:

(A)

(B)

(©)

Meeting the minimum regulated capital adequacy ratio is the most basic objective for
the qualifying self-owned capital of the financial group controlled by the Consolidated
Company. The calculation of qualifying self-owned capital and legal capital should be
made in compliance with regulations of competent authorities.

In order to process sufficient capital to assume various risks, the Bank assesses the
required capital with consideration of the risk portfolio it faces and the risk
characteristic, and manages risk through capital allocation to realize utilization of
capital allocation.

Stress testing is performed on a regular basis in compliance with regulations of
competent authorities to ensure that the Consolidated Company’s capital is sufficient to
cover the potential loss from significant adverse events.

B. Capital management procedure:

(A) The Consolidated Company maintains the overall capital adequacy ratio and reports to

(B)

(©)

the competent authorities quarterly in compliance with the regulations from competent
authorities’ requirements.

Each risk responsible segment, accordingly by using the Consolidated Company’s risk
management framework in the areas of credit risk, market risk, operational risk, interest
rate risk of the banking book, liquidity risk, legal compliance risk and the regulations of
competent authorities, to identify, measure, monitor and report the discovery of major
risks. In this way, the capital plan of the Consolidated Company indicates the current
financial status, and its capital profile shall be applicable to its services and the scope of
business.

The objective of capital management of the Bank shall be agreed by the Board of
Directors, of which an appropriate capital projection is scheduled by the finance
management according to the long-term developing strategies, operating plan and
characteristics of assets and liabilities. The consolidated capital adequacy ratio of the
Consolidated Company is assessed and calculated by month. The risk management
analyses changes in risky assets when necessary to evaluate if the Consolidated
Company has sufficient capital for various risk and if it meets the objectives of capital
management.

(D) In accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Capital Adequacy and Capital

Category of Banks”, the Regulatory Capital of the Consolidated Company are
classified as Tier 1 Capital and the Tier 2 Capital:

a. The Tier 1 Capital includes common equity Tier 1 and additional Tier 1 capital.

(a) The common equity Tier 1 capital consists of the common equity that reduces
intangible assets, the deferred tax assets due to losses from the previous year,
the insufficiency of operation reserves and loan loss provisions, the
revaluation surplus of real estate, unamortized losses on sales of
non-performing loans, and the statutory adjustment items calculated in
accordance with other rules for calculation methods.

(b) The additional Tier 1 «capital consists of the total amount of the
non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock and its capital stock premium,
non-cumulative perpetual subordinated debts and the non-cumulative
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perpetual preferred stock and its capital stock premium, and the
non-cumulative perpetual subordinated debts which are issued by subsidiaries,
and are not directly or indirectly held by the Bank reduces the total amount of
the deductible items in accordance with the rules for calculation guideline.

b. The range of Tier 2 capital shall include the total amount of the following items
reduces the total amount of the deductible items in accordance with the rules for
calculation guideline:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The total amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock and its capital stock
premium, cumulative perpetual subordinated debts, convertible subordinated
debts, long-term subordinated debts and non-perpetual preferred stock and its
capital stock premium.

When the real estate was recognized under International Financial Reporting
Standards for the first time and used the fair value or the re-estimated value as
the deemed cost. The difference in amount between the deemed cost and the
book value was recognized in retained earnings, the 45% of unrealized gain
on available-for-sale financial assets, as well as operational reserves and
loan-loss provisions.

The cumulative perpetual preferred stock and its capital stock premium,
cumulative perpetual subordinated debts, convertible subordinated debts,
long-term subordinated debts, and the non-perpetual preferred stock and its
capital stock premiums, which are issued by subsidiaries, and are not directly
or indirectly held by the Bank.

The loan-loss provisions included in Tier 2 capital means the amount of the
provisions that the bank provided in excess of the expected loss assessed according
to historical loss experience.
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C. Capital adequacy ratio

December 31
2014 2013

Eligible  |Common Equity Tier 1 47,972,473| 43,367,166
Capital |Additional Tier 1 Capital - -
Tier 2 Capital 19,003,750[ 11,649,461
Eligible Capital 66,976,223| 55,016,627
Total risk- |Credit risk [Standardized Approach 471,176,159, 396,135,491
weighted Internal Ratings- Based Approach - -
assets Securitization - -
Operational Basic Indicator Approach - -

risk Standardized Approach / Alternative
Standardized Approach 17,517,763| 15,150,838
\Advanced Measurement Approach - -
Market risk |Standardized Approach 33,517,888 14,523,300
Internal Models Approach - -
Total risk-weighted assets 522,211,810 425,809,629
Capital adequacy ratio 12.83% 12.92%
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio 9.19% 10.18%
Tier 1 Risk-based Capital Ratio 9.19% 10.18%
Leverage Ratio 4.68% 5.13%

Note 1: The eligible capital, risk-weighted assets and Exposure Measurement in the table
above should be filled in accordance with “Regulations Governing the Capital
Adequacy and Capital Category of Banks” and “calculation method and table of
self-owned capital and risk-weighted assets”.

Note 2: The relevant formulas are as follows:

1. Eligible capital = Common Equity + Additional Tier 1 Capital + Tier 2 Capital

2. Total risk-weighted assets = credit risk-weighted assets + (operational risk +
market risk) * 12.5

3. Capital adequacy ratio = Eligible capital / Total risk-weighted assets

4. Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio=Common Equity Tier 1/Total risk-weighted assets
5. Tier 1 Risk-based Capital Ratio=(Common Equity Tier 1+ additional Tier 1
Capital)/Total risk-weighted assets

6. Leverage Ratio= Tier 1 Capital / Exposure Measurement °
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(4) Content and amount of investment trust business in accordance with Trust Enterprise Act

In accordance with Article 17 of the Trust Enterprise Act, the Bank discloses its trust balance
sheet, trust income statement and schedule of trust property as follows:

Trust Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Trust assets Trust liabilities
Bank deposits $ 3,668,496 Payable - Customers’ $ 30,293,169
securities under custody
Stocks 8,060,720 Pecuniary trust 66,545,730
Funds (Note 1) 53,725,495 Securities trust 4,764,086
Bonds 7,203,801 Real estate trust 11,343,074
Real estate 10,810,108 Money market mutual fund 289,505
Customers’ securities under 30,293,169  Net income 108,705
custody
Accumulated deficit 417,520
Total trust liabilities $ 113,761,789
Total trust assets $ 113,761,789 Total trust liabilities $ 113,761,789

Trust Balance Sheet
December 31, 2013

Trust assets Pecuniary trust 59,239,023
Bank deposits $ 2,626,832 Securities trust 5,019,099
Stocks 7,948,452 Real estate trust 8,910,971
Funds (Note 1) 49,643,097 Monetary claim trust and the 453,140
Bonds 5,632,962  related security interests
(Note 2)
Real estate 8,417,277 Money market mutual fund 656,417
Customers’ securities under 27,625,851  Net income 119,856
custody
Others 451,280 Accumulated deficit 321,394
Total trust liabilities $ 102,345,751
Total trust assets $ 102,345,751

Notel: Includes mutual funds in money market.
Note2: Including financial assets securitization.

180



(5

Trust Income Statement

For the year ended December 31, 2014

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Trust revenue:

Interest income $ 19,220
Investment income 11,156
Dividend revenue 111,811
Rental income 528

142,715

Trust expenses:

Management fees 21,665

Tax expenses 7,239
Insurance 2,639
Loss on investment 759

32,302

Trust revenue:

Interest income $ 19,352
Investment income 27,382
Dividend revenue 92,349
Rental income 6,097

Gain on property trade

9.091

154,271

Trust expenses:

Management fees 19,407
Tax expenses 9,277
Insurance 2,246
Loss on investment 116
Loss on property trade 1,775
Service fee expense 4

32.825

Income before income tax 110,413 Income before income tax 121,446
Income tax expense ( 1.708) Income tax expense ( 1.590)

Net income $ 108,705 Net income $ 119,856

Schedule of Trust Property
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Invested items Book value Invested items Book value

Bank deposits $ 3,668,496 Bank deposits $ 2,626,832

Stocks 8,060,720 Stocks 7,948,452

Funds 53,725,495 Funds 49,643,097

Bonds 7,203,801 Bonds 5,632,962

Real estate- land 10,810,108 Real estate- land 8,417,277

Customers’ securities under 30,293,169 Customers’ securities under 27,625,851
custody custody

Others 451,280

$ 113,761,789 $ 102,345,751

Foreign currency pecuniary trust operated by the Offshore Banking Unit (OBU) as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 was included in the trust balance sheet and schedule of trust property.

Cross-selling marketing strategies implemented between the Consolidated Company, the Yuanta

Financial Holding Co. and its subsidiaries

A. In order to achieve the integrated benefit for financial holding company, the Group adopts
the cross-selling marketing approach to take advantage of the operation channels, branches
and staff to satisfy various needs of the clients, to increase the Group’s sales performance
and to enhance cost-saving efficiency. The cross-selling marketing approach was conducted
in conformance with “Yuanta Financial Holdings Company Group Cross-selling Marketing
Rules” to regulate the Consolidated Company, the Yuanta Financial Holdings Co. and its

subsidiaries, to ensure clients’ rights.

Information exchange

As the Consolidated Company, the Yuanta Financial Holdings Co. and its subsidiaries or
other third parties adopted cross-selling marketing approach; such entities should comply
with Article 11 of “Yuanta Financial Holdings Company Group Cross-selling Marketing
Rules” to disclose, transfer or exchange client’s name and address. Details of the rules are as

follows:
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(A) Use other than clients’ name and address shall be approved by clients on written
agreement and cannot be gathered or utilized outside the permitted range;

(B) Once the clients cease to permit the exchange of their personal information, transaction
information and other related information, the Consolidated Company, the Yuanta
Financial Holdings Co. and its subsidiaries shall stop using the information
immediately.

C. Common use of operation facilities or place

As the Consolidated Company, the Yuanta Financial Holdings Co. and its subsidiaries or
other third parties adopted cross-selling marketing approach, such entities should comply
with Article 3 of “Yuanta Financial Holdings Company Group Cross-selling Marketing
Rules” to apply for approval from the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Executive
Yuan and should comply with Articles 6 and 8 of the Rules for the scope and method in
adopting cross-selling business.

There was no major common business marketing and information exchanged as of
December 31, 2014.

(6) Profitability

(%)

Items For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Return on total assets [Before tax 0.77 0.59
After tax 0.70 0.53
Return on equity Before tax 10.30 7.52
After tax 9.34 6.73
INet profit margin ratio 40.10 32.58

Note 1: Return on total assets = Income before (after) income tax/average total assets.
Note 2: Return on equity = Income before (after) income tax / average equity.
Note 3: Net profit margin ratio = Income after income tax / net revenues.

Note 4: The term “Income before (after) income tax” represents net income from January 1 to
the balance sheet date of the reporting period.
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G. Significant transactions between parent company and subsidiaries

Significant transactions between parent company and subsidiaries Information for the year

ended December 31, 2014:
Details of transactions
0,
No. Company Counterparty Relationship lt)oetgcle?;iizl(icﬁ)l:df
(Notel) (Note 2) Account Amount Conditions
net revenues or
assets
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Life 1 /Accounts 13,048 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent [Receivable
0  [Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Life 1 IDeposits and 57,459 Note 3 0.01%
Insurance Agent remittances
0 'Yuanta Bank 'Yuanta Life 1 Service fee and 576,978 Note 3 5.09%
Insurance Agent commission
lincome
0  [Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Life 1 Interest expense 280 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
0  [Yuanta Bank  [Yuanta Property 1 |Accounts 275 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent Receivable
0  |Yuanta Bank  [Yuanta Property 1 IDeposits and 9,358 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent remittances
0  |Yuanta Bank 'Yuanta Property 1 Service fee and 4,901 Note 3 0.04%
Insurance Agent commission
income
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Property 1 Interest expense 63 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 Interests payable 45 Note 3 0.00%
International
Leasing
0  [Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 Deposits and 202,160 Note 3 0.03%
International remittances
Leasing
0 'Yuanta Bank 'Yuanta 1 Other liabilities 7 Note 3 0.00%
International
Leasing
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 Service fee and 7 Note 3 0.00%
International commission
Leasing lincome
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 Interest expense 1,344 Note 3 0.01%
International
Leasing
0 'Yuanta Life 'Yuanta Bank 2 Cash 57,459 Note 3 0.01%
Insurance Agent
1 'Yuanta Life [Yuanta Bank 2 |Accrued expense 13,048 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
1 'Yuanta Life [Yuanta Bank 2 Interest income 280 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
1 'Yuanta Life 'Yuanta Bank 2 Service fee and 576,978 Note 3 5.09%
Insurance Agent commission
lexpense
2 |Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 Cash 9,358 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
2 [Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 |Accrued expense 275 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
2 |Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 Interest income 63 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
2 |Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 Service fee and 4,901 Note 3 0.04%
Insurance Agent commission
lexpense
3 [Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Cash 202,160 Note 3 0.03%
International
ILeasing
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Details of transactions

Percentage (%) of

No. Relationship )
(Notel) Company Counterparty (Note 2) Account Amount Conditions total consolidated
net revenues or
assets
3 [Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Other 45 Note 3 0.00%
International receivables
ILeasing
3 'Yuanta 'Yuanta Bank 2 Interest income 1,344 Note 3 0.01%
International
Leasing
3 [Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Other assets 7 Note 3 0.00%
International
ILeasing
3 |Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Other general 7 Note 3 0.00%
International land
Leasing ladministrative
lexpenses
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Significant transactions between parent company and subsidiaries Information for the year

ended December 31, 2013:
Details of transactions
0,
No. Company Counterparty Relationship lt)(il:le:(:i%(e)l(i(ﬁ)t:;
(Notel) (Note 2) Account Amount Conditions
net revenues or
assets
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Life 1 |Accounts 39,069 Note 3 0.01%
Insurance Agent [Receivable
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Life 1 IDeposits and 46,946 Note 3 0.01%
Insurance Agent remittances
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Life 1 Service fee and 415,830 Note 3 4.44%
Insurance Agent commission
lincome
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Life 1 Interest expense 271 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
0 'Yuanta Bank 'Yuanta Property 1 |Accounts 286 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent Receivable
0  [Yuanta Bank  [Yuanta Property 1 Deposits and 10,007 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent remittances
0  [Yuanta Bank [Yuanta Property 1 Service fee and 5,686 Note 3 0.06%
Insurance Agent commission
lincome
0  [Yuanta Bank  [Yuanta Property 1 Interest expense 64 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 Interests payable 37 Note 3 0.00%
International
Leasing
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 IDeposits and 210,544 Note 3 0.04%
International remittances
Leasing
0 'Yuanta Bank 'Yuanta 1 Other liabilities 3 Note 3 0.00%
International
Leasing
0 Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 Other liabilities 4 Note 3 0.00%
International
Leasing
0 'Yuanta Bank [Yuanta 1 Service fee and 4 Note 3 0.00%
International commission
Leasing lincome
0 'Yuanta Bank 'Yuanta 1 Interest expense 3,917 Note 3 0.04%
International
Leasing
1 'Yuanta Life [Yuanta Bank 2 Cash 46,946 Note 3 0.01%
Insurance Agent
1 'Yuanta Life 'Yuanta Bank 2 |Accrued expense 39,069 Note 3 0.01%
Insurance Agent
1 'Yuanta Life [Yuanta Bank 2 Interest income 271 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
1 'Yuanta Life [Yuanta Bank 2 Service fee and 415,830 Note 3 4.44%
Insurance Agent commission
expense
2 Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 Cash 10,007 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
2 [Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 |Accrued expense 286 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
2 'Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 Interest income 64 Note 3 0.00%
Insurance Agent
2 |Yuanta Property [Yuanta Bank 2 Service fee and 5,686 Note 3 0.06%
Insurance Agent commission
lexpense
3 'Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Cash 210,544 Note 3 0.04%
International
ILeasing
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Details of transactions
. . Percentage (%) of
No. Relationship )
(Notel) Company Counterparty (Note 2) Account Amount Conditions total consolidated
net revenues or
assets
3 [Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Other 37 Note 3 0.00%
International receivables
ILeasing
3 'Yuanta 'Yuanta Bank 2 Interest income 3,917 Note 3 0.04%
International
Leasing
3 [Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Other assets 3 Note 3 0.00%
International
ILeasing
3 [Yuanta [Yuanta Bank 2 Other assets 4 Note 3 0.00%
International
Leasing
3 'Yuanta 'Yuanta Bank 2 Other general 4 Note 3 0.00%
International land
Leasing administrative
lexpenses
Note 1: The numbers in the No. column represent as follows:
1. 0 for the parent company
2. According to the sequential order, subsidiaries are numbered from 1.
Note 2: There are three types of relationships with the counterparties and they are labeled as
follows:
1. Parent company to subsidiary.
2. Subsidiary to parent company.
3. Subsidiary to subsidiary.
Note 3: No significant difference from general customers.
H. Other significant transactions that may affect the decisions made by financial statement

users: None.
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14. Segment information:

(1) General information

In accordance with the IFRS 8 as endorsed by the FSC, the overall performance of the operating
segments is reviewed by the Board of Directors on a regular basis to determine the distribution of
resources and to assess the results. All reportable segments determined by the Consolidated
Company meet the disclosure requirements of IFRS 8 as endorsed by the FSC.

The Consolidated Company has a global market, comprising four major business segments; there
was no change in the reporting segments during the period.

A.

B.
C.

D.

Corporate finance: General corporate loans, policy finance, guarantees and acceptances,
receivables finance and small and medium enterprise loans, etc.

Consumer finance: Mortgage loans, auto loans, consumer loans, credit cards, etc.

Wealth management: The segment consolidates deposits, wealth management, trust business
and various financial products, and provides clients with tailor-made recommendations and
advice according to their asset portfolio and financial position.

Financial trading: Investing in and handling of foreign exchange and fixed income product,
securities and other derivatives.

(2)The income sources and service types of each reporting segment

A. Measurement of the profit and loss and assets and liabilities of operating segments

The Consolidated Company’s measurement principles of profit and loss and assets and
liabilities of operating segments are consistent with significant accounting policies stated in
Note 4, and the measurement of profit and loss performance is based on pre-tax profit and
loss.

In order to create a fair and reasonable evaluation system, the funding among segments is
regarded as a lending to the third party and interest incomes and expenses should be calculated
according to internal funding rates which refer to market conditions. Incomes and expenses
among internal segments shall be offset in the financial reports published.

Incomes and expenses attributable to each operating segments shall be classified as profits or
losses of the segment; the indirect expenses that are not attributable to any segment and back
office expenses should be reasonably allocated to operating segments. Expenses that cannot be
reasonably allocated should be listed under “other segments™.

B. Recognition element for reporting segment

The performance appraisal for the Consolidated Company’s reporting segments based on
specific performance indicators which are reviewed and evaluated by the management on a
regular basis is a reference for resource allocation.
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3. Risk Management and Other Significant Issues

(1) Information of Credit Risk Management:
A. Credit Risk Management System in 2014

Item

Contents

1. Strategies,
objectives,
policies and
procedure of
credit risk

1.

2.

Strategies and Objectives:

(1) Follow Basel III requirements to improve the Bank’s ability in risk management in order|
to meet the international standards.

(2) Well found and fully implement the various risk management systems and control
procedures.

(3) Strengthen the information integration, analysis and precautionary effect to exert the risk
management actively.

Policies:

(1) Cultivate the business strategies and organizations valuing credit risk management, and
master the qualitative and quantitative management approaches as the reference in|
strategy making.

(2) Establish the overall credit risk management system to control possible business risks
within the risk tolerance during the process of operation, in hopes of ensuring the Bank’s|
achievement of credit risk strategic objectives.

(3) Authorize independent credit risk management units and personnel to exercise job duties
to ensure that the Bank’s credit risk management systems is implemented effectively and|
to help the Board of Directors and management level perform their duties fully to fulfill
the bank’s credit risk management systems.

(4) Establish effective methods and monitoring procedures to ensure the adequacy of]
capital, and express business performance in a proper manner through the risk
adjustment, and maximize shareholders’ value.

Management Procedure:
Credit risk identification, measurement, monitoring and management, credit risk report and
credit risk performance management.

2. Structure and
organization of
credit risk
management

Board of Directors:

(1) The Board of Directors is the Bank’s supreme policy-making entity for risk
management, responsible for authorizing the Bank’s risk management policies and
guidelines and supervising fulfillment of the various systems to achieve the Bank’s
entire credit risk management objectives.

(2) Audit Committee to review the risk-related proposal before proposing to the Board off
Directors and communicate with the risk implementation entities.

Senior Management:

Asset & Liability Management Committee, Risk Management Committee, Non-Performing|
Loan Management Committee and Credit Evaluation Committee are subordinated to the|
president.

Risk Management Dept:

(1) Responsible for researching or suggesting the amendments of the Bank’s credit risk
management policies and guidelines to be proposed to the Board of Directors for
approval.

(2) Establish the Bank’s entire structure of measuring, controlling and evaluating|
quantitative risk.

(3) Responsible for enforcing and controlling the Bank’s credit risk management and credit
risk management regulations for the various businesses to ensure all businesses apply|
strictly with the Bank’s credit risk management policies and guidelines.

Credit Management Department and other business units:

Manage credit risks of crediting cases according to stratified empowerment, including|
crediting review, crediting management and post-loan management.

Internal audit:

The independent internal audit entities will review the enforcement of the Bank’s credit risk
management systems periodically and disclose it in the audit report truly, and ensure that the
relevant entities have taken the corrective actions in a timely manner.
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Item Contents
3. Scope and 1. Scope and characteristics of credit risk report:
characteristics of (1) Report to Board of Directors. (Regularly)/(Integrated risk report)
credit risk report (2) Report to Audit Committee. (Regularly)/(Integrated risk report)
and measurement (3) Monthly report to Asset & Liability Management Committee. (Integrated risk report)
systems (4) Monthly report to Risk Management Committee. (Integrated risk report)
(5) Monthly corporate and consumer banking asset quality report.
(6) Monthly disclosure of limit information of country, industry and group.
2. Credit risk measurement systems include:
(1) Capital charge calculation platform information system.
(2) The credit information and investigation system: Credit rating.
(3) The collection system: Asset appraisal.
(4) The Bank’s credit risk alarming system: The credit risk alarming mechanism.
(5) Mid-term crediting management platform (Including post loan management and the
review platform.)
(6) Scorecards of consumer banking and credit rating models of corporate banking.
(7) Large exposure system.
4. Credit risk 1. Credit risk hedging or risk reduction policies:
hedging or risk (1) Review the credit risk hedging plan and execution of the centralized risk or higher risk
reduction businesses.
policies, and (2) Plan to amend the Bank's regulations of risk reduction and controlling system to follow
strategies and the risk reduction regulations in the Basel III.
procedures for |2.  Strategies and procedures for controlling effectiveness of hedging and risk reduction:
controlling the Establish the collateral management system in accordance with Basel III risk reduction|
ongoing regulations, and ensure the ongoing effective mess of risk reduction of collaterals through|
effectiveness of periodical revaluation of collaterals, loan-to-value ratio alert, analysis of centralization and
hedging and risk stress testing.
reduction tools
5. Approach for
regulatory capital |Standardized Approach.
charge

B. Exposure and accrued capital charge upon risk reduction under credit risk
standardized approach

Unit: NT$1,000 ; December 31, 2014

Type of Risk Exposure Risk Exposure after Risk Mitigation Capital Charge
Sovereigns 87,580,202 11,553
Non-central Government Public 0 0
Sector Entities
Banks (Multilateral Development
Banks included) 46,353,323 1,652,728
.Cooperates(Securl.tles' firms and 297,520,632 22221210
insurance companies included)
Retailed credit 91,797,125 6,485,200
Residential Property 120,202,331 6,743,291
Equity-securities investment 5,981 1,914
Other assets 8,287,809 394,070
Total 651,747,403 37,509,966

Note: Capital charge is equal to the risk exposure after risk mitigation multiplied by legal minimum capital adequacy

ratio.
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(2) Information of Securitization Management:

A. Securitization Management System in 2014

Item

Contents

1. The strategies and procedure of securitization
risk management

The procedure of securitized product investment: Before the business|
division invests in any securitized product, investment analysis must be
conducted on product credit worthiness, liquidity and profitability and
such investment must be approved by the authorized levels according to
the investment objectives.

2. The organization and structure of
securitization management

1. In terms of asset securitization, at present, we engage only in
securities investments and booked in banking book. We are not the
originating bank.

The investment of asset securitization in banking book, the Asset]
and Liability Management Committee is the top management, the
Treasury Department is the business execution unit, the Risk]
Management Department is the risk monitoring and control unit,
and the Financial Trading Supporting Department is the operation
settlement unit of this bank.

3.Scope and characteristics of securitization
risk report and measurement systems

1.  The Asset and Liability Management Committee discloses every)|
month the positions of investment in asset securitization. When the
loss on valuation exceeds the specific proportion of cost, the
business execution unit should make reviews in a timely manner
and propose corresponding solutions, and report the solutions to the
Asset and Liability Management Committee for reference.

Asset securitization products with a quotation on the public market
should be evaluated according to such quotation every day. If there
is no quotation on the public market, products should be evaluated
according to the quotation of the counterparty.

4. The hedge of securitization or risk reduction
policies, and strategies and procedures for
controlling the on-going effectiveness of
hedging and risk reduction tools

When there is a larger risk exposure risk, assessments will be conducted
to reduce risk exposure; or the approved risk reduction methods will be
implemented to reduce risk to a controllable range.

5. Approach for regulatory capital charge

Standardized Approach.

6.Requirement on comprehensive qualitative
disclosure, including:

(1) Goals for securitization activities, risk
models undertaken and retained of the
Bank’s re-securitization.

(2) Other risks involved in securitized asset
(such as liquidity risk).

(3) Various roles that the Bank plays during
the securitization process and the Bank’s
involvement in each process.

(4) The description on the monitoring
procedures taken for changes in credit and
market risk involved in securitization risk
exposure.

(5) The Bank’s management strategies in
credit risk mitigation during the mitigation
of risk retained in securitization and
re-securitization.

The Bank has never served as an originator of asset securitization so no
information shall be disclosed in this item.
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Contents

7.Description on the Bank’s accounting policies [The Bank has never served as an originator of asset securitization so no|

on securitization

information shall be disclosed in this item.

8.The names of ECAI used in banking books
for securitization and their usage in each type
of asset securitization exposure.

9.Explanation on any significant changes in any
quantitative information from last reported
period (such as any transfer of asset between
banking books and trading books)

B. Engagement in Securitization:

No information is to be disclosed, for the Bank has never been the originator for
securitization.

C. Risk exposure and accrual capital charge for securitization :

As of December 2014, the Bank no longer held any investments in securitized product.

D. Information of investment in securitization products :

As of December 2014, the Bank no longer held any investments in securitized product.

(3) Information of Operational Risk Management:

A. Operational Risk Management System in 2014

Item

Contents

1 ~ The strategies

operational risk
management

and procedure of

Formed a risk-oriented operational model and straightened business development to achieve
its operation goals and maximize sharcholder value. The Bank developed risk management
policies, operational risk management principles, defined the scope and duties of operational
risk management, and executed risk identification, risk evaluation and reporting processes
including operational risk assessment and process analysis.

In response to existing or potential operational risks, all divisions in the Bank take effective
improvement practices and persistently track the according implementation. Before the
undertaking or during the planning of new services, all related operational risks must be
identified and the controls of the process marked. The Bank additionally constructed
contingency plans and conducted necessary simulation to assure incessant operation amid
possible severe accidents.

and structure of
operational risk
management

2 ~ The organization |1.

Board of Directors:
The supreme authority in the Bank, in charge of approving risk management policies and
according principles and monitoring execution of all systems in order to achieve the goals
of operational risk management.
Senior Management:
The New Product Review Committee and Risk Management Committee are established
under the President. The Risk Management Committee supervises the implementation and
promotion of risk management and reviews risk management reports of individual units, in
order to ensure the effectiveness of the bank’s risk management.
Risk Management Department:
(1) Develop the operational risk management guidelines and related policies of the Bank.
(2) Supervise the Bank’s major operational risks and loss exposure.
(3) Coordinate operational risk management with all divisions and branches.
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4. All departments in Head Office, supervising divisions and branches :
According to operational risk management regulations, all departments and supervising
divisions developed according business regulations as standards for execution of all business|
divisions.

5. Internal Audit:
An independent internal audit unit reporting to the Board of Directors reviews the
performance of this bank’s risk management system at planned intervals, discloses the
related information in the audit report, and ensures that appropriate improvement actions
have been taken by related units.

6. Compliance Affairs Department:
Plan, manage, appraise and execute the legal compliance system of the Bank; establish the
legal conveyance, consultancy, coordination and communication system; confirm instant
update of all procedures and managerial rules according to the regulations; present and sign
opinions conforming to the laws and bylaws; and analyze reasons and corrective opinions|
for major drawbacks or abuses of all division in legal compliance.

Scope and
characteristics of
operational risk
report and
measurement
systems

We identify measure and monitor operational risk with various risk management instruments,
such as operational risk loss data collection, operational risk and control self-assessment, and
operational risk indicators. All divisions in the Bank conduct online risk event reporting and self]
assessment through the operational risk report system and the self-assessment system. Risk
Management Department conducts operation process examination, compiled analysis and
improvement practice tracking with the trend of risk indicator changes, internal and external
losses, and the self- assessment of all divisions on control. The result of risk identification,
measurement and monitoring are periodically reported to the executives.

Operational risk
hedging or risk
reduction
policies, and
strategies
procedures for
controlling the
continuously
effectiveness of
hedging and risk
reduction tools

The Bank has developed regulations on operational risk hedging and risk mitigation. In response

to possibilities and severity of risk, the Bank will adopt the following risk measures and

procedures for risk bearing, risk averse, risk transfer, risk reduction, according indicators, risk

warning, control mechanism, and corrective plans of every major products:

1.Risk bearing and tighter operation control shall be conducted for smaller loss amounts and
lower frequencies.

2.Risk reduction or risk control, more intense personnel training, operating procedure
improvement or system control advancement shall be conducted for smaller loss amounts and
higher frequencies

3.Risk transfer or risk mitigation shall be conducted for larger loss amounts and lower
frequencies. Proper insurance and outsourcing should be undertaken after cautious evaluation.

4.Risk averse shall be conducted for large loss amounts and higher frequencies while the
according business or service should not be launched or shall be stopped.

Outsourcing or insurance shall require periodical evaluation on its risk, effect or the claim

payment ability of the insurance company in order to ensure the risk mitigation tools will be

effective constantly.

Approach for
regulatory capital
charge

Standardized Approach.

B. Accrued Capital Charge of Operational Risk :

Unit: NT$1,000 ; December 31, 2014

Year Gross Income Capital Charge
2012 7,804,838

2013 9,951,276

2014 11,082,489

Total 28,838,603 1,380,975
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(4) Information of Market Risk Management:
A. Market Risk Management System in 2014 :

Item

Content

Market risk
management
strategies and
processes

In order to establish the fair risk management system and well found the
development of business to boost the proper risk management-oriented business
model and achieve the operation objectives and increase shareholders’ value, the
Bank’s Board of Directors approves the risk management policies to fulfill the
well-founded risk management system and create stable and high-quality
profitability for shareholders.

. Based on the existing risk management policies and guidelines, fulfill the

quantification of market risk step by step and establish the management and
appraisal mechanism for value at risk and optimal allocation of capital.

Scope of business and underwritten products: enact the market risk management
guidelines, define the scope of market risk management; the scope of businesses
may include transactions in foreign exchange market, money market and capital
market, and transactions of financial derivatives.

Define the risk management procedure and application methods (e.g. sensitivity
analysis, value at risk calculation, scenario simulation and stress testing, etc.);
require the relevant entities to set the limits of the various financial product
transactions, e.g. the limit of position, stop-loss limit, and also the approving
authority and guidelines to process the excess in the limit. In order to enhance the
transparency of the information about market risk, the risk management entities shall
inspect and submit the risk management report on a daily basis, and shall continue
supervising and following up on extraordinary circumstances in the transactions, if
any.

Market risk
management
organization and
structure

. Board of Directors:

(1) The Board of Directors is the Bank’s supreme policy-making entity of risk
management, responsible for authorizing the Bank’s risk management policies
and guidelines and supervising fulfillment of the various systems to achieve
the Bank’s entire market risk management objectives.

(2) Audit Committee to review the risk-related motions before proposing them to
the Board of Directors and communicate with the risk implementation
entities.

Senior management:
Asset & Liability Management Committee and Risk Management Committee are
subordinated to the president.

(1) Develop the Bank’s market risk management guidelines and rules according
to the market risk management policies approved by Board of Directors, and
ensure that the Bank has the express functions and operations for market risk
management, effective market risk management procedure and proper market
risk management system.

(2) Authorize competent employees to execute the market risk management
operation and ensure that they have the ability and expertise affordable to
execute the market risk management business and comply with the relevant
policies and procedures.

3. Risk Management Dept:

(1) Responsible for researching and drafting or amending the Bank’s risk
management policies and market risk guidelines to be proposed to Board of
Directors for approval.

(2) Work with proprietary trading entities to research and draft or amend the
various financial products business control rules, and propose them to the
president for approval.

(3) Plan and establish the Bank’s structure of identifying, measuring and
controlling market risk, execute the limit management report and inspection to
alert excess in limit, in order to ensure that the various financial products
businesses may strictly comply with the Bank’s risk management policies and
regulations.
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. Business Unit:

In charge of foreign exchange, securities and financial derivatives trading, and
cross-Bank capital management, as well as executing transactions within limit
according to the Bank’s risk-control standard.

. Internal Audit:

An independent internal audit unit reporting to the Board of Directors reviews the
Market of this bank’s risk management system at planned intervals, discloses the
related information in the audit report, and ensures that appropriate improvement
actions have been taken by related units.

Scope and
characteristics of
market risk report and
measurement systems

2.

. To provide the market risk daily management reports to disclose the positions,

sensitivity analysis, value at risk, profit and loss of the various financial products.

The Bank measures and supervises market risks according to related risk management
guidelines and employs the VaR model for quantitative integrated management of
market risks. Through daily presentation of the market risk report and position
analysis, the Bank is full aware of any changes in risks.

The hedge of market
risk or risk reduction
policies, and
strategies and
procedures for
controlling the
on-going
effectiveness of
hedging and risk
reduction tools

When the market risk exposure is getting higher, the Bank will take some approaches
such as risk exposure deduction or approved hedge to lower the market risk to the
controllable level.

Approach for
regulatory capital
charge.

Standardized Approach.

B. Accrued Capital Charge of Market Risk :

Unit: NT$1,000 ; December 31, 2014

Type of Risk Capital Charge
Interest rate risk 1,883,117
Equity risk 690,382
Foreign exchange risk 107,932
Commodity risk —
Total 2,681,431

C. Value at Risk for Trading Position ( 99%, one day, unit: NT$1,000) :

2014

fem December 31, 2014 Average VaR Minimum VaR Maximum VaR
Interest rate 32,603 23,105 11,888 34,663
Equity 4,804 8,400 99 16,310
Foreign exchange 780 3,338 467 9,184
Commodity — — - -
Subtotal 38,187 34,843 - -
Diversified effect (547) (3,660) - -
Total value at risk 37,640 31,183 19,729 39,669
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(5) Information of Liquidity Risk Management:
A. Structure analysis of time to maturity (NTS$)
Unit: NT$1,000 ; December 31, 2014

Total 0-10 days | 11-30 days | 31-90days | 91-180 days |181-365days | Over 365days

Primary funds
inflow upon 580,256,003 72,545,676| 71,125,749 45,530,867 25,280,740 45,512,782 320,260,189
maturity

Primary funds
outflow upon 796,855,047| 17,765,226| 45,835,458 84,200,558|  56,002,064| 82,904,469 510,147,272
maturity

Gap (216,599,044)| 54,780,450| 25,290,291 (38,669,691)| (30,721,324)| (37,391,687)| (189,887,083)

B. Structure analysis of time to maturity (USS$)
Unit: thousand US$ ; December 31, 2014

Total 0-30 days 31-90days 91-180 days 181-365days | Over 365days

Primary funds

inflow upon 2,973,228 1,268,035 508,012 248,144 89,921 859,116
maturity

Primary funds

inflow upon 4,148,142 1,723,304 365,216 441,456 960,669 657,497
maturity

Gap (1,174,914) (455,269) 142,796 (193,312) (870,748) 201,619

C. Liquidity Management of The Bank’s Asset and Funding Gap:

The Bank’s primary principles of liquidity management lie in the diverse, stable
and reliable source of fund, diversify use of fund, and conservative and moderate
funding flexibility. Market liquidity risks involve the concerns of the centralization of
holding position and market volume, especially if the massive positions are impacted
by market prices, so that quantitative and qualitative management of market liquidity
risk can be conducted.

Funding liquidity risks concern on-balance-sheet items and off-balance-sheet
transactions. The Bank measures possible liquidity risks and, according to different
periods, periodically evaluates fund inflow, outflow and gap. According to the result of
cost-benefit analysis, assets and liabilities are appropriately allocated for effective
liquidity management.

The Bank has developed risk indicators and the early warning mechanism, to
monitor liquidity risk, and periodically conducted the scenario-based simulation and
the stress tests in order to manage and analyze unfavorable liquidity factors, take proper
procedures to minimize their impact. The evaluation principles consider the Bank’s
operation features, incorporate asset quality, external indicators, liquidity ratios,
concentration and stability, and stress tests. The Bank periodically reports its risk
indicator analysis and control to Asset & Liability Management Committee and Board

of Directors in order to review and supervise the Bank’s liquidity management.
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(6) Effect of changes in foreign/domestic important policies and regulations on the Bank’s
financial business, and responsive action thereof:

See page 5~7

(7) The effect of changes in the Bank’s image on the Bank’s financial business , and
responsive action thereof:

The Bank always conform to the philosophy “Sincerity, Stability, Service, Innovation
and Attentiveness” and to the obedience with regulations and competent authority’s
requirements to supply clients with more diverse, more complete and more comprehensive
professional financial services and strive toward its ultimate goal-“provide ideal services to
clients, create the most interest for shareholders and supply the feedback to the society
wholeheartedly.”

(8) Risks and Reponses for Service Centralization:
A. Group Centralization Risk:

The Bank has developed regulations and set up the limits for different groups and
companies. These limits are adjusted timely to decentralize risk exposure the Bank
undertakes.

B. Industry Centralization Risk:

The Bank has developed regulations and set up the industry limits for different
industries. These limits are adjusted timely to decentralize risk exposure the Bank
undertakes.

C. Country Centralization Risk:

The Bank has developed regulations and set up the country limits for different
countries. These limits are adjusted timely to decentralize risk exposure the Bank
undertakes.

(9) The effect, risks and responsive actions of changes in the management rights:
The Bank is a subsidiary 100% held by Yuanta Financial Holdings. Management
rights did not change.
(10) Litigation and Non-Litigation:
There’s no significant litigation.

(11) Information of Crisis Management:

In order to perfect the Bank’s crisis prevention and response mechanism, the Bank
has defined the “Crisis Management Policies and Procedures” and “Manual for Crisis
Management Response”, so that supervisors of related units may report the emergency
via the various channels and research and draft responsive practices in the case of any
risk or likelihood of risk, so as to restore the operation of the Bank’s businesses
expeditiously and effectively to minimize the damage. Meanwhile, the Bank has defined
the SOP for the various emergencies (e.g. fire, robbery, or mass protest); periodically

conduct safety drill run for rapid and effective response to emergency.
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1. Information of Affiliates

(1) Organization Chart

V. Special Notes

Yuanta Commercial Bank

Base Date: January 31, 2015

y

A\ 4

\4

Yuanta Property Insurance Agent

Yuanta Life Insurance Agent

Yuanta International Leasing

(100% Shareholding) (100% Shareholding) (100% Shareholding)
Date of Paid-in
Corporate Establishment Address Capital Scope of Business
(NT$1,000)
10F., No.66, Sec.1, Dunhua S.

Yuanta Property October 02,1999 [Rd., Songshan District, Taipei 3,600  |Property Insurance
Insurance Agent Ltd. City Agent
Yuanta Life Insurance November lll%F.,SIj)?l'i%aielc)'ils’trlzsltm}lizf Si. 3,000 Life Insurance Agent
Agent Co., Ltd. 20,2001 City g > 1a1p ’ &
Yuanta International November 7F., No.69, Baoqing Rd., .
Leasing Co., Ltd. 15,2012 Zhongzheng Dist., Taipei City 600,000 Leasing

(2) Directors, Supervisors and Managers

Base Date: January 31, 2015

Corporate Position gﬁ;:;gﬂ:{i?;zl) Shareholdings
Yuanta Property Director Yuanta Commercial Bank Statutory (a limited company)
Insurance Agent Ltd. Representatives: Chia-Lin Chin 100.00%
Chairman  |Yuanta Commercial Bank Statutory
Representatives: Chia-Lin Chin
. Director Yuanta Commercial Bank Statutory 300,000 shares
Yuanta Life Insurance . .
Agent Co., Ltd. Representatlves: Chung-Ping Lue,
’ Tsai-Yu Chang 100.00%
Supervisor |Yuanta Commercial Bank Statutory
Representatives: Mei-Ju Chen
Chairman  |Yuanta Commercial Bank Statutory
Representatives: Chia-Lin Chin
Director Yuanta Commercial Bank Statutory
Yuanta International Representatives: Yung-Chung 60,000,000 shares
Leasing Co., Ltd. Huang, Eric K.Chiu 100.00%
Supervisor |Yuanta Commercial Bank Statutory '
Representatives: Chung-Ping Lue
President  |Sheng-Tung Wen
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(3) Business Overview
Unit:NT$1,000 ; Base Date: December 31, 2014

. Total Total Book | Operating | Operating | Income |EPS (NTS$)
Coipoets Cpitill Assets | Liabilities | Value Revenue | Income | (after tax) | (after tax)
Yuanta Property 3,600| 10,702 1,771 8931| 13,815 2,735 2,328 6.47
Insurance Agent Ltd.
Yuanta Life Insurance 3,000| 110,897 | 62,557| 48340 733,125| 41,517| 34,363| 114.54
Agent Co., Ltd.
Yuanta International
. 600,000 | 620,974 7,736 | 613,238 23,042 14,506 13,157 0.22
Leasing Co., Ltd.
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2. Milestones of Yuanta Commercial Bank in 2014

January

Launched “Running Horses Catches Cash First”, the periodic (variable) payment
plan for mutual fund.

Launched “Net for Niche”, the internet banking program for mutual fund.

Launched “USD Flexible High Interest”, the demand deposit program.

February

Promoted innovation loans for small-to-mid sized enterprises.

Shulin Branch was opened.

Centralized corporate banking business for the branch in Taipei City and New
Taipei City.

March

Promoted preferential loans for the cultural innovation industry.

Guangfu Branch was opened.

Jhongsiao Branch was relocated.

April

Held “Stop for Health, Keep Your Wealth”, the wealth management seminars.
(3 seminars across Taiwan)

Exclusively sponsored “College Section, Future Elite Leadership Award, Taiwan
Best Financial Strategies”.

Launched “Share Interest, Get Premium”, the foreign currency time deposit
program.

Launched Changhua Fellow Townsmen Association Affinity Card.

Promoted preferential loans for industry development and guidance in response
to trade liberalization.

July

Issued Yuanta “Diamond Cashrebate Card” .

Promoted loans to small-to-mid sized enterprise and foreign currency credit
service of Offshore Business Unit to adjust the Bank’s credit structure and
increase the spread.

Monitoring and reporting mechanism for real estate financing.

Held “All-Round Preview on the Global Stock Market For 2™ Half of Year
20147, the wealth management seminars. ( 7 seminars across Taiwan)

August

Launched Cross-Border Collection and Payment of Tuition and Miscellaneous
Expenses Service.

Held “The Best Portfolio in August 2014”, the wealth management seminars.
( 2 seminars in Taipei).

October

Launched “Yuanta e-Pay”, the Cross-Border Online Collection and Payment
Service.

Held “2015 Global Economy and Major Industries Analysis Keynote Speech and
Cocktail Party” in Kaohsiung.

Launched “Diverse High Profit”, the foreign currency time deposit program.
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November

Received awards, “Best Promotion of Electronic Payment Service for 2014”
from Financial Information Service Co., Ltd.

Rated as the Excellent Institution by Joint Credit Information Center for “2014
Gold Quality Award -Credit Granting Data”.

Launched “New Corporation Internet Banking Services”.

Launched Sung Shan TsuHuei Temple Affinity Card.

December

Launched Gold Passbook in USD Currency at bank counters and internet
banking.

Co-organized the 20" “Sweet Home- Children Drawing”, a drawing contest held
by Wanjashan.

Passed the Information Security Management System Certification of ISO
27001:2013 version.

Co-issued Yuanta i-Go Card, mobile credit card service and mobile ATM card
service with Taiwan Mobile Payment Co.
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3. Branches and Overseas Offices

Base Date: March 31, 2015

Name

Tel

Fax

Address

Business Department

(02) 2173-6680

(02) 2772-1909

No.66 , Sec. 1, Dunhua S. Rd., Taipei City 105, Taiwan

Taipei Branch (02) 2705-7888 |(02) 2755-3751 |No.38, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Rd. , Taipei City 106, Taiwan
Chingmei Branch (02) 8663-6766 |(02) 8663-3139 |No.3, Jingwun St. , Taipei City 116, Taiwan

gf;g;‘lg BastRoad |45y 2545.8777 |(02)2545-8118 |No.221, Sec. 3, Nanjing E. Rd., Taipei City 104, Taiwan
Shihlin Branch (02) 2837-6638 |(02) 2835-5886 |No.314, Zhongzheng Rd. , Taipei City 111, Taiwan
Guting Branch (02) 2365-4567 |(02) 2368-5959 Iﬁ&f% 1Sv$;n3 Roosevelt Rd., Da’an Dist., Taipei City
Neihu Branch (02) 8751-8759 [ (02) 8751-9858 I%I;NIJ gg Ganggian Rd., Neihu Dist., Taipei City 114,
Sinyi Branch (02) 2703-2569 |(02) 2701-2259 |No.236-1, Sec. 4, Sinyi Rd., Taipei City 106, Taiwan
Songjiang Branch (02) 2516-8608 |(02) 2516-1078 |No.109, Songjiang Rd., Taipei City 104, Taiwan

Tianmu Branch

(02) 2871-2558

(02) 2871-1117

No.14, Tianmu W. Rd. Taipei City 111, Taiwan

Minsheng Branch

(02) 8712-9666

(02) 8712-7077

No.52-1, Sec. 4, Minsheng E. Rd., Taipei City 105,
Taiwan

Zhongshan North Road
Branch

(02) 2521-7888

(02) 2521-0678

No.135, Sec. 2, Zhongshan N. Rd., Zhongshan Dist.,
Taipei City 104, Taiwan

Zhongxiao Branch

(02) 8786-7778

(02) 8786-7758

No.400, Sec. 5, Zhongxiao E. Rd., Xinyi Dist., Taipei
City 110, Taiwan

Chengde Branch

(02) 2592-0000

(02) 2592-1209

No.210, Sec. 3, Chengde Rd., Datong Dist., Taipei City
103, Taiwan

Chengjhong Branch

(02) 2382-2888

(02) 2381-8399

No.42, Hengyang Rd., Zhongzheng Dist., Taipei City 100,
Taiwan

Guangian Branch

(02) 2388-3938

(02) 2388-3218

No.15, Sec. 1, Chongging S. Rd., Zhongzheng Dist.,
Taipei City 100, Taiwan

Datong Branch

(02) 2558-5869

(02) 2550-0879

No.66, Nanjing W. Rd., Datong Dist., Taipei City 103,
Taiwan

Songshan Branch

(02) 8785-7618

(02) 8785-9711

No.675, Sec. 5, Zhongxiao E. Rd., Xinyi Dist., Taipei
City 110, Taiwan

Daan Branch

(02) 2395-8199

(02) 2395-6619

No.148-1, Sec. 1, Xinsheng S. Rd., Zhongzheng Dist.,
Taipei City 100, Taiwan

Yanping Branch

(02) 2558-9222

(02) 2558-1700

No.57, Sec. 2, Yanping N. Rd., Datong Dist., Taipei City
103, Taiwan

Wende Branch

(02) 2797-7988

(02) 2797-0858

No.68, Wende Rd., Neihu Dist., Taipei City 114, Taiwan

Beitou Branch

(02) 2898-2121

(02) 2897-9667

No.35, Sec. 2, Beitou Rd., Beitou Dist., Taipei City 112,
Taiwan

Dunnan Branch

(02) 2700-5818

(02) 2700-5278

No.271, Sec. 1, Dunhua S. Rd., Da’an Dist., Taipei City
106, Taiwan
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Name Tel Fax Address
Gongguan Branch (02) 2369-3955 |(02) 2369-3983 11\10062%2 “fjgfl 3, Roosevelt Rd., Da’an Dist., Taipei City
Tofe i B (02) 2368-8066 | (02) 2368-6158 No.212, Sec. 1, Heping E. Rd., Da’an Dist., Taipei City

106, Taiwan

Ximen Branch

(02)2388-2768

(02)2388-1928

No.69, Baoqing Rd., Zhongzheng Dist., Taipei City 100,
Taiwan

Guangfu Branch

(02)8773-6667

(02)8773-5068

3F.-1, No0.300, Sec. 4, Zhongxiao E. Rd., Da’an Dist.,
Taipei City 106, Taiwan

Xindian Branch

(02) 2912-5799

(02) 2914-1255

No.252, Sec. 2, Beixin Rd., Xindian Dist., New Taipei
City 231, Taiwan

Xindian Zhongzheng
Branch

(02) 2911-0058

(02) 2911-7858

No.225, Zhongzheng Rd., Xindian Dist., New Taipei City
231, Taiwan

Shuanghe Branch

(02) 2245-7198

(02) 2245-0698

2F.-1,No0.232, Zhonghe Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New Taipei
City 235, Taiwan

Yonghe Branch

(02) 8231-1288

(02) 8231-1277

No.657, Zhongzheng Rd., Yonghe Dist., New Taipei City
234, Taiwan

Jhonghe Branch

(02) 2245-6789

(02) 2245-5676

No.1 & No.3, Taihe St., Zhonghe Dist., New Taipei City
235, Taiwan

Sanchong Branch

(02) 2983-2255

(02) 2988-5810

No.111, Sec.3, Chongsin Rd. , Sanchong Dist., New
Taipei City 241, Taiwan

Beisanchong Branch

(02) 2982-9192

(02) 2989-3060

No.195, Jhengyi N. Rd., Sanchong Dist., New Taipei City
241, Taiwan

Shangxinzhuang
Branch

(02) 2990-0999

(02) 2993-3222

No.173, Siyuan Rd., Xinzhuang Dist., New Taipei City
242, Taiwan

Xinzhuang Branch

(02) 2996-7999

(02) 8992-6322

No.246, Xintai Rd., Xinzhuang Dist., New Taipei City
242, Taiwan

Bangiao Branch

(02) 2953-6789

(02) 2953-3386

No.69, Sec. 1, Zhongshan Rd., Bangiao Dist., New Taipei
City 220, Taiwan

Pugian Branch

(02) 8952-0788

(02) 8952-0828

No.125, Sec. 2, Zhongshan Rd., Bangiao Dist., New
Taipei City 220, Taiwan

Tucheng Branch

(02) 2270-3030

(02) 2260-5151

No.255, Sec. 1, Zhongyang Rd., Tucheng Dist., New
Taipei City 236, Taiwan

Luzhou Branch

(02) 2281-8958

(02) 2281-0266

No.10, Zhongshan 1st Rd., Luzhou Dist., New Taipei City
247, Taiwan

Shulin Branch

(02)2675-7268

(02)2675-7255

No.99, Sec. 1, Zhongshan Rd., Shulin Dist., New Taipei
City 238, Taiwan

Nankan Branch

(03) 312-9550

(03) 312-9551

No.309, Zhongzheng Rd. , Lujhu Dist. , Taoyuan City
338, Taiwan

Zhongli Branch

(03) 426-6007

(03) 426-6017

No.7, Zhongyang E. Rd. , Zhongli Dist., Taoyuan City
320, Taiwan

Taoyuan Branch

(03) 356-5000

(03) 356-5001

No.375, Sec. 1, Zhuangjing Rd., Taoyuan Dist., Taoyuan
City 330, Taiwan

Taosin Branch

(03) 338-5518

(03) 338-5618

No.51-2, Fusing Rd., Taoyuan Dist., Taoyuan City 330,
Taiwan

Pingjhen Branch

(03) 494-2690

(03) 494-3061

No.18, Huannan Rd. , Pingjhen Dist. , Taoyuan City 324,
Taiwan

Linkou Branch

(03) 328-8999

(03) 328-8668

No.118, Wenhua 3rd Rd., Guishan Dist., Taoyuan City
333, Taiwan
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Name

Tel

Fax

Address

Hsinchu Branch

(03) 545-6688

(03) 545-6008

No.276, Minsheng Rd. , Hsinchu City 300, Taiwan

Jhubei Branch

(03) 555-9199

(03) 555-7200

No.85, Guangming 6th Rd., Jhubei City, Hsinchu County
302, Taiwan

Hsinchu Science Park
Branch

(03) 666-7888

(03) 666-7688

No.267, Sec. 1, Guangfu Rd., Hsinchu City 300, Taiwan

Datong Branch

(03) 523-6600

(03) 525-7700

No.196, Linsen Rd., Hsinchu City 300, Taiwan

Luodong Branch

(03) 956-8966

(03) 956-2333

No.38, Zhongzheng N. Rd., Luodong Township, Yilan
County 265, Taiwan

Kinmen Branch

(082) 322-566

(082) 373-102

No.188-1 Mincyuan Rd., Jincheng Township, Kinmen
County 893, Taiwan

Hualien Branch

(03) 831-1708

(03) 832-1169

No.167, Guolian 1st Rd., Hualien City, Hualien County
970, Taiwan

Miaoli Branch

(037) 336-678

(037) 336-718

No.460, Zhongzheng Rd., Miaoli City, Miaoli County
360, Taiwan

Taichung Branch

(04) 2227-1799

(04) 2220-7499

No.8, Sec. 2, Ziyou Rd., Central Dist., Taichung City 400,
Taiwan

Waunsin Branch

(04) 2297-0068

(04) 2296-5966

No.337, Sec. 3, Wunsin Rd. , Situn Dist., Taichung City
407, Taiwan

Fusing Branch

(04) 2261-6889

(04) 2262-1060

No.269, Sec. 1, Fusing Rd., South Dist., Taichung City
402, Taiwan

No.46, Sec. 2, Chongde Rd. , Beitun Dist., Taichung City

ChongDe Branch (04) 2232-9961 |[(04) 2233-1818 A6, Tharoam
ChungGang Branch | (04) 2465-0889 | (04) 2465-0989 T&g(%g;g;ﬁ' 4 Taiwan Bivd., Xitun Dist., Taichung City
Shals Branch (04) 2665-6656 | (04) 2663-3852 No.535, Zhongshan Rd. , Shalu Dist., Taichung City 433,

Taiwan

Fongyuan Branch

(04) 2529-3366

(04) 2524-0028

No.23, Yuanhuan W. Rd. , Fongyuan Dist., Taichung City
420, Taiwan

No.724, Tucheng Rd. , Dali Dist., Taichung City 412,

Dali Branch (04) 2492-2288 |(04) 24932355 | .0
aiwan

Dajia Branch (04) 2688-6088 | (04) 2688-6366 1619.833, Sec: 1, Zhongshan Rd. , Dajia Dist., Taichung
ity 437, Taiwan

Taiping Branch (04) 2270-2688 | (04) 2273-6000 No.53, Zhongxing Rd., Taiping Dist., Taichung City 411,

Taiwan

Caotun Branch

(049) 232-1661

(049) 232-1800

No.88, Zhongxing Rd., Caotun Township, Nantou County
542, Taiwan

Changhua Branch

(04) 726-7001

(04) 726-6992

No.898, Sec. 2, Zhongshan Rd. , Changhua City ,
Changhua County 500, Taiwan

Yuanlin Branch

(04) 835-6403

(04) 835-2653

No.283, Sec. 2, Datong Rd. , Yuanlin Township ,
Changhua County 510, Taiwan

Lugang Branch

(04) 778-5799

(04) 777-9779

No.321, Zhongshan Rd. , Lugang Township , Changhua
County 505, Taiwan

Beidou Branch

(04) 887-3881

(04) 887-3886

No.166, Guangfu Rd. , Beidou Township , Changhua
County 521, Taiwan

Doushin Branch

(05) 535-1799

(05) 535-1313

No.29, Wunhua Rd. , Douliou City , Yunlin County 640,
Taiwan
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Name

Tel

Fax

Address

Huwei Branch

(05) 633-9169

(05) 633-9423

No.1, Heping Rd. , Huwei Township , Yunlin County 632,
Taiwan

Dounan Branch

(05) 597-1138

(05) 597-1139

No.67, Zhongshan Rd. , Dounan Township , Yunlin
County 630, Taiwan

Chiayi Branch

(05) 232-7469

(05) 232-6415

No.185, Zhongxing Rd. , Chiayi City 600, Taiwan

Yongkang Branch

(06) 312-6789

(06) 312-1228

No.511, Siaodong Rd. , Yongkang Dist., Tainan City 710,
Taiwan

Jiali Branch

(06) 721-4888

(06) 721-0249

No.278, Wunhua Rd. , Jiali Dist., Tainan City722, Taiwan

Tainan Branch

(06) 293-8688

(06) 293-8699

No.348, Sec. 1, Yonghua Rd., West Central Dist., Tainan
City 700, Taiwan

Fuchen Branch

(06) 228-1281

(06) 222-2415

No.165, Sec. 1, Minsheng Rd., West Central Dist., Tainan
City 700, Taiwan

Fudong Branch

(06) 268-7815

(06) 267-3371

No.348, Sec. 2, Dongmen Rd., East Dist., Tainan City
701, Taiwan

KaiYuan Branch

(06) 238-3125

(06) 236-3661

No.461, Shengli Rd., North Dist., Tainan City 704,
Taiwan

Anhe Branch

(06) 255-1236

(06) 256-9941

No.226, Sec. 1, Anhe Rd. , Annan Dist., Tainan City 709,
Taiwan

Zuoying Branch

(07) 581-0898

(07) 581-0798

No.158, Zuoying Avenue, Zuoying Dist., Kaohsiung City
813, Taiwan

Kaohsiung Branch

(07)282-2101

(07)282-2168

No.143, Zhongzheng 4th Rd., Qianjin Dist., Kaohsiung
City 801, Taiwan

Boai Branch

(07) 558-6088

(07) 558-3699

No.491, Mingcheng 2nd Rd. , Zuoying Dist., Kaohsiung
City 813, Taiwan

Fongshan Branch

(07) 715-2700

(07) 715-8500

No.280, Wujia 2nd Rd. , Fongshan Dist., Kaohsiung City
830, Taiwan

Sanmin Branch

(07) 395-1588

(07) 395-3288

No.715, Jiangong Rd. , Sanmin Dist., Kaohsiung City
807, Taiwan

Pingtung Branch

(08) 735-0426

(08) 737-0121

No.690, Guangdong Rd., Pingtung City, Pingtung County
900, Taiwan

No.427, Sec. 1, Zhonghua Rd. , Taitung City , Taitung

Tungshin Branch (089) 324-351 (089) 324-734 County 950, Taiwan
Offshore Banking 3F., No.66 , Sec. 1, Dunhua S. Rd., Taipei City 105,
Unit(OBU) (02)2173-6699 [(02)2772-2513 Taiwan

Overseas Office

Tel

Fax

Address

Hong Kong
Representative Office

852-2810-9313

852-2810-9310

RM. 1509, 15 F., Harcourt House, No.39,
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Affiliate

Tel

Fax Address

Yuanta Property Insurance Agent

Ltd.

(02) 2173-6879

10F., No.66, Sec. 1, Dunhua S. Rd.,
Songshan District, Taipei City 105,
Taiwan

(02) 2772-1995

Yuanta Life Insurance Agent Co.,

Ltd.

(02) 2173-6879

10F., No.66, Sec. 1, Dunhua S. Rd.,
Songshan District, Taipei City 105,
Taiwan

(02) 2772-1466

Yuanta International Leasing Co.,

Ltd.

(02) 2173-6039

7F., No.69, Baoging Rd.,
Zhongzheng Dist., Taipei City 100,
Taiwan

(02) 2772-5825
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